Regular
Board Meeting

Board Room

September 19, 2022



Fruitport Community Schools
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING
Board Room
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd, Fruitport 49415
Monday, September 19, 2022 - 7:00 p.m.

I. CALL to ORDER
Il. PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE

I11. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
V. PRESENTATIONS
VI. COMMUNICATIONS
a. MDE / MIMTSS Recognition on Data Utilization: FHS and FMS
VIl. SUPERINTENDENT/ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS
a. Update on Construction Projects — John Winskas
b. Section 98b: School Goal Requirements and Continuity of Service Plan

c. Section 98c: Funding for Learning Loss
d. Review of Grade 3-8 MSTEP Data and Comprehensive District Report

Vill. REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC*

IX. CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Bill Listing (attachment 1X-1)

Fund Amount
General Fund: $674,437.11
Other Funds:
Early Childhood Center $590.01
Food Service $43,782.31
Cooperative Educ (ISD) — Tech Millage $156,837.57
Total Bill List: $875,647.00

Acceptance of Monthly Financial, Bond, and Capital Projects Report (attachment 1X-2)
Acceptance of Student Activity Summary Report (attachment 1X-3)

Acceptance of Credit Card and Utilities Report (attachment 1X-4)

Approval of Transfers and ACH Transactions Report (attachment 1X-5)

Approval of Personnel Report (includes confirmation of new hires, resignations,
retirees, and transfers) (attachment 1X-6)

7. Approval of Special Meeting Minutes of August 24, 2022 (attachment 1X-7)

oUW



XI.

XIl.

XII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

XVII.

GENERAL BOARD BUSINESS
a. Second Reading: Board / Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy Update (attachment X-1)
b. Executed Drainage Easement and Quit Claim Deed (attachment X-2)
c. Approved School Land Division Application (attachment X-3)

BUSINESS & FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS
Elroy Buckner, Chairperson
1. Report of Committee Meeting held September 12, 2022 (attachment XI-1)

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS

Steve Kelly, Chairperson

1. Report of Committee Meeting held September 12, 2022 (attachment XI1-1)

2. Bond and Project Construction Management Stipend (attachment XI1-2)

3. Letter of Agreement: Fruitport Bus Drivers / Food Service Association (attachment XII-3)

STUDENT AFFAIRS COMMITTEE REPORTS & RECOMMENDATIONS
Susan Franklin, Chairperson

1. Report of Committee Meeting held September 12, 2022 (attachment X111-1)

2. Resolution: Petition for Student 091922-01 Reinstatement (attachment X111-2)
3. Overnight Trip Request: 8" Grade Trip to Washington, DC (attachment XI111-3)

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS AND DISCUSSIONS

AGENDA ITEMS FOR FUTURE MEETINGS & SCHEDULING OF SPECIAL
MEETINGS
1. Business & Finance Committee Meeting: October 10, 2022 at 11:30 a.m.
2. Personnel Committee Meeting: October 10, 2022 at 5:00 p.m.
3. Student Affairs Committee Meeting: October 10, 2022 at 5:30 p.m.
4. Board of Education Meeting: October 17, 2022 at 7:00 p.m.

REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC*

ADJOURNMENT

*Time is provided for members of the audience to address the Board of Education regarding any topic including items
on the agenda. The Board is providing two opportunities for the public to comment during the meeting. The first is for
people who wish to bring issues to the Board of Education for board consideration. At the end of the meeting, the Board
will provide a brief opportunity for community members to comment on activities and/or discussion that took place
during the Board meeting. Time limits may be placed if a large number of individuals would like to address the Board.

Note: Upon request to the Superintendent, the District shall make reasonable accommodation for a person with
disabilities to be able to participate in this meeting.




"i

Technical Assistance Center

Michigan’s Multi-Tiered System of Supports Technical Assistance Center

September 2, 2022

Dear Jason Kennedy and Fruitport Community Schools School Board:

Congratulations on your ongoing efforts to implement a Multi-Tiered System of Supports
(MTSS)! Specifically, your district has been recognized for MTSS implementation in the
following areas:

MTSS Data Utilization

The following schools in your district have earned the MTSS Data
Utilization award for collecting and using MTSS fidelity data:

Fruitport High School: Behavior
Fruitport Middle School: Behavior

Michigan's Multi-Tiered System of Supports

» 1 A

Michigan educators work tirelessly on behalf of learners and do so much that is worthy of
celebration and acknowledgment. The MiIMTSS Recognition process provides one way to shine
a positive light on work happening within the state related to implementing an MTSS framework
to meet the need of all learners. Schools, districts, and intermediate school districts (ISDs) were
eligible for two types of MTSS Recognition during 2021-2022 to reflect a range of successes: 1)
MTSS Data Utilization and 2) MTSS Implementation and Impact. This recognition process is
based on information housed in the MIMTSS Data System and all criteria are posted on the
MiMTSS TA Center website.

Next Steps

We encourage you to share this information and celebrate with your district community! To
assist you, we've posted some ideas for how you can Shout the News in different formats.

On October 3, 2022, we will post a list of all recognized ISDs, districts, and schools on the
MIMTSS TA Center’'s MTSS recognition page. This fall, your award letter, and electronic badges
will also be available to you on a new “Recognition” tab of your MIMTSS Data System
dashboard.

Throughout the first half of the 2022-2023 school year, MDE and the MiMTSS TA Center will
gather educators' input on the future of MIMTSS Recognition. Stay tuned for more information
about opportunities to share your ideas.

MICHIGAN

1 "3 Education


https://mimtssdata.org/MIData/Account/Login?ReturnUrl=%2fMIData%2fAdmin
https://mimtsstac.org/sites/default/files/Documents/Results/Announcement_MTSS_Recognition.pdf
https://mimtsstac.org/results/mimtss-recognition/2021-2022-mimtss-recognition
https://mimtssdata.org/MIData/Account/Login?ReturnUrl=%2fMIData%2fAdmin

Please let me know if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

%;ﬁ% Q- L4yt

Kimberly St. Martin
Director, Michigan’s Multi-Tiered System of Supports Technical Assistance Center

Michigan’s MTSS Technical Assistance Center is funded by the Michigan Department of Education
and the U.S. Department of Education, Office of Special Education Program.

Michigan’s MTSS Technical Assistance Center



STATE OF MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

MICHAEL F. RICE, Ph.D.
GREng\IfI'E\lR\I\II\é)iITMER LANSING STATE SUPERINTENDENT
MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 1, 2022
TO: Local and Intermediate School District Superintendents

Public School Academy Directors

FROM: Delsa D. Chapman, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent ‘7@&@
Division of Educator, Student, and School Supports

SUBJECT: School Goals Requirements in Section 98b of Public Act 144 of 2022

Section 98b of Public Act 144 of 2022 (pages 97-98) requires local education
agencies (LEAs), both traditional public school districts and public school academies
(PSAs), to establish, by no later than September 15, 2022, academic goals expected
to be achieved for the 2022-23 academic year for each school.

If academic goals are active in the Michigan Integrated Continuous Improvement
Process (MICIP) portfolio for each school, no new goals are necessary.

The Michigan Department of Education (MDE) encourages the use of existing
academic MICIP goals. If current MICIP goals are not aligned to academic growth,
districts are encouraged to use the updated template in GEMS/MARS for sharing their
2022-23 academic growth goals:
https://mdoe.state.mi.us/gems/public/QuestionnaireHome.aspx?code=i4d1ucbe.

Under the law, building leaders of each school operated by the district, in conjunction
with all teachers and school administrators of the school, create academic goals with
interim targets, tied to benchmark assessments for grades K-8, expected to be
achieved by no later than January 2023. According to section 98b, school-level goals
shall:

e Include increased pupil achievement or validly and reliably measured growth,
with the use of a benchmark assessment or local benchmark assessment in the
aggregate and for all subgroups of pupils broken down by grade level, student
demographics, and mode of instruction (98b(1)(d)(i)).

e Include an assurance that the district shall select a benchmark assessment or
local benchmark assessment aligned to state standards and an assurance that
the district shall administer the benchmark assessment or local benchmark

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

CASANDRA E. ULBRICH — PRESIDENT e PAMELA PUGH — VICE PRESIDENT
TIFFANY D. TILLEY — SECRETARY ¢ TOM MCMILLIN — TREASURER
JUDITH PRITCHETT — NASBE DELEGATE
ELLEN COGEN LIPTON e NIKKI SNYDER

608 WEST ALLEGAN STREET e P.O. BOX 30008 e LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan.gov/mde e 833-633-5788


https://www.legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf
https://mdoe.state.mi.us/gems/public/QuestionnaireHome.aspx?code=i4d1ucbe

Page 2
September 1, 2022

assessment to all pupils as prescribed under section 104h (page 108) to
determine whether pupils are making meaningful progress toward mastery of
these standards (98b(1)(d)(ii)).

e Be measurable for grades K-8 through a benchmark assessment described
above (98b(1)(d)(iii)).

Subsection 98b(1)(a) states that by no later than February 2023 and before the end
of the 2022-23 academic year, the district must present the following to the local
school board at a public meeting:

e For grades K-8, the results from benchmark assessments and local benchmark
assessments administered under 104h, disaggregated by grade level, student
demographics, and mode of instruction.

e For each school in the district, the progress toward meeting the identified
educational goals for the school year.

The information presented at the school board meeting must be posted publicly on
the district’s website and available through the transparency reporting link
(98b(1)(c)).

For questions regarding school goals and MICIP, please contact Ben Boerkoel at
boerkoelb@michigan.gov or Dr. Terry Nugent at nugentt@michigan.gov.

cc: Michigan Education Alliance
Confederation of Michigan Tribal Education Departments


https://www.legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf
mailto:boerkoelb@michigan.gov
mailto:nugentt@michigan.gov

@g MAISA

In Education
Leadership
SUPPORTING REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE AGENCIES Network

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION General
OF INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL

ADMINISTRATORS

Fruitport Community Schools
Sec. 98b Goal Progress Report

Progress Reporting Requirements as outlined in law (PA 144 Sec 98b):
e Present on goal progression by First Board Meeting in February 2023 and No Later than the Last Day of School.
e Post presentation to district transparency site upon completion of presentation to the local board.

Suggested Template: While the information contained herein is required by statute (98b), this template is a suggested
format and is not required to be used by local districts, schools, or buildings. Other formats containing the required
information, as outlined in law, are acceptable for use.

Version: Buildings serving K - 8th grade students and subject to using assessments

aligned with 104a

Table A: Building Goals that were established by September 15, 2022

Goal Category

Goal Related to Achievement or Growth on K - 8 Benchmarks as required by
law (PA 144 Sec 98b and Sec 104h)

Middle of the Year
Reading Goal

Beach: The goal is to have at least 50% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

Edgewood: The goal is to have at least 40% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

Shettler: The goal is to have at least 55% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

FMS: The goal is to have at least 40% of our students measuring on or above grade
level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

End of the Year
Reading Goal

Beach: The goal is to have at least 75% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

Edgewood: The goal is to have at least 60% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

Shettler: The goal is to have at least 75% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.

FMS: The goal is to have at least 45% of our students measuring on or above grade
level as measured on the iReady reading assessment.



https://legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf
https://legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf

Middle of the Year Beach: The goal is to have at least 40% of our students measuring on or above
Mathematics Goal grade level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

Edgewood: The goal is to have at least 30% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

Shettler: The goal is to have at least 40% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

EMS: The goal is to have at least 30% of our students measuring on or above grade
level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

End of the Year Beach: The goal is to have at least 70% of our students measuring on or above
Mathematics Goal grade level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

Edgewood: The goal is to have at least 50% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

Shettler: The goal is to have at least 70% of our students measuring on or above
grade level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

FMS: The goal is to have at least 50% of our students measuring on or above grade
level as measured on the iReady math assessment.

As passed by the state legislature, reports to local school boards must include, but are not limited to, disaggregated
information by student demographics, grade level, and the mode of instruction received by the pupils to which the
information applies.

Table B: Achievement or Growth on Benchmark Assessment - By Student Demographics

Reporting Category By First Board Meeting in No Later than

Suggest reporting on February 2023 Last Day of School Year
subgroups where n=30

Reading Math Reading Math

All Students

Econ. Disadvantaged

Special Education

English Learner

Female

Male

Race/Ethnicity 1

Race/Ethnicity 2

Race/Ethnicity 3

Race/Ethnicity 4

Table C: Achievement or Growth on Benchmark Assessment - By Grade Level

Reporting Category By First Board Meeting in No Later than
Suggest reporting on February 2023 Last Day of School Year

Updated: 8/29/2022




subgroups where n=30

Reading

Math

Reading

Math

Enter Grade Level

Enter Grade Level

Enter Grade Level

Enter Grade Level

Enter Grade Level

Enter Grade Level

Enter Grade Level

Table D: Achievement or Growth on Benchmark Assessment - By Mode of Instruction

Reporting Category
Suggest reporting on
subgroups where n=30

By First Board Meeting in

February 2023

No Later than

Last Day of School Year

Reading

Math

Reading

Math

Mode of Instruction A

Mode of Instruction B

Mode of Instruction C

Updated: 8/29/2022




General

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION %
OF INTERMEDIATE SCHOOL Education
ADMINISTRATORS Leadership

SUPPORTING REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE AGENCIES Network

geln

Fruitport Community Schools
Sec. 98b Goal Progress Report

Progress Reporting Requirements as outlined in law (PA 144 Sec 98b):
e Present on goal progression by First Board Meeting in February 2023 and No Later than the Last Day of School.
e Post presentation to district transparency site upon completion of presentation to the local board.

Suggested Template: While the information contained herein is required by statute (98b), this template is a suggested
format and is not required to be used by local districts, schools, or buildings. Other formats containing the required
information, as outlined in law, are acceptable for use.

Version: Buildings Serving Non K-8 Students

Building: Fruitport High School / Alternative High School; Special Education; Early Childhood

Table A: Building Goals that were established by September 15, 2022

Goal Category

Goal Related to Achievement or Growth as required by law (PA 144 Sec 98b)

Middle of the Year
Academic Goal

At least 60% of the students in grades 9-12 and at our Early Childhood Center
(including special education), at or above grade level, as measured by the common
assessments in the areas of reading and writing.

Middle of the Year
Academic Goal

At least 60% of the students in grades 9-12 and at our Early Childhood Center
(including special education), at or above grade level, as measured by the common
assessments in the areas of mathematics.

End of the Year
Academic Goal

At least 75% of the students in grades 9-12 and at our Early Childhood Center
(including special education), at or above grade level, as measured by the common
assessments in the areas of reading and writing.

End of the Year
Academic Goal

At least 75% of the students in grades 9-12 and at our Early Childhood Center
(including special education), at or above grade level, as measured by the common
assessments in the areas of mathematics.

Table B: Achievement Related to Academic Goals

Provide a narrative on progress toward meeting the goals outlined above.

Updated: 8/29/2022


https://legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf
https://legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf

Updated: 8/29/2022




X1 CO
S 2
[~ =
T <

SCHooV?
COVID Isolation / Quarantine Protocols - Students and Staff

STAFF

e The staff member or administration must email the COVID response email to let the team
know when someone has tested positive for COVID.

e If a staff member is asymptomatic or has mild and improving symptoms, they can return
to work on day 5 (test day or start of symptoms is day “0”) without a test. It is
recommended that they wear a mask for days 6 - 10 while at work and/or around other
people.

e If a staff member tests positive for COVID and their symptoms are not improving, it is
recommended that they stay at home for 10 days or until they are feeling better (24 hours
symptom free).

STUDENTS
e TESTS POSITIVE - If a student is asymptomatic or has mild and improving symptoms,
they can return to school on day 5 (test day or start of symptoms is day “0”) without a
test. It is recommended that they wear a mask for days 6 - 10 while at school and/or
around other people.
o SPREADSHEET PROTOCOL -
m School secretary or administrator calls the family to find out when
symptoms started.
m Return to school date will represent their 5 day return date. Put these in as
XT in PowerSchool.
e CLOSE CONTACT AT SCHOOL - Stay in school unless they develop symptoms.
Students should monitor for symptoms through day 10.
e CLOSE CONTACT LIVES WITH - Stay in school unless they develop symptoms.
Students should monitor for symptoms through day 10.

TESTING PROCEDURES
e [f you find yourself in a situation where you want to test a student or staff member, we
still have tests in the Central Office. Please do not have staff just show up in our office
for a test. An appointment can be scheduled to receive a COVID test at Central Office, by
emailing covidtesting@fruitportschools.net to set up a time for the test.

(Updated as of August 30, 2022)


mailto:covidtesting@fruitportschools.net

oX' Coy, n,

FR
U/ 7:0
an®

ScHoo\?
Parent Illness Guide

Parents, please check your children for signs of illness each morning. Then, use the following guidance to better
understand when to keep your children home from school. If your child has specific symptoms or is diagnosed

with a specific illness, please let your school know.

If your child has symptoms of COVID-19 or

Next Steps: COVID-19 Symptoms or COVID-19 Positive

has tested positive for COVID-19:

If your child has any of these symptoms that
are new and not due to a health condition they
already have, they should stay home.

Fever or chills

Headache

Cough

New loss of taste or smell
Shortness of breath or difficulty
breathing

Sore throat

Fatigue

Congestion or runny nose
Muscle or body aches
Nausea or vomiting
Diarrhea

If your child has tested positive for
COVID-19, they should stay home.

If your child was exposed to COVID-19:

If your child was exposed to someone
contagious with COVID-19, follow the next
steps outlined to the right:

If your child tests positive for COVID-19; or they have symptoms
of COVID-19, but do not get tested:

e Keep your child at home. When counting days, day zero
(0) is the test day or the day that the student’s symptoms
started.

e If a student tested positive and is asymptomatic, or has
mild and improving symptoms, they can return to school
on day 5 (test day or start of symptoms is day “0’) without
a test. It is recommended that they wear a mask for days 6
through 10 while at school and/or around other people.

e If your child tests negative for COVID-19, see the table
below; your child can return to school based on their main
symptoms.

If your child tests positive for COVID-19:

e The parent should contact the school so that a return date can
be established and absences properly documented.

e The parent should tell their child’s out of school close
contacts. Parents can use www.tellyourcontacts.org to do this.

Next Steps: COVID-19 Exposure

e CLOSE CONTACT AT SCHOOL - Stay in school unless the
student develops symptoms; Students should monitor for
symptoms through day 10.

e CLOSE CONTACT LIVES WITH - Stay in school unless the
student develops symptoms; Students should monitor for
symptoms through day 10.

e Consider getting your child tested for COVID-19 anytime
symptoms occur.

o MDHHS recommends testing 3-5 days after they
were exposed if they are not up to date on their

COVID-19 vaccine, or have not had a diagnosed
case of COVID-19 within the last 90 days.




General Symptoms - If your child is sick due to another illness or tests negative for COVID-19:

Most importantly, parents should follow the advice of their child’s healthcare provider. This information is
provided as a guide to assist parents in determining when children are able to return to school, but should not
serve as a replacement for guidance or directives provided by a medical or healthcare professional.

GENERAL ILLNESS or
SYMPTOMS

NEXT STEPS: WHEN TO RETURN TO SCHOOL

Fever of 100.4° F or
above

Fever has ended for at least 24 hours without use of fever-reducing medication such
as acetaminophen (i.e., Tylenol) or ibuprofen (i.e., Motrin, Advil).

Vomiting (defined as
vomiting two or
more times within
one day)

Vomiting has ended for at least 24 hours, and the child can hold down food and
water (OR a healthcare provider has determined their vomiting is not infectious). If
they were diagnosed with norovirus, then they should be 2 days (48 hours) without
vomiting before returning.

Diarrhea (defined as
two loose bowel
movements in one

day)

Diarrhea has ended for at least 24 hours (OR a healthcare provider has determined it is
not infectious). If they were diagnosed with norovirus, then there should be 2 days
(48 hours) without diarrhea before returning.

Rash with fever

Any rash with fever should be checked by a healthcare provider. The student
can return once the rash has a diagnosis, and known to not be contagious, is
being treated, or has healed.

Skin sores (if weeping or
draining)

The student can return if the sores are covered with a waterproof dressing and drainage is
contained.

Impetigo, lice, ringworm,
or scabies

The student may return after receiving the proper treatment for the condition.

Fifth Disease

Follow the advice of your child’s healthcare provider; however, the child may not need to
stay home if they feel well.

Hand, foot, and mouth

If none of the blisters on the hands are draining or the drainage is contained, the student

Fever

disease can go to school.

Impetigo After receiving at least one dose of treatment; Cover the lesions if possible.

Influenza The student should stay home until the fever has ended for at least 24 hours without use
of fever-reducing medication.

Mononucleosis The student can return when able to tolerate school activity; no sports until cleared by a
healthcare provider.

MRSA Keep the area covered and drainage contained; follow the advice of your child’s
healthcare provider.

Pink Eye Follow the advice of your child’s healthcare provider; however, the child may not need to
stay home if they feel well.

Strep throat/Scarlet Stay home for at least twelve (12) hours after the start of antibiotic treatment.




STATE OF MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

MICHAEL F. RICE, Ph.D.
GREng\IfI'E\lR\I\II\é)iITMER LANSING STATE SUPERINTENDENT
MEMORANDUM
DATE: September 1, 2022
TO: Local and Intermediate School District Superintendents

Public School Academy Directors

FROM: Delsa D. Chapman, Ed.D., Deputy SuperintendentW
Division of Educator, Student, and School Supports

SUBJECT: Public Act 144 of 2022 - Section 98c - Learning Loss

The Michigan Department of Education (MDE) will open the application window on
September 15, 2022, for local education agencies (LEAs), both traditional public
school districts and public school academies (PSAs), to apply for Section 98c funds to
address learning loss. These funds were made available through Public Act (PA) 144
of 2022 (MCL 388.1698c), which was sighed into law on July 14, 2022, by Governor
Gretchen Whitmer.

Section 98c appropriates $52,056,000 in federal funding to address learning loss as
part of the Governor’s Emergency Education Relief (GEER) Fund and part of the
federal Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief (ESSER) II Fund. This
memorandum outlines the requirements of section 98c, addresses the purpose of the
funds, and outlines how funding will be determined.

To be eligible for funding in section 98c, LEAs must apply to MDE no later than
November 30, 2022. Eligible entities must include the following in their application:

e An assurance that by not later than October 30, 2022, at a public meeting of
the board of an LEA, a presentation is provided on how funding received under
section 98c will be used to address learning loss.

e Alink to the plan to address learning loss that is posted on the LEA’s website
and an assurance to post updates to the plan on the LEA’s website.

e A brief description of the district metrics to be used to determine the impact of
the district’s funded initiatives.

MDE will collect statutorily required reports from LEAs to submit on LEAs’ behalf to
the state legislature by August 15, 2023. LEAs receiving section 98c funding will need
to provide a report to MDE by July 14, 2023 on how the funds were spent so MDE can

STATE BOARD OF EDUCATION

CASANDRA E. ULBRICH — PRESIDENT e PAMELA PUGH — VICE PRESIDENT
TIFFANY D. TILLEY — SECRETARY ¢ TOM MCMILLIN — TREASURER
JUDITH PRITCHETT — NASBE DELEGATE
ELLEN COGEN LIPTON e NIKKI SNYDER

608 WEST ALLEGAN STREET e P.O. BOX 30008 e LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909
www.michigan.gov/mde e 833-633-5788


http://www.legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf
http://www.legislature.mi.gov/documents/2021-2022/publicact/pdf/2022-PA-0144.pdf
http://legislature.mi.gov/(S(ipvu4vo3302k3tsoeucskiry))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-388-1698c&highlight=school%20AND%20aid

Page 2
September 1, 2022

compile the information into a single legislative report. The report submitted by LEAs
to MDE must detail the funds spent; services provided; number of students reached;
metrics used to measure outcomes; and the impact on student learning loss. Any
funds distributed will be recaptured if the district does not submit a report by the
deadline date.

ESSER II funds are to address learning loss among students of the LEA, including
low-income students, children with disabilities, English learners, racial and ethnic
minorities, students experiencing homelessness, and children and youth in foster
care by:

e Administering high-quality, reliable assessments that can assess student
academic progress and assist educators in meeting student needs, including
by differentiating instruction.

¢ Implementing evidence-based activities to meet the comprehensive needs of
students.

e Providing information and assistance to parents and families on ways to
support students.

e Tracking student performance and engagement in distance learning.

Section 98c funding will be distributed to each LEA in an equal amount by per pupil in
membership. After the application window closes on November 30, MDE will calculate
the per pupil amount, and it is anticipated that funds will be disbursed to LEAs in the
early winter state school aid payments. The application for section 98c will open on
Thursday, September 15, 2022, at the following link:
https://mdoe.state.mi.us/gems/public/QuestionnaireHome.aspx?code=i4d1itcbt.

MDE will offer a section 98c technical assistance meeting at 2:30 p.m. (EST) on
September 19, 2022, to discuss and further clarify requirements, and a technical
assistance meeting at 11:00 a.m. (EST) on November 4, 2022, to further support
districts in completing the application.

For questions regarding the 98c application, please email mde-gems@michigan.gov.
Questions regarding addressing learning loss may be directed to Ruth Anne Hodges,
hodgesr3@michigan.gov.

cc: Michigan Education Alliance
Confederation of Michigan Tribal Education Departments


https://mdoe.state.mi.us/gems/public/QuestionnaireHome.aspx?code=i4d1tcbt
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZAvdeGhpjwjHdQF-_Aw_fwqQH3pXHr0CGZ3
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZUpf-6orD8rEtdyWmUHjwkVyAv5U6y9FBnq
https://us06web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZUpf-6orD8rEtdyWmUHjwkVyAv5U6y9FBnq
mailto:mde-gems@michigan.gov
mailto:hodgesr3@michigan.gov

Board of Education Update
September 1, 2022

Student Achievement Data Released to Schools

Comparison data was provided by the MAISD to local schools. The chart below combines all
students in grades 3-8 that were proficient or advanced proficient on the ELA and mathematics
M-STEP assessments this past year. Three schools did not test greater than 10 students in any of
those grades during the 2020-2021 school year, which is why those cells are shaded in and do not
have a number included. We will be breaking the data down further by building and grade level
for you at the Board meeting. There are lots of areas to celebrate, with some areas that we must
continue to work on.

] Grade 3-8 Mathematics Grade 3-8 ELA
School Location Name

2020-2021 2021-2022 Trend 2020-2021 2021-2022 Trend
Fruitport 29.6% 34.9% 39.3% 42.8%
Holton 18.9% 24.0% 28.6% 30.7%
Mona Shores 28.1% 30.7% 41.6% 41.9% 0.2%
Montague 38.4% 41.4% 34.0% 40.8%
Muskegon Heights 1.7% 4.6%
Muskegon Montessori 18.6% 36.6%
Muskegon Public 3.7% 4.2% 3.0% 10.1%
North Muskegon 35.6% 42.5%
Dakridge 16.4% 19.7% 33.9% 29.5%
Orchard View 12.9% 17.8% 20.5% 21.2%
Ravenna 16.3% 18.1% 33.6% 32.2%
Reeths-Puffer 28.7% 30.7% 37.9% 34.9%
Three Caks 6.2% 14.2% 11.4% 18.6%
Timberland 7.3% 15.0% 13.9% 18.2%
Whitehall 43.2% 45.4% 52.8% 53.6% 0.8%
Muskegon County Total 21.1% 23.9% 30.2% 30.7% 0.5%




Attachment IX-1

FRUITPORT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
BILL LIST
Month of August 2022

AMOUNT

GENERAL FUND $674,437.11
EARLY CHILDHOOD CENTER $590.01
FOOD SERVICE $43,782.31
COOPERATIVE EDUC (ISD) - TECH MILLAGE $156,837.57

GRAND TOTAL $875,647.00




Fruitport Community Schools Monthly Financial Report 8/31/2022 Attachment 1X-2

GENERAL FUND SCHOOL SERVICE FUNDS CAPITAL PROJECTS Totals
Capital Projects Capital Projects
Food Service Tech/Security ECC Bldg & Site 2017 2021 2010 2012 Refund 2017 2021

Beginning Fund Balance: 4,487,616 594,146 133,486 341,801 1,302,156 2,461,178 6,302,002 171,739 121,133 514,218 145,123
Revenues:
Budgeted revenues: 35,005,914 1,361,744 552,500 784,500 - - - - - -
Actual revenues:

Jul. 23,799 - - 64,041 18 221 72 - - - - 88,152

Aug. 338,825 1,842 3,046 61,224 18 186 84 62,322 56,045 230,010 99,985 853,589
Total Actual Revenues 362,625 1,842 3,046 125,265 36 408 156 62,322 56,045 230,010 99,985 941,741
Pro Rated buget Variance to date: Rev 5,471,694.07 225,114.95 89,037.63 5,485.11
Expenses:
Budgeted expenditures: (35,344,122) (1,575,596) (448,905) (855,138) - - - - - - -
Actual expenditures:®

Jul. (757,247) (13,333) (22,180) (36,635) - - (63,927) - - - (500) (893,822)

Aug. (725,627) (11,214) (116,099) (53,761) . (1,343,270) (18,000) . = = . (2,267,972)
Total Actual Expenses (1,482,875) (24,547) (138,279) (90,396) - (1,343,270) (81,927) - - - (500) (3,161,794)
Pro Rated budget Variance to date: Exp [1,462,468.81] (106,752.78) 100,870.25 19,134.41
Ending Balance to date: 3,367,366 571,441 (1,747) 376,670 1,302,193 1,118,315 6,220,231 234,062 177,178 744,228
Projected Ending Balance: 4,149,408 380,294 237,081 271,163 1,302,156 2,461,178 6,302,002 171,739 121,133 514,218

Revenues over(under) Expenses to date: (2,220,053)

~Fifth Third Bank auto deductions have been included in actual expenditure totals




Project Summary: 2017 Bond Budget Overview
All Work within all buildings

N Total Revised Fiscal Year Fiscal Year . . Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 2022 Fiscal Year
Orig Bid Change Orders Contract 2017 2018 Fiscal Year 2019 J Fiscal Year 2020 2021 YTD 2023 YTD Total Spent

Construction Total - HS 39,814,014.00 2,498,706.00 42,312,720.00 36,863.73 | 2,965,446.81 | 18,607,869.58 | 10,914,209.02 | 6,635,503.21 3,222,940.55 148,799.68 | 42,531,632.58 | 100.52%

FFE - Furniture/fixature/equip 1,299,520.00 0.00 1,299,520.00 - 1,370.85 91,217.60 532,345.40 277,291.30 240,399.91 - 1,142,625.06 87.93%

Alloc. Architect Fees (HS only) + AE Costs 3,113,343.00 0.00 3,113,343.00 1,017,776.57 | 1,355,075.18 99,774.36 82,429.26 302,749.86 123,939.23 - 2,981,744.46 95.77%

CM Fee (HS only) 1,386,606.00 87,456.00 1,474,062.00 - 101,224.00 655,412.00 377,251.00 231,699.00 140,142.00 8,681.00 1,514,409.00 102.74%

Roofs 0.00 274,532.00 274,532.00 223,177.30 - 223,177.30 81.29%

Contingency 3,661,732.00 -2,586,162.00 1,075,570.00 } 29.37% -

TOTAL HS Project 49,275,215.00 0.00 49,549,747.00 1,054,640.30 | 4,423,116.84 | 19,454,273.54 | 11,906,234.68 | 7,447,243.37 3,950,598.99 157,480.68 | 48,393,588.40 97.67%

Cost of Issuance - PFM 350,000.00 -142,209.00 207,791.00 79,757.78 128,033.77 - - - - 207,791.55 100.00%
IShettler Elementary 473,840.00 -168,913.00 304,927.00 - - 86,983.22 160,516.90 10,173.00 23,846.50 - 281,519.62 92.32%
|Beach Elementary 320,393.00 -95,534.00 224,859.00 - 11,996.00 - 15,327.00 3,027.00 151,358.80 - 181,708.80 80.81%
IEdgewood Elementary 228,088.00 0.00 228,088.00 - - 53,318.13 46,784.00 - - 100,102.13 43.89%
Middle School 640,005.00 -10,085.00 629,920.00 - - 31,341.90 227,640.97 335,245.00 - 594,227.87 94.33%

Non HS Furniture 0.00 4,113.00 4,113.00 4,112.55 59,196.21 18,669.80 - 81,978.56 | 1993.16%
Transportation 270,000.00 1,458,022.00 1,728,022.00 229,330.00 202,930.00 - 331,535.00 495,825.00 468,402.00 - 1,728,022.00 100.00%
State Police Grant Expense 0.00 614,016.00 614,016.00 - - - 577,065.95 36,950.00 - 614,015.95 100.00%
Total Bond 51,557,541.00 1,659,410.00 53,491,483.00 1,363,728.08 | 4,770,189.16 | 19,625,916.79 | 13,265,104.50 | 8,387,659.58 4,612,876.09 157,480.68 | 52,182,954.88 97.55%

Estimated Interest Earned (investment) -450,000.00 -1,421,328.00 (1,871,328.00) (33,086.56) (270,225.99)] (1,102,501.63) (421,207.98) (23,385.40) (5,616.72) (6,954.21)) (1,862,978.49) 99.55%
State Police Grant (Revenue) 0.00 -428,030.00 (428,030.00) - - - (368,923.28) (59,107.69) (428,030.97)] 100.00%
VW Reimbursement (103,875.00) (103,875.00)

Total Capital Projects Fund 51,107,541.00 -189,948.00 51,192,125.00 1,330,641.52 | 4,499,963.17 | 18,523,415.16 | 12,474,973.24 | 8,201,291.49 4,607,259.37 150,526.47 | 49,788,070.42 97.26%

Overage (Surplus)

(207,459.00)

(122,875.00)




Project Summary: 2021 Bond Budget Overview

All Work within all buildings

Overage (Surplus)

Treasury App [ Schematic Design Fiscal Year 2021]Fiscal Year 2022]Fiscal Year 2023] Total Spent
Athletic Turf 1,548,523.00 1,601,756.00 - 1,339,052.84 386,143.62 1,725,196.46
Track Replacement 314,353.00 750,000.00 - - - -
Middle School Natatorium to Gym 1,215,355.00 1,215,355.00 - - - -
Total Athletics 3,078,231.00 3,567,111.00 - 1,339,052.84 386,143.62 1,725,196.46
Beach Elementary 352,556.00 352,556.00 - - - -
Shettler Elementary 576,532.00 576,532.00 - - - -
Edgewood Elementary 100,000.00 25,000.00 - - - -
Middle School 1,387,815.00 1,387,815.00 - - - -
High School 1,023,954.00 574,074.00 - 924,074.00 42,025.38 966,099.38
Total Mechanical/Controls/AC 3,440,857.00 2,915,977.00 - 924,074.00 42,025.38 966,099.38
|0veraII Contingency 790,912.00 637,469.00 - - - -
Tower Pinkster Fees 0.00 465,000.00 - 223,547.93 17,874.07 241,422.00
Technology 0.00 0.00 - - - -
INon HS Furniture/Band 150,000.00 150,000.00 - - - -
Transportation 500,000.00 200,000.00 - - - -
Cost of Issuance 60,000.00 74,443.00 30,450.00 43,993.60 - 74,443.60
Total Bond 8,020,000.00 8,010,000.00 30,450.00 2,530,668.37 446,043.07 3,007,161.44
Estimated Interest Earned (investment) -20,000.00 -10,000.00 (2.18) (12,172.73) (18,414.72) (30,589.63)
Total Capital Projects Fund 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 30,447.82 2,518,495.64 427,628.35 2,976,571.81

107.71%
0.00%
0.00%

48.36%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

0.00%
168.29%

33.13%

0.00%

51.92%

#DIV/0!

0.00%
0.00%
100.00%

37.54%
305.90%

37.21%



Fruitport Community Schools
Student Activity Summary Report (Attachment IX-3)
Month ending August 31, 2022

Student Activity Sub Totals

District Wide Student Activity Accounts

Beach Elementary Student Activity Accounts
Edgewood Elementary Student Activity Accounts
High School Class of Student Activity Accounts
High School Athletic Student Activity Accounts
High School Student Activity Accounts

Middle School Student Activity Accounts
Shettler Elementary Student Activity Accounts
Alt. High School Student Activity Accounts
Millionaire Party Accounts

Total Student Activity Fund

BEGINNING BALANCE =~ NET CHANGE ENDING BALANCE
49,842.11 (1,066.50) 48,775.61
26,009.60 (146.18) 25,863.42
54,042.18 (1,794.64) 52,247.54
7,554.47 - 7,554.47
61,264.02 (6,058.43) 55,205.59
172,626.14 3,234.77 175,860.91
31,587.36 744.05 32,331.41
26,624.48 - 26,624.48
600.44 - 600.44
19,555.32 (209.81) 19,345.51
$ 449,706.12 $  (5,296.74) $ 444,409.38




Attachment IX-4
Credit Card and Utilities Detail
For the month ending August 31, 2022

July August September October November December January February March April May June Total
Utilities:
Consumers S 64335 S 612.41 S 1,255.76
Frontier S 4544 S 46.64 S 92.08
MISEC $ 20,984.57 $ 22,461.53 S 43,446.10
Total Utilities $ 21,673.36 S 23,120.58 S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S 44,793.94
Credit Cards:
General Fund S -
Early Childhood S -
Food Service S -
Tech/Security Millage S -
Student Activities S -
Total Credit Card Charges $ - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S -

***Credit cards are always a month behind



Attachment IX-5

August 2022 Transfers
Payment Date Debit Account Desc Credit Account Desc Amount
8/4/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - Payroll - USD S 817,050.48
***8/8/22 Payroll & ORS Transfer
8/5/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - General Account - USD S 550,000.00
***MESSA Transfer
8/18/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - General Account - USD S 400,000.00
***General Account Low
8/18/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - Payroll - USD S 976,808.51
**%8/19/22 Payroll & ORS Transfer
8/25/2022 Checking - General Fnd Inv - USD Checking - General Account - USD S 300,000.00
***General Account Low
8/30/2022 Checking - Trust and Agency - USD Checking - General Account - USD S 61,135.67
***Misc Items - Trust & Agency owes General Fund
8/30/2022 Checking - Debt Retirement Acct - USD Checking - General Account - USD S 214,312.82

***Deposit correction

Total Transfers in August S 3,319,307.48




Attachment 1X-6

Personnel Report — September 19, 2022

It is recommended that the following candidates be offered contracts and/or salary
increases pending final approval from the Board of Education:

Adrienne Hubbard: Adult Education Program Assistant
Tracey Jensen: Kindergarten Teacher - Shettler

Nate Smith: Secondary Student Life / Behavior Interventionist
Amanda Vandenberg: 3" Grade Teacher — Shettler

Janelle Vervoort: Middle School Secretary

The following staff members will Resign/Retire/Reduce Hours/Transfer:

Christina Dillon (ESL Teacher)
Patricia Stasiak (High School Counselor — Effective: January 20, 2023)

The following positions are currently posted:

English as a Second Language (ESL) Teacher
Year Round Childcare Assistant

Bus Driver

Instructional Assistants

Noon Supervisor

School Psychologist



Fruitport Adult Education
3255 E. Pontaluna Road
Fruitport, Ml 49415

Phone: (231) 865-4130

TO: Fruitport School Board of Education Members

FROM: Brenda Baker,
Fruitport Adult Education Director

DATE: September 14,2022
RE: New Hire for Adult Education Program Assistant

The team of Bill Stone, Emily Nieboer, Kristen Lifer and myself interviewed Adrienne Hubbard for our
Program Assistant position. We all agreed that with Adrienne’s educational background, that would be a
perfect fit for our classroom and program. We would like to recommend Adrienne Hubbard for this position.

Adrienne Hubbard
18273 N. Fruitport Rd
Spring Lake, MI 49456

The starting salary for this position is $16.00 per hour. If there are any questions regarding this matter,
please feel free to contact me.

Cc: Jason Kennedy
Katie Shawl

Empowering individuals to
positively impact their world



Adrienne

Contact

18273 N Fruitport Rd

Spring Lake, MI 49456
616-402-6226
tenthhousedesigns@gmail.ccm

Education

Hope College, Holland M| 49423

BA in Atheletic Training
May 1999

Fruitport High School,
Fruitport Ml 49415
Class of 1995

P
Wor~

¢ Key Skills

Communication, Organization,
Multi-Tasking

Objective -
To continue with a career in education: helping students achieve their
goals.

Experience

May 2017 - Present
Full Time Bus Driver « Bus Driver - Spring Lake Public Schools

Safely transport students to and from school, maintain bus routes,
communicate with parents, work within the Transportation Team
setting, maintain current CDL requirements, Union steward for all
Drivers

August 2012 — November 2016
Head Athletic Trainer » Athletic Trainer « Spring Lake Public Schools

Maintain a health and safety standard for all levels of athletics,
maintain medical records, communicate with
coaches/athIetes/parents/doctors, care for all injuries on the playing
field, run a student athletic training program for those interested in
learning

August 2004 — August 2016
Head Athletic Trainer « Athletic Trainer » Allendale Public Schools

Maintain a health and safety standard for all levels of athletics,
maintain medical records, communicate with
coaches/athletes/parents/doctors, care for all injuries on the playing
field, work with Grand Valley State University as a high school
outreach for athletic training students

Communication

Daily communication with students, ages Kindergarten through High
School, on a sctiool bus, maintain communication with Transportation
Office, promptly replying to emails and texts




Memo

To: FCS Board of Education
From: Allison Camp, Curriculum Director
Date: August 24, 2022

Re: Recommendation for Hire

Tracey Jensen — Janelle Duffey, Char Simpson, and myself interviewed 3 candidates
for our open Kindergarten position. From those interviews, we decided to offer the
position to Tracey Jensen. She is a proud graduate of FCS and of GVSU. She comes
to us with 11 years of classroom experience.

| am excited to recommend her for hire!



Tracey Jensen

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TEACHER

Ricktray1774@gmail.com 8
1897 Eloise Dr 0
Muskegon, M| 49444

EDUCATION

Teaching Certificate
Elementary K-5 All Subjects
Michigan

BACHELOR OF SCIENCE
Elementary Education

Grand Valley State University
Allendale, Ml

PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Restorative Justice
MAISD
21/22 school year

MiMTSS/MIBLSI/PBIS
Kent ISD
19/20 school year

Acadience
21/22 school year

How to Plan Differentiated Reading
Instruction (Walpole)

MAISD

21/22 school year

Early Literacy Coaching Project
Essential Instructional Practices in
Early Literacy

MAISD

17/18

4

e

PRO

FESSIONAL PROFILE

Passionate, supportive and dedicated educator with 10+ years in an elementary
classroom. Dedicated to promoting academic performance, fostering social skills and
character development. Adept with classroom management techniques, building
meaningful relationships with students and creating a peaceful environment best suited
for learning and growing. Looking to progress my career and apply my skills within the
Fruitport Community Schools. My alumni and neighborhood community, one | take great

pride in.

TEACHING EXPERIENCE

Muskegon Montessori Academy for Environmental Change | 2013 — Present

Elementary Teacher 1°' — 3" grade

Provide instructional, management, and assessment strategies to meet the
differentiated needs of a 15%-3'@ multi-grade classroom with a class size ranging
from 19-30 students

Develop and execute daily lesson plans in all subject areas and in accordance to
Michigan's Common Core State Standards

Establishing and maintaining parent teacher relationships through weekly
newsletters, positive phone calls home, Remind, 3CX, Family Nights,
Parent/Teacher conferences and daily at pick-up

Works collaboratively with the special education teacher, speech teacher, OT, PT
and staff from the MAISD to provide special education services in an inclusion
room with students on an IEP

Oversaw school operations in the absence of the principal.

Mentor incoming teachers including curriculum development, technology
training, knowledge sharing and classroom management techniques.
Differentiated instruction by providing individual learning plans for each student
based on their knowledge and abilities

Works collaboratively with grade level teachers in PLC meetings using data
(NWEA, Acadience and formative assessments) to drive instruction and create
flexible groups for interventions

Complete daily classroom management task such as attendance and grades
utilizing PowerSchool and PowerTeacher software as well as Swiss Data Entry
Provides positive behavioral support through our school wide PBIS and
Restorative Justice practices

Responsible for the identification, data entry, professional development and
resources provided to families and school educators that are experiencing
homelessness (McKinney Vento)

Attends and actively participates in school wide professional development, MICIP
meetings, child study meetings, PLC's, MTSS Team meetings and IEP meetings
Integration of technology in the classroom utilizing Canvas, Google Doc, Google
Classroom, Freckle, Boom Cards, Khan Academy, Nearpod, Epic and Prodigy



Tracey Jensen

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TEACHER

TEACHING EXPERIENCE (continued)

Three Oaks Public School
Elementary Teacher 2" grade| 2011-2013
Teacher Assistant 1* grade  2009-2011
e Develop and execute daily lesson plans in all subject areas while transitioning to
the use of the Common Core State Standards.
e Complete daily classroom management task such as attendance, grades , bus
assignments, and daily lunch and breakfast accountability.
e Attended and actively participated in school wide professional development, staff
meetings, and IEP meetings.
e Works collaboratively with grade level teachers using NWEA data, DIBLES and
formative assessments to drive instruction and interventions.
e Established and maintained parent teacher relationships through weekly
newsletters, positive phone calls home, Family Nights and Parent/Teacher
conferences.

Ricktray1774@gmail.com 8

1897 Eloise Dr 0
Muskegon, M| 49444

—————— 4y

CERTIFICATIONS

CPI Trained
Crisis Management
Expiration 2/23

CPR/First Aid
Expiration 8/23

NAMC
North American Montessori Center

CORE |
COMPETENCIES |

REFERENCES

Nicole Cooper

Elementary Teacher

Muskegon Montessori Academy for Environmental Change
231.557.8600

Nhutso01@gmail.com

Curriculum Development
Student Involvement

Conflict Resolution/Restorative
Justice

Individual Learning Plans Stacey Sorenson
Elementary Art Teacher
Orchard View
231.343.1431

Stacey.sorensen@orchardview.org

Technology Integration
Positive Behavioral Strategies
Instructional Strategies
Differentiated Instruction .
Savannah Hiipakka
4t-6th grade teacher and mentee
Muskegon Montessori Academy for Environmental Change

231.510.9010
Hiipakk6é@gmail.com

Differentiated Interventions



Nathan Smith

15231 Canterbury Ln.
Grand Haven, Ml 49417
nsmith@fruitportschools.net

August 1, 2022

Jason Kennedy

Superintendent, Fruitport Community Schools
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd
Fruitport, Ml 49415

Dear Mr. Kennedy,

I am writing to express interest in the Student Life Advocate position. | believe
| have the ideal strengths and experiences to help create a positive culture
and climate for the students of Fruitport Community Schools. | place a high
value on teamwork by building relationships and developing leaders. | believe
these values are essential to a position such as this.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Sincerely,

Mg

Nathan Smith



Student Life Advocate / Advisor

Nate Smith

Work with administartion and staff to develop, implement, and sustain positive studnt climate (Trojan Pride), culture (The Trojan Way), and conduct (The Trojan Standard).

CLIMATE - Developing Trojan Pride

CULTURE - Establishing the The Trojan Way

CONDUCT - Maintaining the Trojan Standard

Create and facilitate events that cultivate a positive DEFINE. Articulating what the culture needs to look like is Advocate - Be a vision caster and enlist student behavior to align with the
1 1
student environment and positive student engagement. the beginning of vision casting. Trojan Way - Respectful. Responsible. Resilient.
Accountability - Empower and equip students who have fallen short of the
Support staff with the promotion, strategic planning, and ALIGN. Adjusting old beliefs, old behaviors, and old thought Trojan Way by coaching them, assigning restorative consequences, and using
2 2
social media support of co-curricular activities. patterns allow the vision to take root and grow. proactive dialogue to re-align them to core values of Respect, Responsibility,
and Resiliency.
Strategically develop school-wide initiatives to promote
. L . . REFINE. Remove unwanted elements and make small Acknowledge - encourage and highlight behaviors with positive reinforcement
3 ischool pride, positive interactions, and strong connections 3
changes to keep the cultural vision moving forward. that align with the Trojan Way of respectfulness, responsibility, and resiliency.
as the FHS community.

ACTIONS - Trojan Pride

create events

support staff

Homecoming activities - impacting current students and

alumni

ACTIONS - The Trojan Way

Host school-wide assemblies with outside presenters to

motivate and inspire our students.

ACTIONS - The Trojan Standard

Establish a fun, current videos, posters, social media posts that demonstrate

behaviors that align with the Trojan Standard.

Community Service - larger, focused activities to impact our

community

Establish "Trojan Training" - a short weekly

conversation/training around the core value of the month.

Implement disciplinary consequences when behavior goes against the Trojan

Standards of Responsibility, Resilience, and Respect.

Highlight Facility that promote and encourage Trojan Pride

with gift certificates, special privileges, etc.

Strategic Campaign on social media platforms promoting

academics, arts, athletic achievement

Create "wearable" and "promotional” items for students to

be visual vision carriers

Expand and enhance the current PBIS initiatives.




Memo

To: FCS Board of Education
From: Allison Camp, Curriculum Director
Date: August 12, 2022

Re: Recommendation for Hire

Amanda VandenBerg — Janelle Duffey, a team of teachers from Shettler, and myself
held 2 rounds of interviews for the candidates interested in the open 3" grade teaching
position at Shettler. Amanda VandeBerg was the top candidate chosen by the
committee. She comes to use with multiple years of experience, a Bachelor of Science
degree from Baker College and a Masters of Literacy from Western Michigan University

| am excited to recommend her for hire!



Amanda P. VandenBerg
4951 Dorchester Drive
Norton Shores, Ml 49441
Cell: (231) 343-5759
Email: vandenberg_amanda@yahoo.com
Objective
Experienced teacher of 9 years with strong organizational and communication skills with a high
degree of enthusiasm seeking to further my career in elementary education that enables me to
continue to create, design, and implement differentiated instruction lessons that are modified and
adapted to the unique needs of all my students.

Education & Honors

Baker College (231)777-5200

1903 Marquette Avenue Spring 2007 to June 2013
Muskegon, M1 49442 GPA- 3.56 on 4.0 scale
Bachelor of Science Elementary Education RX, ZA

Social Studies Major Early Childhood Education

Dean’s List (2008- 2011)
President’s List (2011-2013)

Western Michigan Univeristy (269)387-1000

1903 Western Michigan Avenue Summer 2017 to December 2019
Kalamazoo, M1 49008 GPA-3.85

Masters of Literacy Studies BR

Reading Specialist Endorsement- pending test

Certification

Passed MTTC tests: Basic, Elementary, Early Childhood Education, and Social Studies
Passed PRAXIS tests: Basic Skills: Reading, Writing, and Math

Provisional Certification as of June 2013

Professional Certification as of January 2018

Reading Specialist MTTC test: Scheduled for Summer of 2022

Education Work Experiences
August of 2019 to Present Muskegon Public Schools
Muskegon, Ml
15t Grade Teacher
° Taught 6 and 7 year olds
° Engaged in and attended several trainings including: using technology in the classroom,
curriculum trainings (including SFA and EDM), Kagan, Differentiated Instruction, Highly
Effective Small Group Instruction, Discipline Procedures

August of 2018 to May 2019 Grand Rapids Public Schools
Grand Rapids, Ml
GSRP Teacher
° Taught 4 and 5 year olds
° Attended several trainings including: CPI, Teaching Early Numbers, PBIS, SEEDS
° Worked on social skills, developmental skills, large-motor skills, and small-motor skills.



August of 2014 to August 2018 White Lake Community Ed.
Whitehall, Ml

GSRP Teacher

° Taught 4 and 5 year olds

° Attended several trainings including: CPI, Teaching Early Numbers, PBIS, SEEDS

° Worked on social skills, developmental skills, large-motor skills, and small-motor skills.
September of 2013 to June 2014 Mona Shores Community Education
Muskegon, Ml

Preschool Teacher

° Taught 3 year old preschool.

° Introduced shapes, colors, Zoophonics, and numbers.
° Attended Zoophonics training.

Education Experiences

240+ hours in Urban and Suburban Areas including:

Student Teaching at Ravenna Elementary

Grade: 1% and 3rd

° 100+ hours of observation before student teaching

Created unit and instructed four lessons from unit.

25 weeks of Student Teaching

10+ weeks of Full Responsibility- Planned, created, and instructed all curriculum
Attended Staff meetings monthly and parent teacher conferences, Diddles and MAPS
Course on Testing, technology training for iPad use in the classroom

° Collaborated and developed procedures and student consequences cooperatively with
teacher

®e ¢ ¢ O

Walden Green Montessori School

Observed student learning, behaviors, and procedures

Bluffton Elementary: Kindergarten

Conducted Circle time, sing songs, abc’s

Read books

Shettler Elementary: 4™ Grade

Observed classroom management techniques

Assisted students during independent work times

Jeffers Elementary: 1% Grade and Resource Room

Coordinated sight word extra support

Assisted with Math extra support

Supported Reading lessons

Tested Reading fluency

Kent City Migrant Head Start (Telamon): Preschool

Tutored ABCs using Zoophonics

Reviewed shapes in Spanish and English

Aided with recess duty

McLaughlin: Kindergarten-1 Special Ed.

Tutored students individually on writhing letters, shapes, and colors in English and
panish

Orchard View Alternative Ed.: 10", 11™ and 12" Science and Social Studies

Guided students through Science worksheets and Social Studies worksheets

Elaborated Science and Social Studies concepts

OO0Ce WOe OO0OOCe OOOCOe OOe OOCe Oe



o Whitehall Elementary: 3" Grade
o) Collaborated students in cooperative learning groups
o) Tutored individually with students that need extra help in math

Full work history available upon request.

References

Mr. Luis Gomez Ms. Sandy Ebright
Assistant Principle and Special 1t Grade Teacher
Education Director Marquette Elementary
Marquette Elementary 480 Bennett Street
480 Bennett Street Muskegon, M1 49442
Muskegon, M1 49442 (989)763-0350
(616)239-5932 sandyel37@gmail.com
Av0049@gmail.com

Ms. Kelly Dye Mrs. Deanna Belasco
School Social Worker LMSW Classroom Associate
Reeths-Puffer Elementary Preschool

874 E. Giles Road 2885 Hyde Park Rd.
North Muskegon, M1 49445 Muskegon, M1 49445
(231)855-0210 (231)740-2776

dyek@reeths-puffer.org

Mrs. Stacie Bowden

Middle School Special Education Teacher
Caledonia Public Schools

9757 Duncan Lake Avenue SE
Caledonia, M1 49316

(231)903-7164

schulstac@gmail.com



JANELLE VERVOORT

3619 Whispering Woods Dr Muskegon M| 49444 616/808/9648
Janelleh1821@gmail.com

Result-oriented, energetic professional with over 15 years of experience of customer experience, cash
handling and team-leading. Looking to obtain a position in a fast-paced organization where excellent
leadership skill and ability to motivate will be utilized to achieve organizational objectives.

EXPERIENCE

SEPTEMBER 2018- PRESENT
VP OF OPERATIONS, BEST FINANCIAL CREDIT UNION

-Product Leader for several ongoing projects

-In charge of daily reporting, daily transaction reporting and customer complaints
-New hire trainer and backup for HR and Payroll

-Responsible for implementation and training of new procedures

AUGUST 2015-DECEMBER 2017

ASSISTANT MANAGER/BOOKKEEPER, CHOICE ONE BANK

-Opening and closing of accounts

-Responsible for coaching teller staff on referrals and sales conversations
-Responsible for monthly branch audits, scheduling and reconciliation of daily activity
-In charge of customer communication including problem resolution

SEPTEMBER 2013-MARCH 2015

ASSISTANT MANAGER, INDEPENDENT BANK

-Opening and closing of accounts

-Teller referral coach and team-lead

-Responsible for monthly branch audits

-In charge of customer communication including problem resolution

APRIL 2006- SEPTEMBER 2013

ASSISTANT MANAGER, CHASE BANK

-Lead Teller and Cash Vault Custodian

-Teller Team Lead

-Responsible for monthly branch audits and scheduling

-In charge of customer communication including problem resolution

EDUCATION

MAY 2003
HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, COOPERSVILLE, Ml

-College Prep



SKILLS

e QOperations Management e Office/Team Management
® Process Improvement e Customer Service
e Verbal/written communication e QOrganization



8/26/22, 9:17 AM Fruitport Community Schools Mail - letter of resignation

‘Qv‘g‘% Kennedy, Jason <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>

letter of resignation

Dillon, Christina <cdillon@fruitportschools.net> Tue, Aug 23, 2022 at 11:54 AM
To: Allison Camp <acamp@fruitportschools.net>, Jason Kennedy <jkennedy@fruitportschools.net>

Dear Allison and Jason,

| am writing to give official notification of my resignation as K-12 Multilingual Language Teacher. | am digesting the most
bittersweet feelings and choking down some tears, but my move to return to teaching near my home in Grand Rapids
makes so much sense.

After Allison and | spoke yesterday, taking into account the district | am moving to already started school yesterday, today
will be my last day present. Allison and | will meet today to cover a few bases and beginning-of-the-year groundwork for
our Multilingual learners.

Thank you so much for the opportunity to serve Fruitport Community Schools.

With deepest appreciation and gratitude,
Christina Dillon

Christina Dillon
Multilingual Language Teacher
Fruitport Community Schools
Office 231.865.3128 ext. 3026

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=13ac74591f&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1741967915504841069&simpl=msg-f%3A17419679155... 1/1



Patricia Sue Stasiak
11409 Lakeshore Dr.
Grand Haven, M1 49417

September 6, 2022

Mr. Jason Kennedy
Superintendent

Fruitport Community Schools
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd.
Fruitport, M1 49415

Dear Mr. Kennedy,

Please accept this letter as my formal notice of resignation from my high school counseling
position at Fruitport Community Schools. My last day of employment will be January 20, 2023.

I have truly enjoyed working here with you and this amazing team, and | look forward to a
wonderful semester.

Thank you for all of your help and support!
| wish you all the very best.

Sincerely,

Patricia Stasiak AQ%Z'Q

O‘f[ N / 2022



Fruitport Community Schools
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, August 24, 2022 — 6:00 p.m.

Meeting Location:
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office

Board of Education Meeting Room
3255 E. Pontaluna Rd.
Fruitport, MI 49415

L

II.

I11.

IV.

CALL TO ORDER: The Special Meeting of the Board of Education was called to order
at 6:02 p.m. by Board President, Dave Hazekamp.

ROLL CALL: Present — Elroy Buckner, Tim Burgess, Kris Cole, Susan Franklin, Dave
Hazekamp, Steve Kelly, and JB Meeuwenberg.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Item 22-123. MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Cole to approve the agenda as
presented.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.
REMARKS FROM THE PUBLIC: None

GENERAL BOARD BUSINESS:

A. Special Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2022 (6:00 p.m.)

Item 22-124. MOTION by Buckner, SECOND by Cole to approve the Special
Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2022 (6:00 p.m.), as presented.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.

B. Special Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2022 (6:30 p.m.)

Item 22-125. MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Burgess to approve the Special
Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2022 (6:30 p.m.), as presented.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.



VI

Regular Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2022

Item 22-126. MOTION by Kelly, SECOND by Franklin to approve the Regular
Board Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2022, as presented.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.

Updates to Middle School Handbook

Item 22-127. MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Meeuwenberg to approve the
Middle School Handbook, as presented.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.

Updates to Virtual Programming for 2022-2023

Item 22-128. MOTION by Franklin, SECOND by Meeuwenberg to approve the
Muskegon County Virtual Academy for use as a virtual option for students in
grades 6-8, in addition to students in grades 3-5 for the 2022-2023 academic year,
as presented.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.

Resume Student Discipline Hearing (Postponed on August 15, 2022)

Item 22-129. MOTION by Kelly, SECOND by Meeuwenberg to approve the
Board Resolution for Student Discipline for Student 081522-02. Student
081522-02 will be placed on suspension, be required to write a restorative
practice five (5) paragraph or greater reflective essay, and complete an additional
sixteen (16) hours of community service, as discussed.

MOTION CARRIED 7-0.

(Note: Tim Burgess left the meeting at 7:00 p.m.)

G. Other
The Board discussed an update on the construction projects taking place
throughout the District, and the need to consider a petition for student
reinstatement that was received by the District.
ADJOURNMENT

Item 22-130. MOTION by Buckner, SECOND by Franklin to adjourn.
MOTION CARRIED: 6-0; 1 absent

The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m.



Respectfully submitted,
Steve Kelly, Board Secretary

Danielle VanderMeulen, Recording Secretary



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5200 Student Conduct and Discipline
5206-F-9 Board Resolution: Physical Assault against Student

Fruitport Community Schools
BOARD RESOLUTION FOR STUDENT DISCIPLINE

A special meeting of the Board of Education (the “Board”) was held in the Boardroom,
within the boundaries of the District, on the 15" day of August, 2022, at 6:30 o’clock in
the p.m. (the “Meeting”).

The Meeting was called to order by Dave Hazekamp, Board President.

Present: Elroy Buckner, Tim Burgess, Kris Cole, Susan Franklin, Dave Hazekamp,
Steve Kelly, JB Meeuwenberg.

Absent: None

The Meeting of the Board was postponed until a subsequent special meeting of the Board,
held in the Boardroom, within the boundaries of the District, on the 24" day of August,
2022 at 6:00 o’clock in the p.m. (the “Meeting”).

The Meeting was called to order by Dave Hazekamp, Board President.

Present: Elroy Buckner, Tim Burgess, Kris Cole, Susan Franklin, Dave Hazekamp,
Steve Kelly, JB Meeuwenberg.

Absent: None

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member Steve Kelly and
supported by Member JB Meeuwenberg:

WHEREAS:

1. The administration has recommended that, pursuant to Revised School Code
Section 1310(1), a student whose identity is known to the Board (the “Student”) be
suspended for physically assaulting another student.

2. The Revised School Code defines physical assault as “intentionally causing or
attempting to cause physical harm to another through force or violence.”

3. School administrators notified the Student’s parent/guardian of the specific charge
underlying the disciplinary recommendation, as well as the date, time, and place of the
disciplinary hearing.

4. Pursuant to the request of the Student’s parent/guardian, and as authorized by
Michigan Open Meetings Act Section 8(1)(b), MCL 15.268(1)(b), the disciplinary hearing
on August 15, 2022 was conducted in a closed session meeting of the Board. As

o2022 [T THRUN Page 1 of 3

Law FIrRM, P, C.
FOLICY SERVICE



5206-F-9 Board Resolution: Physical Assault against Student

described above, the deliberation of the Board was postponed until a successor special
meeting of the Board was held on August 24, 2022, which was conducted in open session.

5. The hearing afforded the Student and the Student’s representatives an opportunity
to respond to the charge and to present pertinent evidence for the Board’s consideration.

6. The Board has carefully considered all of the evidence produced in this student
discipline hearing.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. A preponderance of the evidence establishes that between January 1, 2017 and
January 1, 2019, the Student physically assaulted another student on school property in
violation of state law and the Student Code of Conduct.

2. Based on careful consideration of all of the following factors, the Board determines
that suspension is warranted:

The Student’s age;

The Student’s disciplinary history;

Whether the Student has a disability;

The seriousness of the behavior;

Whether the behavior posed a safety risk;

Whether restorative practices are a better option; and
Whether lesser interventions would address the behavior.

3. The Student is suspended and may return to school on Monday, September 12,
2022. The Student must also complete a restorative practice five (5) paragraph of greater
reflective essay, and complete at least sixteen (16) hours of additional community service.

4. During the time of the suspension, the Student may not be on school grounds or
attend any functions at the District without prior written approval from an appropriate
administrator.

5. Consistent with Revised School Code Sections 11a and 1311(1), the Board finds
that the interests of the District are served by this resolution.

6. Administrators are directed and authorized to implement all terms of this resolution
and are delegated all necessary authority to do so.

7. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with provisions of
this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

o2022 [T THRUN Page 2 of 3

Law FIrRM, P, C.
FOLICY SERVICE



5206-F-9 Board Resolution: Physical Assault against Student

Ayes: Elroy Buckner, Tim Burgess, Kris Cole, Susan Franklin, Dave Hazekamp,
Steve Kelly, JB Meeuwenberg

Nays: None
Resolution declared adopted.

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary to the Board of Education of
Fruitport Community Schools, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and
complete copy of a resolution adopted by said Board at the Meeting, the original of which
is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the meeting
was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267,
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

£ i

Steve Kelly, Board Secretary

02022 [T THRUN Page 3 of 3

Law FIrRM, P, C.
FPOLICY SERVICE



AGENDA SECTION: General Board Business

BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

To: Board of Education Attachment #: X-1

From: Jason Kennedy

Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:
Board / Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy Update

Background Information:

The Board has adopted policies developed by Thrun Law Firm. Annually, Thrun Law Firm provides policy
updates to districts updating their policies to comply with any changes in state or federal law. The Board has
been provided with each of these policy updates, including a red line version of the policies and policy changes
through multiple reading opportunities. It is the recommendation of the Superintendent that the Board approve
the second reading of the 2022 Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy updates, as discussed.

Financial Impact:
None

Recommended Action:
To approve the second reading of the 2022 Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy updates, as discussed.

Action Taken:
Vote: __ Buckner ____Burgess ___Cole ___ Franklin

___ Hazekamp __ Kelly ____ Meeuwenberg




JULY 2022 UPDATE SUMMARY

BOARD POLICY MANUAL

Policy

Revision(s) Made

2000 Series

2401 Board Member Elections

Minor language clarification(s).

2405 Board Officers

(1) Updated to maintain consistency of Option 2;
(2) Minor language clarification(s).

2406 Board Officers Duties

Minor language clarification(s).

2501 Meetings

(1) Added references to rescheduled regular
meetings;

(2) Added a provision regarding accommodating
individuals with disabilities.

2501A Electronic Board of Education
Meetings

(1) Deleted sunseted language re: reasons for
conducting electronic board meetings;

(2) Added a provision regarding accommodating
individuals with disabilities.

2501A-F-1 Electronic Board of Education
Meeting Checklist

(1) Deleted sunseted language re: reasons for
conducting electronic board meetings;

(2) Added a provision regarding accommodating
individuals with disabilities.

2501A-F-2 Advance Notice of Remote
Participation and Remote Attendance for
Individual Board Member - Script

Deleted sunseted language re: board member
remote participation in board meetings.

2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meeting Notice

(1) Deleted sunseted language re: reasons for
conducting electronic board meetings;

(2) Added a provision regarding accommodating
individuals with disabilities;

(3) Added references to rescheduled regular
meetings.

3000 Series

3105 Visitors and Volunteers

Clarified volunteer driver language.

3106-F Booster Clubs PTOs and Other
Support Groups

(1) Clarified scope beyond "parent/guardian” groups;
(2) Clarified limited purpose of district information.

3109 Curricular Animals

(1) Clarified distinction between therapy dog and
emotional support animal,

(2) Removed option to allow emotional support
animal other than if required by law.

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

Page 1 of 5




3118 Title IX Sexual Harassment

(1) Added possible sanctions;
(2) Clarified appeal deadline is in calendar days.

3301 Purchasing and Procurement

Removed majority of federal requirements.

3301A Purchasing and Procurement with
Federal Funds

Added new federal requirements policy.

3302 Acquisition of Real Property

Acquisition must have legal scope "and" purpose.

3303 Gifts and Donations

Added optional provision re: soliciting
donations/crowdfunding.

3303-F Gifts and Donations Form

Clarified SD is not 501(c)(3).

3304 Use of District Property

Broadened process for setting rental amounts.

3305 Sale or Lease of District Property

Clarified "public purpose" restrictions.

3306 Construction Bidding

Added reference to new federal requirements policy.

3307 Construction Administration

Clarified architectural and supervision requirements
apply to “construction” projects” (as defined in MCL
388.851).

3308 Distribution of Printed Material and
Advertising in School

Revised heading.

3409 Face Mask Requirement

Policy removed. OSHA withdrew effective 1/26/22.

4000 Series

4101 Non-Discrimination

Whistleblower Protection Act added to the list of
statutes.

4102 Anti-Harassment Including Sexual
Harassment

Added Section C on retaliation against an individual
who participates in an investigation and false
complaints or statements.

4103 Whistleblowers Protection

The removal of “reasonably” from “reasonably
suspected violation” is based on the absence of a
reasonableness requirement for a suspected
violation of a federal, state, or local law, regulation or
rule in the Whistleblowers’ Protection Act and as
interpreted by the courts.

4105 Workplace Accommodations for

Employees and Applicants with Disabilities

Added cross reference to 2501 regarding requesting
an accommodation at a public meeting.

4108 Union Activity and Representation

Amended language clarifies standard for union
representation at a meeting with an employee.

4109 Break Time for Nursing Mothers

New optional language allows for accommodation for
nursing mothers for longer than one year.

4111 Professional Development

Additional language recognizes that the use of
professional development credited towards
instructional time may require the District to schedule
additional instructional days if the District exceeds
the maximum number of cancellation days during a

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

Page 2 of 5




school year. This update adds the authority to
extend the school calendar if legally necessary to
receive full state aid.

4201 Employee Ethics and Standards

Added language regarding under ethics regarding
(1) time and effort reporting and reference to new
administrative guideline; (2) relationships with other
employees or contractors that the employee is
supervising; and (3) engaging in inappropriate
conduct on school property.

4201-AG Employee Ethics and Standards

Added administrative guideline on time and effort
reporting.

4202 Children's Protective Services
Reporting and Student Safety and Welfare

Updated language in response to amendments
made to the Child Protection Law (MCL 722.623)
effective 6/21/22. The list of mandated reporters was
expanded as follows: physical therapist, physical
therapist assistant, occupational therapist, and
athletic trainer.

4205 Hiring and Background Checks

The removal of “job-related” from “other job-related
criteria” gives the Board discretion to consider a
broader range of criteria, including non-job-related
criteria, in hiring decisions.

4210 Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace;
Tobacco Product Restrictions

The policy was revised to prohibit the manufacturing,
selling, soliciting, dispensing, and distributing of
tobacco products and in furtherance of the State
Board of Education’s policy on tobacco-free schools.

4213 Anti-Nepotism

Clarified the definition of "significant other".

4217 Social Media

The policy was updated to address (1) endorsement
of political candidates and parties, (2) appropriately
communicate with District stakeholders and
community members, and (3) engage in behavior
that disrupts or adversely impacts the efficacy of the
District's operations.

4218 Employee Dress and Appearance

Revised dress code to limit political messaging
except with approval.

4220 Use or Disposal of District Property

Added option of allowing employee use of district
property if pre-approved by the Superintendent.

4222 Unauthorized Work Stoppage and
Strikes

Amendments aligned the definition of work stoppage
to align with decisions from the Michigan
Employment Relations Commission.

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

Page 3 of 5




4226 Temporary COVID-19 Vaccination,
Testing, and Face-Covering

Policy removed because the vaccination requirement
that this policy was modeled after was withdrawn.

4227 False Medicaid Claims

Added this new optional policy to address false
claims under Medicaid.

4301 Definition

Amended optional language and clarified
employment standard for Non-Exempt Staff.

4303 Compensatory Time

The sentence was added at the end of “A.” to give
the District flexibility in offering compensatory time.
“Within a classification” was added to “G.” to clarify
that the District, in assigning overtime, will not
discriminate among Non-Exempt staff only within an
employee classification.

4304 Timekeeping and Payroll Information

The title of the policy was changed from
“Timekeeping and Payroll Information” to “Employee
Timekeeping Responsibilities” as the policy does not
address payroll information.

4306 Assignment and Transfer

“Personnel management” was added as a basis to
assign and transfer Non-Exempt Staff to allow for
assignment and transfer based on personnel-related
matters, such as discipline.

4308 Reduction and Recall of Non-Exempt
Staff

“Personnel management” was added as an
appropriate basis for a reduction in force of a Non-
Exempt Staff member to give the Bord discretion to
consider personnel-related matters in making
reduction in force decisions.

4309 Discipline and Termination

Minor language clarification(s).

4401 Definition

Minor language clarification(s).

4403 Performance Evaluation

“All” was added before “probationary teachers” to
emphasize that all probationary teachers shall
receive an individualized development plan.

4405 Reduction in Force and Recall

Added "catch all" paragraph for consideration
regarding whether a teacher is qualified.

4406 Professional Improvement Sabbaticals

Added sentence concerning Letters of Agreement
pertaining to sabbatical leave.

4407 Discipline

Updated language regarding when an employee
may have representation at a meeting with the
District.

4503 Performance Evaluation

Clarified that Non-Instructional Administrators,
Supervisors, and Directors may be evaluated based
on an evaluation instrument that the Board has
determined to be appropriate.

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

Page 4 of 5




4504 Performance Based Compensation

Added reference to individual employment contract.

4506 Discipline

Updated language regarding when an employee
may have representation at a meeting with the
District.

4601 General

The update authorizes the Superintendent to take
action in response to a lawful order or to implement
rules to protect health and safety. The amendment
also authorizes the Superintendent to draft
administrative guidelines and forms consistent with
the Board's policies.

4602 Hiring

Included information on duration of superintendent
contracts, interim superintendents, and hiring
decision criteria.

5000 Series

5101 Student Expression

Updated consistent with U.S. Supreme Court
decision in Mahanoy Area Sch Dist v B.L., 594 US
__(2021).

5104 Age of Majority

Revised to make certain provisions optional, not
mandatory.

5206 Student Discipline

Added reminder that Board must also adopt
companion policies (5206A, B, C, and E; 5206D
remains optional).

5305 Schools-of-Choice

Added line about non-choice student enrollment.

5506 Field Trips

Streamlined chaperone requirements.

5710 Student Suicide Prevention

Updated to remove previous effective date.

5711 Toilet Training

Revised to provide greater flexibility for schools.

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

Page 5 of 5




The highlighted Policy titles are optional policies. If the District elects not to adopt one or
more of these Policies, please mark the Policy as “Intentionally Left Blank” after the Policy
number.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SERIES 1000: POLICY OVERVIEW, MISSION STATEMENT, AND DEFINITIONS

1100 Policy Overview
1101 General Policy Statement

1200 Mission Statement
1201 Mission Statement

1300 Creation, Amendment, and Posting of Policies
1301 Creation, Amendment, and Posting of Policies

1400 Definitions
1401 Definitions

SERIES 2000: BYLAWS

2100 Official Description, Purpose, and Board Organization
2101 Roles of the Board and Board Members
2102 School District’'s Legal Name and Status
2103 School District Boundaries
2104 Student Representative on the Board or Intentionally Left Blank

2200 Board Powers
2201 Board Powers
2202 Authority to Enter into Contracts
2203 Authority to Establish Curriculum

2300 Board Member Conduct
2301 Conflict of Interest
2302 Board Code of Ethics
2303 Violation of Board Code of Ethics
2304 Gifting
2305 Board Member Reimbursement and Travel Expenses
2306 Board Member Compensation or Intentionally Left Blank

2400 Board Membership and Duties
2401 Board Member Elections
2402 Acceptance of Office and Oath of Office
2403 Board Member Terms of Office
2404 Board Member Vacancies and Appointments
2405 Board Officers
2406 Board Officers’ Duties

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
2501 Meetings
2501A Electronic Board of Education Meetings
2501A-F-1 Electronic Board Meetings Checklist
2501A-F-2 Electronic-Meetings-Advance Notice of Remote Participation and-Seript
2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meetings Notice
2501A-F-4 Electronic-Meetings-Affidavit of Website Posting of Public Notice of
Electronic Board Meeting
2502 Board Meeting Agenda
2503 Voting Requirements
2504 Public Participation at Board Meetings
2505 Board Committees
2506 Organizational Meetings

SERIES 3000: OPERATIONS, FINANCE, AND PROPERTY

3100 General Operations
3101 Insurance
3102 Smoking, Tobacco Products, Drugs, and Alcohol
3103 Copyright Compliance
3104 School Cameras and Monitoring
3105 Visitors and Volunteers
3106 Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups
3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups
3107 Use of Detection Dogs
3108 Service Animals
3109 Nen-Service-Curricular Animals
3110 Data Breach Response
3111 Drones
3112 Hours and Days of School Operations
3113 Social Security Numbers
3114 Litigation
3115 Nondiscrimination and Retaliation
3116 District Technology and Acceptable Use
3117 Intellectual Property
3118 Title IX Sexual Harassment Policy
3118-F-1 Formal Complaint
3119 Experimental or Pilot Programs or Intentionally Left Blank
3120 Temporary Head Start Vaccination and Mask Requirements or Intentionally Left
Blank

3200 Finance and Borrowing
3201 Accounting
3202 Budget and Truth in Budgeting/Taxation Hearings
3203 Deposits
3204 Investment of Funds
3205 Disbursements

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



3206 Property Tax Levies

3207 School Activities Fund

3208 Surety Bonds of District Officials or Intentionally Left Blank

3209 Debit/Credit Cards

3210 Borrowing

3211 Post-Issuance Tax Compliance

3212 Post-Issuance Disclosure Compliance

3213 Electronic Transactions of Funds and Automated Clearing House Arrangements

3300 Facilities, Real and Personal Property
3301 Purchasing and Procurement
3301A Purchasing and Procurement with Federal Funds
3302 Acquisition of Real Property
3303 Gifts and Donations
3303-F Gifts and Donations Form
3304 Use of District Property
3305 Sale or Lease of District Property
3306 Construction Bidding
3307 Construction Administration
3308 Distribution of Printed Material and Advertising in School
3309 Bus Inspections

3400 School Safety and Security
3401 School Cancellation, Delay, and Early Dismissal
3402 Dirills, Plans, and Reports
3403 Reporting Accidents
3404 Communicable Diseases
3405 Bloodborne Pathogens
3406 Integrated Pest Management
3407 Asbestos Management
3408 Firearms and Weapons

3409 Face-Mask-Reguirementor-Intentionally Left Blank

3500 FOIA Requests and Record Retention
3501 Freedom of Information Act
3501-AG Freedom of Information Act Procedures and Guidelines
3502 Record Retention

SERIES 4000: DISTRICT EMPLOYMENT

4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4101 Non-Discrimination
4102 Anti-Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment
4103 Whistleblowers’ Protection
4104 Employment Complaint Procedure
4104-F-1 Discrimination-Retaliation Complaint Form
4105 Workplace Accommodations for Employees and Applicants with Disabilities

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



4106 Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
4107 Military Leave

4108 Union Activity and Representation

4109 Break Time for Nursing Mothers

4110 Reimbursement

4111 Professional Development

4112 Extracurricular Employees or Volunteers

4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
4201 Employee Ethics and Standards
4201-AG Employee Ethics and Standards — Time and Effort Reporting
4202 Children’s Protective Services (CPS) Reporting and Student Safety and Welfare
4203 Corporal Punishment and Limited Use of Reasonable Force
4203-AG Corporal Punishment and Limited Use of Reasonable Force
4204 Confidentiality of Student Information
4205 Hiring and Background Checks
4205-AG-1 Criminal Justice Information Security (Non-Criminal Justice Agency)
4206 Employment Contracts
4207 Third-Party Contracting of Non-Instructional Support Services
4208 Applicant and Employee Criminal Arrest, Charge, Conviction
4209 Prohibition Against Abortion Referrals and Assistance
4210 Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace; Tobacco Product Restrictions
4211 Alcohol and Controlled Substances for Transportation Employees Subject to the
Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act or Intentionally Left Blank
4212 Employee Assistance Program
4213 Anti-Nepotism
4214 Outside Activities and Employment
4215 District Technology and Acceptable Use Policy
4216 Personal Communication Devices
4217 Social Media
4218 Employee Dress and Appearance
4219 Attendance
4220 Use or Disposal of District Property
4221 Employee Speech
4222 Unauthorized Work Stoppage and Strikes
4223 Resignation
4224 Personnel Files and Payroll Information
4225 Temporary Remote Work or Intentionally Left Blank
4226 Temporary-COVID-19-Vaccination,Testing,and-Face-Covering-or-Intentionally
Left Blank
4227 False Medicaid Claims or Intentionally Left Blank

4300 Non-Exempt Staff
4301 Definition
4302 Minimum Wage and Overtime

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



4303 Compensatory Time or Intentionally Left Blank

4304 Employee Timekeeping-and-Payrol-nformation Responsibilities

4305 Michigan Paid Medical Leave Act (MPMLA) or Intentionally Left Blank
4306 Assignment and Transfer

4307 Performance Evaluation

4308 Reduction and Recall of Non-Exempt Staff

4309 Discipline and Termination

4400 Professional Staff
4401 Definition
4402 Assignment and Transfer
4403 Performance Evaluation
4404 Performance Based Compensation for Teachers
4405 Reduction in Force and Recall
4406 Professional Improvement Sabbaticals
4407 Discipline
4408 Termination
4409 Non-Renewal

4500 Administrators/Supervisors
4501 Definition
4502 Assignment and Transfer
4503 Performance Evaluation
4504 Performance Based Compensation
4505 Reduction and Recall
4506 Discipline
4507 Termination
4508 Administrator Non-Renewal

4600 The Superintendent
4601 General
4602 Hiring
4603 Performance Evaluation
4604 Absence/Incapacity
4605 Gifts and Donations
4606 Discipline and Termination
4607 Non-Renewal

SERIES 5000: STUDENTS, CURRICULUM, AND ACADEMIC MATTERS

5100 Student Rights
5101 Student Expression
5102 Lockers
5103 Search and Seizure
5104 Age of Majority
5105 Collaboration with Outside Entities
5106 Transgender Students or Intentionally Left Blank

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
lllllllllll



5200 Student Conduct and Discipline
5201 Investigations, Arrests, and Other Law Enforcement Contact
5202 Unlawful Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Against Students
5203 Hazing
5204 Student Appearance and Dress Code
5205 Student Handbooks
5206 Student Discipline
5206A Due Process
5206B Students with Disabilities
5206C Reinstatement Following Expulsion
5206D Enrollment Following Misconduct at Another Public or Nonpublic School or
Intentionally Left Blank
5206E Suspension from Class, Subject, or Activity by Teacher
5207 Anti-Bullying Policy
5208 Student Acceptable Use and Internet Safety Policy
5209 Student Use of Cell Phone and Electronic Communication Devices
5210 GPS Tracking Device with Audio Surveillance Capabilities or Intentionally Left
Blank
5211 Emergency Use of Seclusion and Restraint
5212 Registered Sex Offenders
5213 Personal Protection Orders Against Students

5300 Student Enrollment, Attendance, and Records
5301 Compulsory Attendance, Absenteeism, and Truancy
5302 Enrollment in Kindergarten or Intentionally Left Blank
5303 Student Enrollment and Withdrawal
5304 Nonpublic School Students; Part-Time Attendance
5305 Schools-of-Choice
5306 Foreign Students
5307 Homeless Students
5308 Protection of Pupil Rights
5309 Student Records and Directory Information

5400 Curriculum, Instruction, and Parent/Guardian Involvement
5401 Parent/Guardian Involvement in Education
5402 Communication with Parents/Guardians
5403 Rights of Non-Custodial Parents/Guardians
5404 Free Textbooks, Materials, and Charging of Fees and Fines
5405 Title | Parent and Family Engagement Policy or Intentionally Left Blank
5406 Title | Funds
5407 Instructional Program and Curriculum Development
5408 Intentionally Left Blank
5409 Academic Credits
5410 Commencement/Completion Ceremony
5411 Student Promotion, Retention, and Placement
5412 Class Rank or Intentionally Left Blank

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



5413 Senior Recognition or Intentionally Left Blank

5414 Completion Certificates or Intentionally Left Blank

5415 Summer School

5416 Homebound and Hospitalized Instruction

5417 Homework or Intentionally Left Blank

5418 Grades

5419 Reading Assessments, Instruction, Intervention, and Retention
5420 Sex Education

5421 Work-Based Learning Experience or Intentionally Left Blank

5500 School Sponsored and Extracurricular Activities
5501 Fundraising Activities
5502 Student Government or Intentionally Left Blank
5503 Bulletin Boards and Other Student Postings
5504 School-Sponsored Publications and Productions
5505 School Attendance on Days of Scheduled Activities or Intentionally Left Blank
5506 Field Trips
5507 Extracurricular Activities
5508 Extracurricular and Athletic Trips
5509 Public Appearances of School Groups or Intentionally Left Blank
5510 Student-Initiated, Non-Curricular Clubs
5511 Secret Organizations

5600 Student Support Services
5601 Special Education
5602 Independent Educational Evaluation
5603 Section 504
5604 Student Assistance Process

5700 Student Health and Safety
5701 Child Abuse and Neglect
5702 Student lliness and Injury
5703 Medications
5704 Student Insurance
5705 Emergency Anaphylaxis
5706 Opioid Antagonist or Intentionally Left Blank
5707 School Wellness Policy
5708 Do Not Resuscitate Orders
5708-AG Do Not Resuscitate Orders
5709 Lice, Nits, and Bed Bugs
5710 Student Suicide Prevention
5711 Toilet Training
5712 Concussion Awareness
5713 Immunizations and Communicable Diseases

5800 Miscellaneous
5801 Closed Campus or Intentionally Left Blank

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
nnnnnnn



5802 Student Transportation

5803 Student Driving and Parking

5804 Work Permits

5805 Student Audio and Video Recording
5806 Recording of District Meetings

5807 Flag Display and Pledge of Allegiance
5808 Family Night or Intentionally Left Blank

@2022' T] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
lllllllllll



Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Thrun Policy Service
Checklist for Policy Manual Completion

Instructions:

This Checklist is intended to assist school officials with implementing the Thrun Law Firm Policy Manual. The policies
identified below contain language or sections that have been highlighted in blue, indicating that action is required
to complete the policy. Finalizing the policies may include the following: 1) inserting required information specific to
the District; 2) selecting optional inserts; or 3) selecting or deleting an entire optional policy.

The last section of this Checklist addresses the process for adopting the Policy Manual.

Please note, this Checklist is not intended to be a comprehensive list of legal requirements related to the Policy
Manual. Further, this Checklist is not intended to provide a detailed analysis of options within a policy or serve as a
substitute for legal advice. However, failure to complete a policy as indicated herein could result in unintended
negative consequences, including non-compliance with state or federal law or inconsistencies with other policies
within the Policy Manual. In addition, if policy language is changed or deleted, beyond the provisions identified
below, those modifications may have an adverse impact.

For additional information related to options and finalizing the Policy Manual beyond the scope of this Checklist,
please contact a Thrun Law Firm attorney. Thrun attorneys will also be available at regional implementation
meetings to explain optional policies and language and to assist school officials with selecting options.

Series 1000: Policy Overview, Mission Statement, and Definitions

Policy Number Section Information to be Completed
O 1201 Insert District’s mission statement.
] 1401 A2 Insert District’s legal name. Important: Please contact Thrun Law Firm to verify

that the District’s legal name to be inserted into this policy is consistent with the
legal name as found in Thrun’s records, in order to avoid inadvertently changing
the District’s legal name.

Series 2000: Bylaws

Policy Number Section Information to be Completed
] 2101 A4 Select or identify from the optional language the position titles of the individual(s)
authorized to sign employment contracts on the Board’s behalf.
A7 The Board may require that the District maintain a minimum fund balance by
adopting Policy 3202. If the option sectional A.5 in Policy 3202 is adopted, it is
recommended that the optional language in section A.7 be included.

] 2102 Insert District’s legal name. Important: Please contact Thrun Law Firm to verify
that the District’s legal name to be inserted into this policy is consistent with the
legal name as found in Thrun’s records, in order to avoid inadvertently changing
the District’s legal name.

] 2103 Insert the following: 1) legal name of the intermediate school district of which the
District is a constituent; 2) physical address of the Board; and 3) mailing address of
the Board.

© 2022 IVIV_IFI?MUPIS 1

POLICY SERVICE



Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

] 2104 Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that may be adopted to provide for a
student representative on the Board. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body
of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy
number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent
policies in the Policy Manual.

] 2203 All Include Section A.1.1 if Option 2 in Policy 5420 is adopted to include sex education
in the curriculum. If the optional language is not used, insert the word "Reserved"
to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

] 2203 Alm Include Section A.1.m if the optional language (regarding suicide prevention
instruction) at the end of Policy 5710 is adopted to include warning signs and risks
of suicide and depression in the curriculum. If the optional language is not used,
insert the word "Reserved" to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

] A3 Include Section A.3 if the recommended core academic curriculum exceeds the
State curriculum content standards. If the optional policy language in section A.3
is not used, insert the word "Reserved" to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

] B.3 Include sex education procedural requirements if sex education will be included in
the curriculum through the adoption of Option 2 in Policy 5420. If the optional
policy language in section B.3 is not used, insert the word "Reserved" to maintain
numbering of succeeding sections.

] B.4 Include public hearing requirements if sex education will be included in the
curriculum through the adoption of Option 2 in Policy 5420.

] D.1 Select whether high school credit in a foreign language will or will not be granted
for American Sign Language.

] D.3 Include if the District adopts the MDE financial literacy curriculum. If the MDE

financial literacy curriculum is not adopted, insert the word "Reserved" to
maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

] 2303 A.lb Select the option related to who may initiate an investigation into a suspected or
alleged violation of the Board Code of Ethics.

] 2305 B.2.a Include or delete optional language regarding Board member carpools.

] B.3.a Include the optional language if the Board wants to establish monetary limits for
the reimbursement of Board member meal expenses.

] B.3.c Include or delete optional language regarding meals included in registration fee or

lodging rate. If the optional language is not used, insert the word "Reserved" to
maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

] B.4.b Include or delete optional language regarding double-occupancy (or larger) room
fees. If the optional language is not used, insert the word "Reserved" to maintain
numbering of succeeding sections.

] 2306 Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that may be adopted to address Board
member compensation. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy
and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in
the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

] 2403 Include number of Board offices and duration of terms of office (e.g., 4 or 6 years).

© 2022 THRUN 2

LAW FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



0 2405 Title
Paragraph

] B

0 D3

] 2501 1=

] 2501A D.24

] 2502

] 2504 B.2

] 2506

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Select between whether the Board Treasurer is required to be a member of the
Board (Option 1) or whether the Board Treasurer may be a non-Board member
(Option 2).

Include the optional language if a non-Board member may serve as Treasurer (i.e.,
if Option 2 is selected).

Select between Option 1 and Option 2, consistent with the selection for the Title
Paragraph.

This is an optional section that may be included if Board meetings will be
conducted pursuant to a parliamentary procedure. If the optional language is not
used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

Identify the District administrator who will receive notice of a Board member’s
remote participation and the timeframe for providing notice. Delete highlighted
note after review.

This policy permits the Board to include desired procedures related to preparation
of the Board agenda. Suggested language based on common practices is provided,
but not required. The Board is encouraged to consider responsible parties,
required content, timing, and other preferences of the Board.

Insert time limit for public comment. We recommend between 3 and 5 minutes
for the public comment time limit.

Select between whether the Board will conduct an organizational meeting at the
first regular meeting of the calendar year or the first regular meeting of the fiscal
year. Further, the remaining optional language may be included to identify certain
decisions to be made by the Board at that organizational meeting.

Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

Policy Number Section
] 3102 B.1&B.2
] C.2
] D.2.c
] 3104 A
] 3105 A2

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

Information to be Completed

This policy prohibits smoking and tobacco products on all District property. The
Board may extend this prohibition to all off-site District related events under
section B.1 (Option 1). Alternatively, this prohibition at off-site events may be
determined at the District’s discretion by selecting section B.2 (Option 2). If
Option 1 is selected, insert the word “Reserved” in section B.2 to maintain
numbering of succeeding sections.

The Board may prohibit CBD products.

The Board must decide whether alcohol is permitted on District property. If the
optional language is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering
of succeeding sections.

The Board may identify specific situations or circumstances, in addition to those
already listed, at which the District will record audio.

The Board has the option of adding check-in procedures for visitors and requiring
personnel to direct visitors to the main office. If the optional language is not used,
insert the word “Reserved” in section A.2 to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.



O

O

[m] 3109
n 3113
n 3116
n 3118
O

n 3119
n 3120
n 3202
n 3204
n 3205
n 3208

B.4.b

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Optional language regarding transportation of students to and from school-

B.4.de

B.1

A7

A5

B.1&B.2

Al1&A2

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

sponsored events.
The Board may decide whether it wants drivers of non-school vehicles to provide

a copy of the driver’s driving records before transporting students.

The Board may identify other District personnel, in addition to those identified in
this policy, who may have access to social security numbers in the course of
performing their duties.

The Board may define material deemed “inappropriate for minors” which deviates
from or expands upon the suggested language provided.

Identify Title IX Coordinator; ensure the same person is listed as the Title IX
Coordinator in Policy 5205.
Optional provision: The District may choose to add additional appeal grounds.

Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that may be adopted to provide for
experimental or pilot programs. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of
the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy
number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent
policies in the Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that may be adopted for schools
receiving a Head Start grant or schools that are delegated responsibility for
operating a Head Start program from a Head Start grantee. If this policy is not
adopted, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally
Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure
accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

The Board may include optional language requiring a minimum fund balance. This
policy would establish the requirements of a minimum fund balance. If the Board
requires a minimum fund balance, see Policy 2101 for a related optional provision.
If the optional language is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain
numbering of succeeding sections.

The optional language authorizes the Treasurer to invest District funds only if
designated by Board resolution. Otherwise, the policy acts as the Board’s
designation of the Treasurer as an investment officer. In addition to the Treasurer,
another individual may be authorized to be responsible for the investment of
District funds.

Identify the maximum petty cash fund amount permitted and the custodian of
petty cash funds for each building.

Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that requires various school officials to
provide surety bonds. Determine the surety bond amount and administrators, in
addition to the Superintendent, who will be deemed "financial officers" of the



O 3209
0 3212
O 3213
[m} 3301
0 3302
0 3303
o
0 3303-F
0 3304
(]
(]
L]
0 3305

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

A&B

>
1@ o
No

Al

B.1

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

District. This should identify all administrators who supervise or handle District
funds. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and replace the
title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of
Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy
Manual.

Identify whether the Board may issue Board officers credit cards. Identify whether
District issued debit/credit cards may be used for reasonable travel expenses.

Identify the District administrator responsible for providing required continuing
disclosure information in the second paragraph. The Board may include the
optional language in the third paragraph, which would permit non-compliance
with certain provisions of the policy if, after consultation with bond counsel, it is
deemed an unreasonable burden.

Under sections A and B, verify the District administrators responsible for certain
financial transactions. Under Michigan law, the Board must adopt a policy that
addresses the internal audit procedures. Section C is offered as suggested
language which should be modified to suit District practices. Delete highlighted
note after review.

Optional language excludes complying with competitive bidding in an emergency.

The Board may include the optional language which delegates limited authority to
the Superintendent to complete required documents related to the acquisition of
real property. If the optional language is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to
maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

Identify maximum dollar amount for accepting donations without Board approval.

Optional language regarding the District soliciting donations and procedure for
making a donation.

If the District does not have an educational foundation, delete the highlighted
language.

If the District does not want to provide a link to a .pdf version of the Form on
District letterhead, delete the option at the end of the Form.

Definition of “non-curricular education group” should be retained if Option 2 is
selected in Section D.
Select an option for setting rental fees for District facilities and equipment.

Select an option related to the use of District facilities by non-student groups. Itis
recommended that these options be discussed with legal counsel, in particular
section D.6. Delete note after review.

Select whether the Board wants to open certain recreational facilities to the
public. If the option is selected, the Board must further define facilities that may
be used by persons for personal health and wellness and identify the time period
related to such use. If the optional language is not used, insert the word
“Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

The Board may include the optional language which delegates limited authority to
the Superintendent related to the sale or lease of District property.



Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

] 3307 A3 Remove language if not applicable (and not anticipated to be applicable) to the
District. If the optional language is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to
maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

| 3308 C.2 Select or identify who will obtain approval from the board. We recommend the
Superintended be selected.
] C3 This policy provides options related to non-student group advertisements. If

section C.3 is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of
succeeding sections.

] c4 The language under section C.4 is optional but recommended. Delete note
related to consultation with legal counsel after review.

] 3405 Determine whether to include optional language requiring an exposure control
plan for blood borne pathogens.

] 3407 D Identify individual or company responsible for oversight of the District’s
compliance with the asbestos management plan. The responsible party may be a
District employee or third-party consultant.

] 3408 A Include additional definitions under Sections 1 and 5 to include relevant
definitions based on options selected under section B.7. If the optional language is
not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

] B The Board may select options under sections 4 through 7. Questions related to the
selection of options under this section should be discussed with legal counsel as
necessary. Delete note related to discussion with legal counsel after review.

| 3409

] 3501 Select option related to whether FOIA fee appeals to the Board will be permitted.
Note: We recommend not allowing fee appeals to the Board, and 3501-AG
assumes Districts have not allowed them. Nevertheless, if you want to have fee
appeals to the Board, you will need to modify 3501-AG to identify an appeals
process. We recommend you contact a Thrun attorney for assistance if you decide
to do that.

] 3501-AG Insert the District’s address, website, email address, and fax number for FOIA
requests. Insert the name of the county in which the majority of the District’s
territory lies.

] Attach A Insert the District’s physical address and the District’s name where appropriate.

] Attach B Insert the District’s physical address and the District’s name where appropriate
and the name of the District’s FOIA Coordinator.

] Attach C Insert District’s name.

Series 4000: District Employment

© 2022 THRUN 6

LAW FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Policy Number

] 4104
] 4106
L]

] 4107
] 4201-AG
] 4202
] 4203-AG
] 4205
O] 4206
] 4210
] 4211
] 4220
] 4225

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

Section
Al

Alb

B.6

B.11

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Information to be Completed
Insert employment compliance officer's contact information. Consider listing two
individuals.

Select one of four options regarding how the FMLA leave year will be calculated
(rolling backward recommended).

This policy references Department of Labor FMLA forms, which may be found at:
www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/fmla/forms.

The District must post the appropriate FMLA rights poster.

The District must post employee rights under the USERRA.

Identify position highlighted throughout the AG.

In section B.6 the Board may authorize the Superintendent or designee to
implement measures to prevent sexual abuse of children. If the optional language
is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

The Superintendent is required to distribute AG 4203 to employees, volunteers,
and contractors.

Insert the number of calendar days that the District will post job vacancies.

The Board may include an option requiring a contract provision that prohibits an
administrator from engaging in conduct involving moral turpitude. If the optional
language is not used, insert the word "Reserved" to maintain numbering of
succeeding sections.

Optional if the District does not employ employees subject to the OTETA. If the
optional language is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering
of succeeding sections.

Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that may be adopted to provide an
alcohol and controlled substances testing program for District employees who
perform safety-sensitive functions as mandated by OTETA. If this policy is not
adopted, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally
Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure
accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

Optional language that provides that the Superintendent or designee may approve
personal use of District property in advance.

Optional Policy: This is an optional policy that may be adopted to provide for
remote work requests. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy
and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in
the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.


http://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/fmla/forms

] 4226
[m} 4227
n 4301
0 4303
n 4305
L]
(]
(]
L]
L]
O 4403
n 4405
L]
0 4408
0 4409

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

Ald.v

A.2.a

A4

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

This policy is required if the District receives an annual amount of at least $5,000,000
in Medicaid payments. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy
and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in
the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the

Policy Manual.

Choose whether to elassify-ren-exemptemployeesas—at-willersubjecttoadopt

a one year probationary period for non-exempt employees.

The compensatory time policy is optional, but recommended if the District
maintains compensatory time for employees. If this policy is not adopted, delete
the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the
policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of
subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

Adoption of this policy is required if the District has 50 or more employees and
optional if the District has less than 50 employees. If this policy is not adopted,
delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank”
after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate
numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

Decide whether to include the MPMLA grandfather language.

The Board may adjust the start and end date of the 12-month benefit year for
MPMLA.

The Board must select either earn-as-you-go or front load the hours of paid
medical leave for MPMLA.

The Board must identify whether the leave will be in hour(s)/day increments.

A current MPMLA poster created by the Michigan Department of Licensing and
Regulatory Affairs must be posted.

Post teacher evaluation information on the District’s website as required under
MCL 380.1249.

The Board must select one of two options when a reduction or recall decision
involves multiple teachers and they have the same effectiveness score.

The Board may include an optional provision that states the Board will provide at
least 30 calendar days’ notice of a reduction in force.

The Board should determine whether a teacher is eligible for recall within a period
when the reduction in force was implemented. 12 months is recommended.

The Board may select an option that permits a non-teaching professional to be
subject to a 5 year probationary period and be may be non-renewed or
terminated at will by the Board.

The Board may select an option that permits a non-teaching professional to be
non-renewed or terminated at any time by the Board. If the optional language is



[J

4503

4505

4506

4508

4601

4603

B.3

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

The District must post administrator evaluation information on the District’s
website as required under MCL 380.1249 and 380.1249b.

Insert length of time administrator, supervisor, or director is eligible for recall. We
recommend aligning this time period with the teacher recall period in Policy 4405.

The Board may include an option that provides disciplinary action resulting in five
days or more of lost pay must be reviewed by the Board for Administrators,
Supervisors, or Directors.

Insert the number of calendar days that the supervisor's or director's nonrenewal
recommendation must be presented to the Board. We recommend no less than
30 calendar days.

The Board may exercise the option of authorizing the Superintendent to suspend
students up to 59 days and expel students consistent with Policy 5206. If the
optional language is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering
of succeeding sections.

The District must post Superintendent evaluation information on the District’s
website as required under MCL 380.1249 and MCL 380.1249b.

Series 5000: Students, Curriculum and Academic Matters

O

IO

Policy Number

5101

5102

5104

5106

5201

5202

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

Section

E&F

Information to be Completed
Optional provision: The Board must decide whether to specifically state that hate
speech is prohibited and provide specific examples of hate speech.

Note: This policy must be included in the Student Handbook.

The Board must decide whether to adopt certain language pertaining to students 18

years old or older or who are legally emancipated. In the last paragraph, the Board
should select letters to correspond with the selected options above.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Optional provision: This provision requires a building principal or designee to
notify the Superintendent if law enforcement seeks to question, take into custody,
or remove a student. If the optional language is not used, insert the word
“Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

Identify Title IX Coordinator; ensure the same person is listed as the Title IX
Coordinator in Policy 3118. Delete note after listing Title IX Coordinator.

Insert the number of days in which the District will initiate an investigation after
receiving a complaint. Must be 2 through 5 school days.



(]
0 5206
0 5206A
L]
0 5206C
0 5206D
0 5206E
n 5207
L]
L]
0 5209
n 5210
n 5301
L]
0 5302

© 2022 IHBMUPI\OI

POLICY SERVICE

Title

Title

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Insert the number of days in which the District will complete an investigation.
Must be 10 through 20 school days.

The Board must choose either the Superintendent or Board President to hear
appeals. Delete note after review.

Delete note under the policy title after review.

Delete note under the policy title after review.

This section of the Policy includes an optional but recommended provision
providing that a parent may appeal a Superintendent student disciplinary decision
to the Board.

This section of the Policy includes an optional provision providing that if the Board
denies a student reinstatement petition, the parent may not refile another
petition within 180 days after the denial.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Include this Policy in the student code of conduct.

Ensure required public hearing has been held before policy adoption. Delete note
under title after hearing.

Select “Responsible School Official.” We recommend the Superintendent be
selected as the “Responsible School Official.” Delete note after review.

The Board may include optional provisions for any of the following: Prevention
Task Force, Training, and Educational Programs.

Choose between Option 1 (permitting student cell phone use pursuant to
reasonable rules) or Option 2 (prohibiting student cell phone use).

Optional Policy: This policy is recommended but not required. If this policy is not
adopted, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally
Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure
accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

The Board must decide whether to maintain or modify the list of excused
absences in this policy.

The Board must identify the number or percentage of unexcused absences that
will prompt notice to the student’s parent.

The Board must identify the number or percentage of unexcused or excused
absences that will trigger truancy proceedings.

Delete notes in sections D and E after review.

Optional Policy: This policy should only be adopted if the District provides
kindergarten. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

10



O 5304
O 5307
0 5308
0 5309
0 5401
0 5405
O 5407
O

O

0 5409
0 5410
0 5412

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

A3

A5

B.3

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

The Board may include an optional provision providing that nonpublic part-time
students may not participate in District-provided athletics or extracurricular
activities.

Insert name, position/title, and contact information of Homeless Liaison.

We recommend adopting this section as written. Schools, however, are not
prohibited from collecting information for marketing purposes. If the District
intends to collect information for marketing purposes, additional policy language
is necessary. Please contact Thrun Law Firm for that language. Delete note after
review.

The Board must decide to maintain or modify the list of information designated as
directory information. Delete note after review.

The Board may include an optional provision requiring the Superintendent to
develop and implement parental involvement contracts. If the optional language
is not used, insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

Optional policy if the District does not receive Title | Part A funding. The policy
must be adopted if the District receives Title | Part A funding. If this policy is not
adopted, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally
Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure
accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

References to parent and/or parent/guardian are intentional and should remain
unchanged.

The Board may include an optional provision regarding complaints about
instructional materials. If the optional language is not used, insert the word
“Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

If Section B is included, the Board may also include an optional provision requiring
an appeal to either the Superintendent or to a Committee Review. If the optional
language is not used or if Section B is not included, insert the word “Reserved” to
maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

This section of the Policy includes an optional but recommended provision
regarding complaints about library materials. If the optional language is not used,
insert the word “Reserved” to maintain numbering of succeeding sections.

Insert the District's academic and graduation requirements.

The Board must determine whether students who receive a certificate of
completion or who are short on credits may participate in commencement. If
allowing students who are short on credits to participate in commencement, the
Board must insert in the Policy the minimum number of credits required to
participate.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the

11



n 5413
n 5414 Title & A
n 5417

n 5418

n 5420

n 5421

n 5502

n 5505

] 5506 c

n 5509

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: If adopted, insert the District's process for recognizing student
achievement. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: If this policy is adopted, insert the number of credit hours needed
to acquire a certificate of academic competence. If this policy is not adopted,
delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank”
after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate
numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: If adopted, the Board may include an optional provision providing
that teachers attempt to minimize homework assignments, consistent with Policy
5808. Delete note after review.

If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and replace the title
with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of
Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy
Manual.

The Board may include an optional provision requiring the building principal to
publish grade change procedures.

The Board must select either Option 1 (communicable disease instruction only) or
Option 2 (sex education, reproductive health, and communicable disease
instruction).

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

Optional Policy: Adoption of this policy would permit student groups to appear at
public events. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the

12



O

O

0 5706
0 5709
O

0 5710
[m} 5711
O 5801
0 5806
0 5808

© 2022 THRUN

LAW FIRM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE

Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

If this policy is adopted, the Board must decide whether student groups either
may not, or may not be required to, perform at a political rally or event. If section
Cis not used, insert the word "Reserved" to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

If this policy is adopted, the Board must decide whether student groups either
may not, or may not be required to, perform at religious ceremonies. If section D
is not used, insert the word "Reserved" to maintain numbering of succeeding
sections.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

The Board must select either Option 1 (a student with nits within 1/4 inch of the
scalp or live lice may remain at school) or Option 2 (the student will be readmitted
to school after treatment so long as the parent consents to a head examination
and the examining school official does not find live lice on the student).

The Board must select either Option 1 (no student will be excluded from school
because of bed bugs unless efforts to remedy the infestation have been
unsuccessful) or Option 2 (if a student's clothing or belongings are infested by bed
bugs, the student will be excluded from school until a successful treatment has
occurred).

The Board may insert an optional provision that would require the District to
provide age-appropriate instruction and professional development about suicide
prevention.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy
Manual.

Optional Policy: If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

The Board must select either Option 1 (parents of students with disabilities are
permitted to audio record IEP team and Section 504 meetings) or Option 2
(parents are not allowed to audio record unless it is necessary for the parent to
understand the IEP or Section 504 process).

Optional Policy: Adoption of this policy should be consistent with options selected
under Policy 5417. If this policy is not adopted, delete the body of the policy and
replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the
Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the
Policy Manual.

13



Thrun Law Firm
Policy Manual Checklist

Procedure to Adopt Policy Manual:

The following procedures are intended to assist the Board with repealing its current policies and adopting
the Policy Manual, taking into consideration that the process may vary depending on the policy or subject.
Sample resolutions are available on the client login section of our website.

Provide notice of Board meeting and public hearing consistent with requirements in the Open Meetings Act.

At the Board meeting, repeal current policies, bylaws, and administrative guidelines and adopt the Policy
Manual using the following protocol and sample resolution #1:

1. Repeal all current policies, bylaws, and administrative guidelines, except the Board’s current
bullying policy under MCL 380.1310b.

2. Adopt the Policy Manual, except Policy 5207 (Anti-Bullying).
3. Schedule a subsequent Board meeting to hold a public hearing under MCL 380.1310b(2).

[ At the subsequent Board meeting:
1. Hold a public hearing under MCL 380.1310b(2) to modify the Board’s bullying policy.

2. Repeal the Board’s current bullying policy under MCL 380.1310b, and adopt Policy 5207 (Anti-
Bullying), using sample resolution #2.

© 2022 THRUN 14

LAW FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Series 2000: Bylaws
2400 Board Membership and Duties
2401 Board Member Elections

Board members are elected by the District’'s electors at the District’s regular election,
which is held on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of even-numbered
years.

At least 1 Board member must be elected at each regular election.
The Michigan Election Law governs the District’s election procedures.

The District’s elections are conducted by the District’s election coordinator, as that term
is defined by the Michigan Election Law.

Legal authority: MCL 168.301, 168.641, 168.642c; MCL 380.1206
Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2022 T THRUN



Series 2000: Bylaws

2400 Board Membership and Duties

2405 Board Officers

Board officers will consist of a President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary.
[Choose Option 1 or 2:] [Option 1: Board officers must be Board members.] [Option 2:
The President, Vice President, and Secretary must be Board members, while-but the
Treasurer is not required to be a Board member.]

A. Election of Board Officers

1.

3.

The Board must elect a President and Vice President. The Board may also
elect a Treasurer and Secretary.

Board officer elections will take place at the Board’s annual organizational
meeting.

A candidate for a Board officer position must receive a majority vote of the
Board members then serving on the Board.

a. If no person receives a maijority vote in an initial vote, the candidates for a
second vote will consist of:

i. the 2 persons who received the most votes; or

ii. if more than 2 persons are tied for the most votes received, all persons
tied for most votes received; or

iii. if 1 person received the most votes and there is a tie for second place,
the person who received the most votes and the persons tied for the
second place.

b. The process for narrowing candidates will be repeated in subsequent voting
rounds.

Elected Board officers will serve in that capacity until the next annual
organizational meeting, unless a Board member resigns from the officer
position or a Board majority votes to remove that Board member from the officer
position.

B. If the Board does not elect a Secretary, the President must appoint a Board
member to the vacant office. If the Board does not elect a Treasurer, the President
must appoint a Board member [Ogtieaalinclude if Option 2 is selected: or non-
Board member] to the vacant office.

C. Removal of Board Officers

The Board, by a majority vote of the members then serving, may remove a Board
officer from the officer position, with or without cause.

© 2020 30b) THRUN

Law FiIrRm, P.C.
PoLicy SERVICE




D. Board Officer Vacancies

1.

If the office of President becomes vacant, the Vice President will succeed to
the office of President for the balance of that office’s term.

If the office of Vice President, Secretary, or Treasurer becomes vacant, the
Board must promptly elect a Board member to fill that vacancy.

[Choose Option 1 or 2:] [Option 1: If the office of Secretary or Treasurer
becomes vacant, the Board may elect a Board member to fill that vacancy or
the President may appoint a Board member to fill that vacancy.] [Option 2: If
the office of Secretary becomes vacant, the Board may elect a Board member
to fill that vacancy or the President may appoint a Board member to fill that
vacancy. If the office of Treasurer becomes vacant, the Board may elect a
Board member or non-Board member to fill that vacancy or the President may
appoint a Board member or non-Board member to fill that vacancy.] The person
elected or appointed to a vacant Board office will serve in that office for the
balance of that office’s term.

E. Assistants to the Secretary and Treasurer

1.

The Board may appoint an assistant to the Secretary and an assistant to the
Treasurer who are not required to be Board members.

2. The Board may remove an assistant to the Secretary or an assistant to the

Treasurer by maijority vote. After a removal, the Board may appoint a person to
fill the vacant position.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2020 JgB] THRUN

PoLICY SERVICE



Series 2000: Bylaws

2400 Board Membership and Duties

2406 Board Officers’ Duties

To ensure proper District oversight, a Board officer must fulfill the requirements of the
respective office. The following Board officer duties may be modified or removed, in whole
or in part, by Board action.

A. President

1.

8.

Preside over all Board meetings and act as a decision-maker on procedural
issues.

Coordinate with the Superintendent or designee to prepare Board meeting
agendas.

Serve as the Board’s spokesperson unless another person is designated by
the Board.

Sign contracts, correspondence, and other documents on behalf of the District
as authorized by the Board or required by law.

If both the President and Vice President are absent from a Board meeting, the
Board may appoint a Board member to serve as acting President.

Accept complaints and coordinate investigations into allegations of misconduct
against other Board members or the Superintendent, including placing the
Superintendent on non-disciplinary, paid administrative leave during the
pendency of an investigation.

Contact legal counsel on the Board’s behalf or authorize individual Board
members to contact legal counsel.

Perform other duties as prescribed by law, Policy, or Board action.

B. Vice President

1.

2.

In the President’s absence or where the President is precluded from performing
the President’s duties, preside over Board meetings and perform the
President’s other duties.

Perform other duties as prescribed by law, Policy, or Board action.

C. Secretary

1.

© 20264

Ensure that an accurate record of Board meetings is maintained and published
in compliance with law.

T THRUN

Law FiIrRm, P.C.
PoLicy SERVICE




2. Sign Board meeting minutes, orders, resolutions, and records memorializing
Board proceedings.

3. Draw and sign orders upon the Treasurer for money to be disbursed by the
Board.

4. Perform other duties as prescribed by law, Policy, or Board action.

In the Secretary’s absence, the Vice President may-will serve as acting Secretary
or, in the alternative, the Board may appoint a Board member to serve as acting
Secretary.

The Secretary may delegate duties to an assistant to the Secretary to the extent
allowed by law.

D. Treasurer

1. Serve as the custodian and maintain accounting for District monies, credits,
and property.

2. Sign checks and other Board-authorized documents.
3. Perform other duties as prescribed by law, Policy, or Board action.

In the Treasurer’s absence, the Vice President may-will serve as acting Treasurer
or, in the alternative, the Board may appoint a Board member to serve as acting
Treasurer.

The Treasurer may delegate duties to the person acting as the District’s business
official or to an assistant to Treasurer, to the extent allowed by law.

E. Succession

1. Board office holders will promptly transfer authority to their respective
successor in office, including access to District accounts, investments, files,
and public records.

2. Board office holders will promptly deliver District property, including logs,
ledgers, money, reports, files, books, equipment, and public records, to the
Board officer’s respective successor in office.

3. The transfer of District property will promptly occur at a location and time
agreed upon by the Board officer and the Board officer’s successor in office or
at a location and time otherwise determined by the Board.

Legal authority: MCL 380.901, 380.947, 380.1213, 380.1221, 380.1223, 380.1231,
380.1362, 380.1371, 380.1372, 380.1535a, 380.1539b, 380.1577,
380.1613; MCL 600.6094

Date adopted:

202041 THRUN

PoLICY SERVICE



Date revised:

© 2029. TELBUN

PoLICY SERVICE



Series 2000: Bylaws

2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance

2501 Meetings

Board meetings must be conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

A. Notice

1.

The Board must publicly post its regular meeting schedule within 10 calendar
days after the Board’s first meeting in each calendar or fiscal year. The notice
must include the dates, times, and places of the regular meetings. If the regular
meeting schedule is changed, the Board must publicly post the revised regular
meeting schedule within 3 calendar days after the Board meeting at which the
change was made.

2. Special meeting and rescheduled regular meeting notices must be posted at
least 18 hours in advance of a special or rescheduled regular meeting.

3. Regular, rescheduled regular, and special meeting notices must be posted at
the Board’s principal offices. The notice, or a prominent and conspicuous link
to the notice, also must be posted on the District’s website’s homepage as
required by the Open Meetings Act, if the District's website is updated at least
monthly with meeting agendas or minutes.

4. Meeting notices must contain:

a. the name, address, and telephone number of the Board;

b. the time, date, and place of the meeting;

c. a statement where official minutes are stored and available for inspection;
and

d. a disability accessibility notice.

5. Emergency meetings may be held without complying with the above-described
notice requirements if there is a severe and imminent threat to the health and
safety of the public. The Board will provide notice of an emergency meeting in
compliance with the Open Meetings Act.

6. Public hearing notices must contain a description of the purpose(s) for which
the public hearing will be conducted to the extent required by law.

7. The notice for an electronic Board meeting must comply with Policy 2501A.

B. Quorum

© 2021 4] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.



1.

A quorum of the Board means a majority of the Board members elected or
appointed to and serving on the Board, unless different quorum and voting rules
are otherwise provided by law.

All deliberations of a quorum of the Board must take place at a meeting that is
open to the public, unless closed session deliberations are permitted by law.

All decisions made by the Board constituting a quorum of its members must
take place at a meeting that is open to the public, except as otherwise provided
by the Open Meetings Act.

C. Meeting Types

1.

4.

The Board will hold its regular meetings at the dates, times, and locations
specified in the District's annual notice published pursuant to the Open
Meetings Act. If the notice is amended, then meetings will be held according to
the amended notice.

Special, rescheduled regular, or emergency meetings may be called by the
President, the Superintendent, or two Board members. Notice of such meetings
will be provided in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

The Board may, in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, hold work sessions
and retreats to provide Board members and administrators with the opportunity
to plan, research, and engage in discussion.

The Board may meet as a committee of the whole. See Policy 2505(C).

D. Closed Session

1.

6.

The Board may meet and deliberate in closed session only for 1 or more
purposes authorized by the Open Meetings Act.

Depending on the closed session purpose(s), the Open Meetings Act may
require a 2/3 roll call vote for the Board to meet in closed session. A vote to
enter closed session must be made in open session.

Closed session meeting minutes must be kept confidential. Board members
must keep matters discussed and documents received confidential unless
otherwise authorized by the Board or law. See Section HG, below.

All discussions in closed session are limited to the purpose(s) identified in the
motion calling the closed session.

The Board will determine the non-member attendees for a closed session,
unless attendance is required by Policy or law.

No decisions will be made during a closed session.

E. Meeting Cancellation

© 2021 4] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.



The Board is legally required to hold at least 1 public meeting each month. The
President or designee may cancel a Board meeting if the President or designee
determines that a quorum of the Board will not be present for the meeting, there is
no business for the Board to conduct at the meeting, or it would be unreasonable
or dangerous for Board members or the public to attend the meeting (e.g.,
inclement weather). The President or designee will ensure that a District staff
member posts notice of the cancellation on the District’'s website on the same day
as the cancellation. If necessary, a cancelled meeting will be rescheduled.

F. Electronic Board Meetings and Remote Participation

Electronic Board meetings may be held, and a Board member may participate in
a Board meeting remotely, as authorized by Policy 2501A.

G. Minutes

The Board will keep minutes of each Board meeting in accordance with the
following:

1. The Secretary will record and maintain meeting minutes.

2. The Secretary, or an acting Secretary in the absence of the Secretary, will sign
meeting minutes.

3. Meeting minutes will comply with the Open Meetings Act.
a. Open session meeting minutes.

i. Minutes for a meeting open to the public will include at least the following
information:

A) the meeting date, time, and location;

B) the Board members present for or otherwise participating in the
meeting;

C) the Board members absent from the meeting;
D) board decisions;

E) the purpose(s) for which any closed session meeting was held and
the specific provision(s) of the Open Meetings Act that permitted the
closed session;

F) any roll call votes conducted by the Board; and
G) corrections, if any.

ii. The Board must make proposed open session meeting minutes
available for public inspection within 8 business days after the applicable
Board meeting.

© 2021 4] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.



iii. The Board must make approved open session meeting minutes
available for public inspection within 5 business days after the meeting
at which the Board approved the minutes.

b. Closed session meeting minutes.

i. Closed session meeting minutes must be prepared and maintained
separately from open session meeting minutes.

ii. Closed session meeting minutes will not be made available to, or be
disclosed to, the public, except as required by court order.

iii. Closed session meeting minutes may be destroyed by the District 1 year
and 1 calendar day after the approval of the minutes of the regular
meeting at which the closed session minutes were approved, or any time
thereafter.

iv. Closed session meeting minutes must include at least the following
information:

A) the meeting date, time, and, location;

B) the Board members present for or otherwise participating in the
meeting;

C) the Board members absent from the meeting; and

D) the purpose(s) for which the closed session meeting was held and
the specific Open Meetings Act provision(s) that permitted the closed
session.

c. Open session Board meeting minutes may be published on the District’'s
website.

H. Accommodating Board Members and Other Individuals with Disabilities

Any Board member or other individual with a disability who requires reasonable
accommodations to participate in, or attend, a Board meeting must contact the
Superintendent’s office in advance of the meeting to request an accommodation.

Hl. [Optional Parliamentary Procedure

Board meetings will be conducted consistent with the parliamentary authority
provided in , provided the procedure is consistent with
thesePoliciesBoard Policy and the law.]

Legal authority: MCL 15.263, 15.263a, 15.267, 15.269; MCL 380.1201

Date adopted:
Date revised:

© 2021 4] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.
PoLICY SERV ICE



Series 2000: Bylaws
2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
2501A Electronic Board of Education Meetings

The Board may hold electronic meetings, and Board members and the public may
participate remotely, only as permitted by this Policy, the Open Meetings Act, and other
applicable law.

A. Definitions

The definitions in this section apply only to this Policy. All other words found in this
Policy, unless specifically defined, are given their plain meaning.

2.1.  “Two-Way Communication” means telephone, video, or other means of
conferencing that allows Board members to hear and be heard by both the
public and other Board members, and allows the public to hear and be heard
by other members of the public and the Board members during public
comment. Real-time typed public comments that may be read to or shared with
Board members and the public is a sufficient form of two-way communication

for purposes of public participation during an electronic Board meeting.

B. Permissible Reasons for Wholly Electronic Board Meetings

© 202:2fT] THRUN

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
PoLICY SERVICE



3 AllBoard-Members Particioating & |

The Board may hold a meeting wholly electronically, with every Board member
and the public participating remotely, if every Board member simultaneously
satisfies one or more of the conditions identified in Section C of this Policy.

C. Permissible Reasons for Individual Board Member Remote Participation

A Board member who is not physically present at an in-person Board meeting due
to military duty, a “disability” within the meaning of the ADA, or other reason
permitted by Michigan law the-following-reasens-may be counted toward a quorum,
deliberate, and vote. To qualify, members absent due to military duty must followby
following-the procedures listed in Section D, below. Unless otherwise provided,
any Board member who is not absent due to a qualifying exception military-duty

does-notsatisfy-one-ormore-of the-following-conditions-must be physically present

at the meeting to participate.

D. Procedures to Accommodate Board Member Remote Participation

The Board institutes the following procedures to ensure that a Board member who
is not physically present at an in-person Board meeting may be counted toward a
quorum, deliberate, and vote at a Board meeting.

020212 T THRUN

LAaw FiIrRM, P.C.
PoLICY SERVICE



3-1. The Board and the remote Board member will ensure there is Two-Way

Communication during the meeting;

4.2. A Board member who plans to participate i meeting-remotely The remote
Board member must provide notice to | ] at least [ ] hours
before the meeting; and [NOTE — DELETE AFTER ADOPTION: Notice of an
electronic meeting must be posted at least 18 hours in advance. We
recommend that the remote Board member give notice sufficiently in advance
of that time so that the District can disclose that member’s absence into the
posted notice.]

5.3. The Superintendent or designee will ensure that public notice of the_remote
Board member’s physical absence and information on how to contact the
remote Board member is provided sufficiently in advance of the Board meeting
so that a member of the public may provide input on or ask questions about

any business that will come before the Board at the meeting.
E. Procedures to Ensure Public Participation at Electronic Meetings

If the Board convenes a wholly electronic meeting or any Board member
participates remotely, the public will also be provided the opportunity to attend the
public meeting remotely.

The Board will not require the public to register or otherwise provide their names
or other information as a condition of attending a Board meeting, whether in-person
or remotely. The Board may require the public to submit information, consistent
with public participation rules, to participate in the public comment portion of a
meeting.

F. Electronic Board Meeting Notice Requirements

The Superintendent or designee will post notice of an electronic Board meeting at
least 18 hours before the meeting. If the Board will be convening in a physical
location with one or more Board members attending remotely pursuant to Section
C, the notice must include both the physical and virtual locations of the meeting.

If the District has an internet presence that includes monthly or more frequent
updates of public meeting agendas or minutes, the notice must be included on a
portion of the District's website that is fully accessible to the public, either on the
District’'s homepage or on a separate webpage dedicated to public notices for non-

© 202:2fT] THRUN

Law FIrRmM, P.C.
PoLicy SERVIC E



regularly scheduled or electronic meetings that is accessible through a prominent
and conspicuous link on the District’s website’s homepage. The link must clearly
describe its purpose for public notice of non-regularly scheduled or electronic
meetings.

The notice must clearly explain:
1. Why the Board is holding an electronic meeting;

2. How the public may participate remotely. If a telephone number, internet
address, virtual meeting address, or other information is needed to participate,
that information must be specifically provided;

3. How the public may contact Board members to provide input on or ask
questions about business that will come before the Board at the meeting;

4. Which Board members will be participating remotely and information about how
the public may contact those Board members in advance of the meeting to
provide input on or ask questions about any business that will come before the
Board at the meeting; and

5. How persons with disabilities may participate in the meeting.
G. Electronic Board Meeting Agenda Requirements

The Superintendent or designee must post the electronic meeting’s agenda to the
District’s website, if an agenda exists. The agenda must be posted at least two
hours before the electronic meeting begins. The Board may amend the agenda at
the meeting.

Legal authority: MCL 15.263, 15.263a.
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 202:2fT] THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.



Series 2000: Bylaws
2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
2501A-F-1 Electronic Board Meeting Checklist

Deciding whether to hold an electronic Board meeting:

[J For a wholly electronic Board meeting, ene-or-meore-of the-following-apphy:

H-Eevery Board member is absent due to military duty, an ADA “disability”, or other
reason permitted by Michigan law.-{re-daterestrictions).

[J For a hybrid physical/electronic Board meeting, a Board member is participating

remotely because of-one-or-more-ofthefollowing:

[J The Board member is absent due to military duty-{no-daterestrictions).

[1 The Board member must participate remotely as a reasonable accommodation for an
ADA “disability.

[ ] The Board member is subject to another reason permitted by Michigan law.

Preparing for an electronic Board meeting:

© 2021 THRUN Page 1 of 3

Law FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



2501A-F-1 Electronic Board Meeting Checklist

[J

[J

[J

Ensure the Board, each Board member participating remotely, and the public have
access to Ttwo-Wway Ceommunication.

Ensure that persons with disabilities will be able to participate in the meeting and
notice is given about how to request an accommodation.

At least 18 hours before the electronic Board meeting, post the electronic Board
meeting notice. The notice must include:

[] Why the Board is holding an electronic meeting;
[J How the public may participate remotely;

[1 How the public may contact Board members to provide input or ask questions
about business that will come before the Board; and

[ 1 How persons with disabilities may participate in the meeting.

If the District has an internet presence that includes monthly or more frequent updates
of public meeting agendas or minutes, the notice must be included on a portion of that
website that is fully accessible to the public, either on the District's homepage or on a
separate webpage dedicated to public notices for non-regularly scheduled or
electronic public meetings that is accessible through a prominent and conspicuous
link on the District’s website’s homepage. The link must clearly describe its purpose
for public notice of non-regularly scheduled or electronic public meetings.

At least 2 hours before the electronic meeting, post the meeting agenda to the
District’s website, if an agenda exists.

The Superintendent or designee must provide notice to the public of which Board
members will be participating remotely and information about how members of the
public may contact those Board members in advance of the meeting to provide input
or ask questions on any business that will come before the Board. Fhis-infermation

spensbodpelodeoc oo peaebno padon

Although not required by the ©MAOpen Meetings Act, consider completing an Affidavit
of Website Posting of the Public Notice of Electronic Meeting.

During the electronic Board meeting:

O

Confirm the Board, each Board member participating remotely, and the public have
access to Ttwo-Wway Ceommunication.

©20224/T] THRUN Page 2 of 3

Law FIRM, P.C.



2501A-F-1 Electronic Board Meeting Checklist

©20224/T] THRUN Page 3 of 3

Law FIrRM, P.C.



Series 2000: Bylaws

2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance

2501A-F-2 Advance Notice of Remote Participation and-Remote-Attendancefor
Individeual B | Mol Seri

Advance Notice of Remote Participation

Directions: A Board member must provide notice of his or her absence and necessary
contact information to the Superintendent or Superintendent’s designee sufficiently in
advance of the Board meeting, and consistent with the procedures in Policy 2501A, so
that the District can provide public notice of the Board member’s remote participation and
information on how a member of the public may provide input to that Board member on
any business that will come before the Board.

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Series 2000: Bylaws
2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meeting Notice

Directions [Delete directions and notes in document before posting]: At least 18
hours before an electronic Board meeting, the Superintendent or designee must prominently post
this notice. If the District has an internet presence that includes at least monthly updates of public
meeting agendas or minutes, this notice must be included on a portion of its website that is fully
accessible to the public, either on the District’'s homepage or on a separate webpage dedicated
to public notices for non-regqularly scheduled or electronic public meetings, that is accessible
through a prominent and conspicuous link on the District’s website homepage. The link must
clearly describe its purpose for public notice of non-regularly scheduled or electronic public
meetings. If the electronic meeting is a special or rescheduled reqular meeting, the special
meeting posting requirements contained in MCL 15.265 must also be satisfied. For Board
meetings at which significant Bboard action is anticipated (e.qg., related to the sale of property,
approval of contracts, or adoption of bond or finance documents), consider completing an Affidavit
of Website Posting.

Choose Option A (Wholly Electronic) or Option B (Hybrid) and delete option not chosen:
Option A — Wholly Electronic Meeting

The [District Name] Board of Education will hold a [regular/rescheduled regular/special]
Board meeting on [Day of the Week], [Month] [Calendar Day], [Year].

The meeting will be held wholly electronically. The public may attend and participate
virtually using this link: [insert telephone number, internet address, virtual meeting
address, or other information needed to participate].

The Board of Education is holding a wholly electronic Board meeting because {select-all
that-apply):

© 2021 THRUN Page 1 of 3

Law FIrRM, P.C.



2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meeting Notice

E——Aall Board members will be physically absent due to military duty, ADA
accommodation, or other reason permitted by Michigan law-

Members of the public may contact any Board member in advance of the meeting to
provide input or ask questions about business that will come before the Board by [insert
individual Board member contact information (e.g. email addresses)].

[OPTIONAL: The following Board members will be participating remotely: [insert names].
Information is included above on how to contact these board members in advance of the
meeting to provide input or ask questions about any business coming before the Board.

Any person with a disability requiring special accommodations to participate in this
meeting should contact the Superintendent’s office at [insert contact information]_in
advance of the meeting.

Option B — Hybrid Meeting

The [District Name] Board of Education will hold a [regular/rescheduled reqular/special]
Board meeting on [Day of the Week], [Month] [Calendar Day], [Year].

The meeting will be held both electronically and in person. One or more Board members

will be participating in the Board meeting remotely due to because-of{selectal-thatapphy):
Military duty.

O
] Reasonable accommodation under the ADA.
O

Other reason permitted by Michigan law.

The public may attend and participate wirtualhy—using this linkportal: [insert telephone
number, internet address, virtual meeting address, or other information needed to
participate]. The public may also attend and participate in person, subject to -health and

safety requwements if appllcable a%tendanee—k#n%&anekapp%abl&seeh%d&anem@rané

©20224/T] THRUN Page 2 of 3

Law FIRM, P.C.
PoLICY SERVIC E



2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meeting Notice

Members of the public may contact any Board member in advance of the meeting to
provide input or ask questions about business that will come before the Board by [insert
individual Board member contact information (e.g. email addresses)].

[OPTIONAL: The following Board members will be participating remotely: [insert names].
Information is included above on how to contact these Bboard members in advance of
the meeting to provide input or ask questions about any business coming before the
Board.

Any person with a disability requiring special accommodations to participate in this
meeting should contact the Superintendent’s office at [insert contact information] in
advance of the meeting.

©20224/T] THRUN Page 3 of 3

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3100 General Operations

3105 Visitors and Volunteers

Visitors and volunteers, including parents/guardians, may access the District’s property
subject to all applicable Policies. The District may deny such access for any lawful reason.

A. Visitors

1.
2.

A person may not enter or remain on the District’s property if prohibited by law.

[Optional: A person visiting a school building during instructional hours must
first report to the building’s main office. In the Superintendent’s or building
principal’s discretion, a visitor may be required to sign in, present a form of
identification, explain the visitor’'s purpose, wear a visitor badge, and be
escorted while on District property.} District personnel that discover a visitor
who has not reported to the building’s main office will promptly direct the visitor
to the building’s main office.]

4.3.

observe classroom instruction. See also Policy 5401.

=

The District may require advance notice from a person who desires to

The building principal or designee may permit a parent/guardian who is a
registered sex offender to visit District property to participate in or attend his or
her child's school activities. The building principal or designee may require the
parent/guardian to comply with other conditions upon visitation, including: a
check-in/check-out system, an employee escort while on District property, and
a requirement to leave District property immediately upon conclusion of the
child’s activity.

B. Volunteers

1.

3.

A person desiring to volunteer must provide information to the District, including
that person’s name, address, telephone number, and a form of identification.

The District may lawfully require a volunteer to complete an application and
consent to a background check as described in Policy 4205.

Volunteering is a privilege, not a right. A person does not have any right to
volunteer or to perform any particular volunteer assignment. The
Superintendent or designee will assess a volunteer’s capabilities and
determine the appropriate volunteer assignment. The Superintendent or
designee may reject a volunteer’s request or deny or terminate a volunteer’s
assignment at any time for any reason that is not unlawful.

T THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.

© 292&2022 PoOLICY SERVICE



4. Vol

a.

unteer Drivers and-Non-SchoolBusTranspertation

A volunteer may only drive a District vehicle with approval of the

a-b.

Superintendent or designee and in compliance with all applicable laws. For
purposes of this subsection B.4-, a “District vehicle” is a vehicle owned or
leased by the District, including a school bus, and a “private vehicle” is any
vehicle that is not a District vehicle.

[Optional: With the Superintendent or designee’s approval, District

b-c.

ed.

personnel, an approved volunteer, or a student’'s parent/guardian may
transport students to and from a school or school-sponsored event in a nen-

schoolbus-vehicle-{a-“non-schoolvehicle’).private vehicle.]

c.  Except in an emergency, before a student rides in a nen-
sehoolprivate vehicle, the driver must receive—the—written—consenthave
permission from—ef the student’'s parent/guardian to—be—the
parent's/iguardian’s-designee-to transport the student to or from the school
or applicable event. Permission must be in writing if the driver is using a
vehicle with a manufacturer’s rated seating capacity of 11 or more

passengers.
A volunteer driver ef-a-ron-schoel-vehicle-must:

e hold a valid driver’s license appropriate for the nen-school-vehicle;

e if required by law, hold a valid chauffeur’s license; and

e for a private vehicle, provide to the Superintendent or designee’s
satisfaction proof of insurance, [Optional: safe driving record,] and proof
of the nen-school-vehicle’s lawful registration. ;:and

_if required by law._hold-a valid chauffeurs i _

e.

Fhe-A volunteer driver ef-a-nen-sehool-vehicle-is responsible for any loss,
damage, cost, and liability related to the driver’s operation of a ren-seheoel
District vehicle_or private vehicle.

Legal authority: MCL 28.721 et seq.; MCL 257.6, 257.1807; MCL 380.1137, 380.1230,

380.1230a-h
Date adopted:
Date revised:
|E| TH RUN

© 2020-2022

PoOLICY SERVICE



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
3100 General Operations
3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups

Support groups are required to complete this form annually by [insert date], whether
operating within the District or as a separate legal entity.

O New Support Group [ Renewal of Existing Support Group

Name of Support Group:

Contact Person Name:

Contact Person Title:

Address:

Phone: Email:

Program or Activity Supported:

Please indicate the status of the support group:

LI Internal Support Group (e.g., parent/guardian group operating within the District).
Complete Section A.

O External Support Group (e.g., booster club, PTO, other separate legal entity).
Complete Section B and the attached Acknowledgment and Release Form.*

Section A: Internal Support Groups

Building of Operation:

Describe purpose, activities, events, and fundraisers held (if applicable):

Signature: Date:
Printed Name: Title:
Primary Staff Contact:

©29%L@THRUN Page 1 of 4

LAwW FIRM, P.C
lllllllllll



3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups

Section B: External Support Groups

Type of Entity (e.g., non-profit corporation):

Bylaws Adopted: [ Yes [0 No Date Adopted:

Date of Formation: (use State of Michigan incorporation date, if applicable)

EIN: (attach copy of IRS confirmation or approval letter)

Banking Institution:

*If in the process of forming a legal entity, please describe steps taken and pending approvals:

Note: If any of the above steps have not been completed at the time of filing this form,
once completed, a new or updated form must be submitted to the District.

Date of Annual Meeting and Election of Officers:

Name and Contact Information of Current Officers:

Title Name Phone Email

President

Vice President

Treasurer
Secretary
Signature: Date:
Printed Name: Title:

*External Support Groups must complete the attached Acknowledgment and Release
Form.

© 2021 THRUN Page 2 of 4

Law FIRM, P.C,



3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups

For Internal Use

Date Received:

Received by: Printed Name:

(1 Approved 0 Not Approved

Signature of Superintendent or Designee:

[Optional: If denied, describe basis (attach additional sheet if necessary)]

If approved or denied by Board of Education, date of Board Meeting:

©29%L@THRUN Page 3 of 4

Law FIRM, P.C
ccccccccc



3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups

Acknowledgment and Release Form
Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Legally Separate Parent/Guardian Groups

By executing this Acknowledgement and Release (“Acknowledgment”), | certify that | am an
authorized representative or officer of the parent/guardian—group identified below
(“Organization”). On behalf of the Organization, which is operated as a separate legal entity
from the District, | certify the following:

| have read and understand District Policy 3106 related to the policies and procedures
applicable to our Organization. The Organization’s operations will comply with applicable
Bboard policies and procedures, administrative guidelines, and Bboard and administrative
directives. | certify on behalf of the Organization that the Organization will not represent to
any third party that it is an agent of the District or has any authority to act on behalf of the
District.

The Organization is currently a properly formed separate legal entity (or is in the process of
becoming a separate legal entity) as indicated on District form 3106-F. The Organization
certifies that it has: (1) established a legal entity through the State of Michigan; (2) obtained
an employer identification number (EIN) through the Internal Revenue Service and does not
utilize the District’'s EIN for any purpose; and (3) established a separate bank account in the
name of the Organization.

As a legally separate entity, the Organization is fully responsible for compliance with
applicable state and federal laws. The District does not require the Organization to obtain tax-
exempt status as a 501(0)(3) or other form of charltable organlzatlon WhICh isa deC|S|on for
the Organization. ,
eens#ued—as—lega!—adwee—The Organlzatlon is soIer responS|bIe for consultlng W|th
appropriate professionals on legal, tax, accounting, and other compliance matters, as
deemed necessary by the Organization, including whether tax-exempt status would be
beneficial for the Organization._Information provided by the District is general in nature and
should not be construed as legal advice.

District personnel may participate in the Organization’s events and activities on a voluntary
basis but may not be required to participate. The Organization is responsible for safeguarding
funds raised by the Organization and has adopted written procedures or internal controls
related to funds to minimize fraud or abuse. The District will not be liable for the failure of the
Organization to properly safeguard funds or for losses associated with fraud or misuse of
funds. Events and activities, including fundraisers, held by the Organization are not District-
sponsored events and the District will not be held liable for such events or activities.

By execution of this Acknowledgment, | certify on behalf of the Organization that | have read
and understand this Acknowledgment and that the Organization releases and holds the
District harmless from liability arising from the operation of the Organization, including liability
related to events and activities, failure to comply with applicable law, financial losses incurred,
including those resulting from fraud or similar acts, and other liability associated with the
Organization’s operations.

Name of Organization:

Signature: Date:

Printed Name: Title:

© 2021 THRUN Page 4 of 4

Law FIRM, P.C,



3100

Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

General Operations

3109 Neon-ServiceCurricular Animals

An animal is not allowed on District property except as provided in this Policy, Policy 3108,
with the Superintendent’s or designee’s approval, or as otherwise required by law.
Nothing in this Policy diminishes any rights a person with a disability may have to be
accompanied by a service animal or other therapy animal on District property. If an
animal’s handler is not a student or employee, the handler must undergo a criminal history
check and any other background check required for employees and volunteers by state

law or

A.

Policy before being allowed to regularly access District facilities as the handler.

Use of Animals for Instructional Purposes

An animal that supports a District program or curriculum or that is otherwise used
for instructional purposes is allowed on District property with the Superintendent’s
or designee’s prior written permission.

It shall be the responsibility of the building’s Principal or their designee to develop
a plan of care for those animals housed in District buildings in the event of a
school closing (i.e., snow day, breaks). Animal-specific guidelines established by
the Centers for Disease Control must be followed at all times.

B. Therapy AnimalsDogs

1. Definition of Therapy Dog

A “therapy an+maJLaJSG—knewn—asdoq " differs_from an “emotional support

anlmal ? “comfort ammal > or companlon anlmal—ls—an—ammal—that—has—net—been

e%he.t&” Therapyammalsd g are not “service animals” underthe Amencanswﬂh

Disabilities Act (ADA) or Board Policy._ Therapy dogs are those that have been:

a. individually trained and certified by an approved therapy doqg training
organization;

b. engaged in animal assisted activities and interactions under the direct
supervision of a handler; and

c. are managed by a handler who has been individually trained, evaluated, and
registered with their therapy dog to provide animal assisted activities and
animal-assisted interactions on District property.
1

©2029 THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



2 A therapy animal-dog must be well-behaved and have a temperament that
is suitable for interaction with students and other persons in a public school. A
therapy animal-dog is the personal property of its owner, not the District.

G- 2. Standards and Procedures for Therapy Dogs

The following requirements must be satisfied before a therapy animal-dog is
allowed on District property:

+a. Request. An owner who wants to bring a therapy animaldog te
sehoolon District property must submit a written request to the
Superintendent or designee. The request must be renewed each school
year or whenever a different therapy animaldog will be used.

2.b. Training and Certification. The owner must submit any training or
certification information requested by the Superintendent or designee. Any
certification required by the District must remain current at all times.

3.c. Health and Vaccination. The therapy animaldog must be clean, well-
groomed, in good health, house broken, and immunized against diseases
common to such animals. The owner must submit proof of current required
licensure from the county or other licensing authority and proof of the
therapy animalsdog’s current vaccinations and immunizations from a
licensed veterinarian, if applicable.

4.d. Control. A therapy animaldog must be under the owner’s or handler’s
control at all times.

e. Handler. If the therapy dog’s handler is a District employee, the therapy dog
will not interfere with the employee's primary job responsibilities.

f. _Ownership. Therapy dogs may be provided by a third party, or
independently owned by a District employee. If owned by a District
employee, the therapy dog must meet the standards of health described
above at the owner’s expense. Required training for accreditation must be
at the owner’s expense. The District bears no financial responsibility for the
care or feeding of the therapy dog. The District is not responsible for
providing any care, supervision, or assistance of the therapy dog.

g. Transportation. Animals, other than service animals, are not to be
transported on school buses. It is the responsibility of the therapy dog’s
handler to transport the dog to and from school property.

5.h. Identification. The therapy animaldog must wear appropriate
identification identifying it as a therapy animaldog .

6.1.No Disruption. The therapy animatfsdog’s behavior must not disrupt the
educational process.

© 20264 ﬁ I“l,-IFBMUPlt[

PoLICY SERVICE



B

7. Health/Safety. The therapy animaldog must not pose a health or safety risk
to any student, employee, or other person.

g.Xk. Supervision/Care of Therapy ArimalsDogs. The owner or handler is
responsible for the supervision and care of a therapy animaldog , including
feeding, exercising, and clean up while the animaldog is in a District building
or on District property. The District is not responsible for providing any
supervision, care, or assistance for a therapy animaldog .

9. Authorized Area(s). The owner or handler will only allow the therapy
antmaldog to be in those areas that have been pre-authorized by the
Superintendent or designee.

40.m. Insurance. The owner or handler must submit a copy of an insurance
policy that provides liability coverage for any damage or injury caused by
the therapy animaldog while on District property.

3. Exclusion or Removal from School

A therapy animaldog may be excluded from District property if the Superintendent
or designee determines that:

1. the handler does not have control of the animaldog ;
2.0. the animaldog is not housebroken;

3.p. the animaldog presents a direct and immediate threat to others; or

4.q. the animalsdog’s presence otherwise disrupts the educational
process.

The owner or handler must remove the therapy animaldog from District property
immediately upon such a determination.

4. Allergic Reactions

If any student or employee assigned to a classroom in which a therapy arimaldog
is permitted suffers an allergic reaction to the therapy animaldog , the owner or
handler must remove the animaldog to a different location designated by the
Superintendent or designee.

5. Damages to District Property and Injuries

The owner of a therapy animaldog is solely responsible and liable for any damage
to property or injury to persons caused by the therapy animal-}.

T THRUN

© 20204 Ly, Foin g PRCH

PoLICY SERVICE



C. A threrapyanimel—sermetmes—cleseralerredlessan—emetienslEmotional Support

Animals

1. An “emotional support animal;” is an animal that has not been individually
trained to perform a specific job or task for a person with a disability, but its
presence provides comfort or emotional support to others. Fherapy-Emotional
support animals are not “service animals” under the ADA or Board Policy.

2. A-therapyAn emotional support animal is not allowed on District property
except as otherwise required by law-}.

Legal authority: 28 CFR 35.136

Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 T[] THREN

PoLICY SERVICE



Series 3000: Operation, Finance, and Property
3100 General Operations
3118 Title IX Sexual Harassment

Consistent with Policy 3115, the District prohibits unlawful sex discrimination, including
harassment and retaliation, in any of its education programs or activities in accordance
with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and corresponding implementing
regulations.

This Policy addresses allegations of Title IX sexual harassment that occurred on or after
August 14, 2020. Allegations of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation not covered by
this Policy should be addressed under the District’s applicable non-discrimination or anti-
harassment policies. Allegations alleging both Title IX sexual harassment and other forms
of unlawful discrimination and harassment (e.g., race, age, disability) that cannot be
reasonably separated into two distinct complaints should be investigated under this
Policy. Investigating other forms of discrimination, including harassment and retaliation,
through this Policy will fulfill the District’s investigation requirements under Policies 4104
or 5202, but nothing in this paragraph limits the District’s right to determine at any time
that a non-Title IX allegation should be addressed under Policies 4104 or 5202 or any
other applicable Policy.

The Board directs the Superintendent or designee to designate one or more employees
who meet the training requirements in Section M of this Policy to serve as the District’s
Title IX Coordinator(s). The Title IX Coordinator will designate an Investigator, Decision-
Maker, and Appeals Officer, if applicable, for each Formal Complaint made under this
Policy. If a Formal Complaint is made under this Policy against the Title IX Coordinator,
the Board President will designate the persons who will serve as the Investigator,
Decision-Maker, and Appeals Officer and will work with District administrators to ensure
that all other requirements of this Policy are met.

The Investigator, Decision-Maker, Appeals Officer, and any person designated to facilitate
an informal resolution process cannot be the same person on a specific matter, and the
persons designated to serve in those roles may or may not be District employees. Any
person serving as the Investigator, Decision-Maker, Appeals Officer, or person designated
to facilitate an informal resolution process must meet the training requirements in Section
M of this Policy.

Inquiries about Title IX’s application to a particular situation may be referred to the Title
IX Coordinator, the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights of the United States Department
of Education, or both.

A. Definitions
For purposes of this Policy, the below terms are defined as follows:

1. “Sexual Harassment” means conduct on the basis of sex that satisfies one or
more of the following:

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



a. A District employee conditioning the provision of a District aid, benefit, or
service on a person’s participation in unwelcome sexual conduct;

b. Unwelcome conduct that a reasonable person would determine to be so
severe, pervasive, and objectively offensive that it effectively denies a
person equal access to the District’s education program or activity; or

c. Sexual assault, dating violence, domestic violence, or stalking, as defined
by the Violence Against Women Act, 34 USC § 12291 et. seq., and the
uniform crime reporting system of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, 20
USC 1092(f)(6)(A)(V).

“Sexual assault” means an offense classified as a forcible or nonforcible
sex offense under the uniform crime reporting system of the Federal
Bureau of Investigation.

. “Dating violence” means violence committed by a person who is or has

been in a romantic or intimate relationship with the Complainant. The
existence of such a relationship is based on a consideration of the length
of the relationship, the type of relationship, and the frequency of
interaction between the persons involved in the relationship.

“‘Domestic violence” means felony or misdemeanor crimes of violence
committed by a current or former spouse or intimate partner of the
Complainant, person with whom the Complainant shares a child, person
who is cohabitating with or has cohabitated with the Complainant as a
spouse or intimate partner, person similarly situated to a spouse of the
Complainant under the domestic or family violence laws of Michigan; or
any other person against an adult or youth Complainant who is protected
from that person’s acts under the domestic or family violence laws of
Michigan.

“Stalking” means engaging in a course of conduct directed at a specific
person that would cause a reasonable person to (1) fear for the person’s
safety or the safety of others; or (2) suffer substantial emotional distress.

2. “Actual Knowledge” means notice of sexual harassment or allegations of sexual
harassment to the District’'s Title 1X Coordinator or any District employee.
Imputation of knowledge based solely on vicarious liability or constructive
notice is insufficient to constitute actual knowledge. This standard is not met
when the only District employee with actual knowledge is the Respondent.

3. “Appeals Officer” is the person designated by the District to handle appeals of
a dismissal or determination of responsibility for matters investigated under this
Policy. The Appeals Officer may not be the same person as the Investigator,
Title 1X Coordinator, Decision-Maker, or person designated to facilitate an
informal resolution process on a specific matter.

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,

PoLic



4. “Complainant” is a person who is alleged to be the victim of conduct that could
constitute Title IX sexual harassment.

5. “Consent” means a voluntary agreement to engage in sexual activity by a
person legally capable of consenting. Someone who is incapacitated cannot
consent. Past consent does not imply future consent. Silence or an absence of
resistance does not imply consent. Consent to engage in sexual activity with
one person does not imply consent to engage in sexual activity with another.
Consent can be withdrawn at any time. Coercion, force, or threat of either
invalidates consent. Sexual conduct or relationships between District
employees, volunteers, or contractors and students, regardless of age or
consent, are prohibited.

6. “Day,” unless otherwise indicated, means a day that the District’s central office
is open for business.

7. “Decision-Maker” is the person designated by the District to review the
investigation report and provide a written determination of responsibility that
provides the evidentiary basis for the Decision-Maker’s conclusions. The
Decision-Maker may not be the same person as the Investigator, Title IX
Coordinator, Appeals Officer, or person designated to facilitate an informal
resolution process on a specific matter.

8. “Education Program or Activity” means any location, event, or circumstance
over which the District exercised substantial control over both the Respondent
and the context in which the harassment occurred.

9. “Formal Complaint” means a written document or electronic submission signed
and filed by a Complainant or signed by the Title IX Coordinator alleging sexual
harassment against a Respondent and requesting that the District investigate
the sexual harassment allegation.

10.“Grievance Process” is the process by which the District handles Formal
Complaints.

11.“Investigator” is the person designated by the District to investigate a Title IX
Formal Complaint. The Investigator cannot be the same person as the
Decision-Maker, Appeals Officer, or person designated to facilitate an informal
resolution process on a specific matter. The Title IX Coordinator may serve as
the Investigator on a particular investigation, unless the Title IX Coordinator
signed the Formal Complaint.

12.“Report” means an account of alleged Title IX sexual harassment made by any
person (regardless of whether the reporting party is the alleged victim).

13.“Respondent” is a person who has been reported to be the perpetrator of
conduct that could constitute Title IX sexual harassment.

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



14.“Supportive Measures” are non-disciplinary, non-punitive, individualized
services offered and implemented by the Title IX Coordinator as appropriate,
as reasonably available, and at no-cost to the Complainant and the
Respondent before or after the filing of a Formal Complaint or when no Formal
Complaint has been filed. Supportive measures are designed to restore or
preserve equal access to the District’'s education program or activity without
unreasonably burdening the other party, including measures designed to
protect the safety of all parties or the District’'s educational environment, or
deter sexual harassment.

15.“Title 1X Coordinator” is the person(s) designated by the District to coordinate
the District’s Title IX compliance. The Title IX Coordinator may not be the same
person as the Appeals Officer or Decision-Maker on a specific matter. A person
not serving as a Title IX Coordinator in a particular matter is not disqualified
from serving in another role in that matter. The Title IX Coordinator may also
serve as the Investigator or person designated to facilitate an informal
resolution process on a particular investigation, unless the Title IX Coordinator
signed the Formal Complaint.

B. Posting Requirement

The Title 1X Coordinator’s contact information (name or title, office address,
electronic mail address, and telephone number), along with the District’s Title IX
nondiscrimination statement, must be prominently posted on the District’s website
and in any catalogs or handbooks provided to applicants for admission or
employment, students, parents/guardians, and unions or professional
organizations with a collective bargaining or professional agreement with the
District.

The District will provide notice of this Policy to all applicants, students,
parents/guardians, employees, and unions or professional organizations with a
collective bargaining or professional agreement with the District by prominently
posting this Policy on its website and referencing this Policy in its handbooks,
which will include the Title IX Coordinator’s name or title, office address, electronic
mail address, and telephone number.

C. Designation of Title IX Coordinator
The District designates the following person(s) as the Title IX Coordinator(s):

[TITLE IX COORDINATOR NAME OR POSITION/TITLE]
[TITLE IX COORDINATOR OFFICE ADDRESS]
[TITLE IX COORDINATOR PHONE NUMBER]

[TITLE IX COORDINATOR EMAIL]

D. Reporting Title IX Sexual Harassment:

A person may make a report of sexual harassment or retaliation at any time.
Reports may be made in person, by mail, by telephone, or by electronic mail, using

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



the contact information listed for the Title IX Coordinator, or by any other means
that result in the Title IX Coordinator receiving the person’s verbal or written report.

Any District employee who receives a report of sexual harassment or has actual
knowledge of sexual harassment must convey that information to the Title IX
Coordinator by the end of the next day.

Any other person who witnesses an act of sexual harassment is encouraged to
report it to a District employee and may do so anonymously. No person will be
retaliated against based on any report of suspected sexual harassment or
retaliation.

E. General Response to Sexual Harassment
1. District’s Obligation to Respond without Deliberate Indifference

Upon actual knowledge of Title IX sexual harassment, the Title IX Coordinator
must respond promptly in a manner that is not deliberately indifferent. The
District will be deemed to be deliberately indifferent only if its response to sexual
harassment is clearly unreasonable in light of the known circumstances.

If the Title IX Coordinator receives a report of sexual harassment and the
Complainant does not file a Formal Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator must
evaluate the information and determine whether to sign and file a Formal
Complaint. If the Title IX Coordinator determines not to sign and file a Formal
Complaint, the Title IX Coordinator must address the allegations in a manner
that is not deliberately indifferent.

2. Response to Report of Title IX Sexual Harassment

Upon receipt of a report of sexual harassment, the Title IX Coordinator must
promptly contact the Complainant to discuss the availability of supportive
measures, consider the Complainant’'s wishes with respect to supportive
measures, inform the Complainant of the availability of supportive measures
with or without the filing of a Formal Complaint, and explain to the Complainant
the process for filing a Formal Complaint.

3. Formal Complaint Filed

Upon the receipt of a Formal Complaint, the District must follow the Grievance
Process in Section F of this Policy. A Formal Complaint may be submitted using
the Title IX Sexual Harassment Formal Complaint Form.

4. Equitable Treatment

The District will treat the Complainant and Respondent equitably throughout
the Grievance Process, which may include offering supportive measures as
described in Subsection E(6) of this Policy.

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



5. Documentation and Recordkeeping

The Title IX Coordinator will document all sexual harassment reports and all
incidents of sexual harassment that the Title IX Coordinator receives or
personally observes.

The District will retain this documentation in accordance with applicable record
retention requirements in Section N of this Policy.

6. Supportive Measures

After receiving a report of Title IX sexual harassment, the Title IX Coordinator
must promptly contact the Complainant to discuss the availability of supportive
measures, with or without the filing of a Formal Complaint. If the District does
not provide a Complainant with supportive measures, then the Title IX
Coordinator must document the reasons why such a response was not clearly
unreasonable in light of the known circumstances.

The District may provide, as appropriate, non-disciplinary, non-punitive
individualized services to the Complainant or Respondent before or after the
filing of a Formal Complaint or when no Formal Complaint has been filed.

Supportive measures should be designed to restore or preserve equal access
to the District’'s education program or activity without unreasonably burdening
the other party.

Supportive measures are offered without charge to all parties and are designed
to protect the safety of all parties or the District’s educational environment, or
deter sexual harassment.

Supportive measures may include, but are not limited to:

a. District-provided counseling;

b. Course-related adjustments, such as deadline extensions;
c. Modifications to class or work schedules;

d. Provision of an escort to ensure that the Complainant and Respondent can
safely attend classes and school activities; and

e. No-contact orders.

All supportive measures must be kept confidential, to the extent that
maintaining such confidentiality would not impair the District’s ability to provide
the supportive measures.

7. Respondent Removal

a. Emergency Removal (Student)

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



The District may only remove a student Respondent from a District program
or activity if, following an individualized safety and risk analysis, the District
determines that there is an immediate threat to the physical health or safety
of any student or other person arising from the sexual harassment
allegations. The District must provide the Respondent with notice and an
opportunity to immediately challenge the removal decision. This provision
may not be construed to modify any rights under the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or
the Americans with Disabilities Act.

b. Administrative Leave (Employee)

The District may place an employee Respondent on non-disciplinary
administrative leave during the pendency of the Grievance Process. This
provision may not be construed to modify any rights under Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 or the Americans with Disabilities Act.

8. Law Enforcement

In appropriate circumstances, a District employee will notify law enforcement
or Child Protective Services, consistent with Policies 4202, 5201, and 5701.

The District will attempt to comply with all law enforcement requests for
cooperation with related law enforcement activity. In some circumstances,
compliance with law enforcement requests may require the District to briefly
suspend or delay its investigation. If an investigation is delayed, the District will
notify the parties in writing of the delay and the reasons for the delay.

If the District’s investigation is suspended or delayed, supportive measures will
continue during the suspension or delay. If the law enforcement agency does
not notify the District within 10 days that the District’s investigation may resume,
the District will notify the law enforcement agency that the District intends to
promptly resume its investigation.

F. Grievance Process
1. Generally

The Grievance Process begins when a Formal Complaint is filed or when the
Title IX Coordinator signs a Formal Complaint and concludes the date the
parties receive the Appeals Officer’s written decision or the date on which an
appeal is no longer timely. The District will endeavor to complete the Grievance
Process within 90-120 days, absent extenuating circumstances or delays as
described below. The District will treat both the Complainant and the
Respondent equitably throughout the Grievance Process.

Neither the Title IX Coordinator, the Decision-Maker, the Investigator, Appeals
Officer, nor any person designated to facilitate an informal resolution process
will have a conflict of interest or bias for or against Complainants or

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



Respondents generally or for or against an individual Complainant or
Respondent.

The Grievance Process requires an objective evaluation of all relevant
evidence — including both inculpatory and exculpatory evidence. Credibility
determinations may not be based on a person’s status as a Complainant,
Respondent, or witness.

Throughout the Grievance Process, there is a presumption that the
Respondent is not responsible for the alleged conduct unless, in the
determination of responsibility, the Decision-Maker finds the Respondent
responsible for the alleged conduct.

At any point, the Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, Decision-Maker, or Appeals
Officer may temporarily delay the Grievance Process or permit a limited
extension of time frames for good cause. Good cause may include absence of
a party, party’s advisor, or witness; concurrent law enforcement activity; or the
need for accommodations (e.g., language assistance or accommodation of
disabilities). If there is a delay or extension, the parties will receive written
notice of the delay or extension and the reasons for the action.

Any disciplinary action resulting from the Grievance Process will be issued in
accordance with District Policy, as applicable, and any applicable codes of
conduct, handbooks, collective bargaining agreements, and individual
employee contracts.

After the investigation portion of the Grievance Process has concluded, the
Decision-Maker will endeavor to issue a determination of responsibility within
30 days, absent extenuating circumstances.

2. Notice of Allegations

Upon receipt of a Formal Complaint, the District must provide written notice to
the parties who are known at the time that includes:

a. A copy of this Policy, which includes the District’'s Grievance Process, and
any informal resolution process;

b. The sexual harassment allegations, including sufficient details known at the
time and with sufficient time so that parties may prepare a response before
the initial interview. Sufficient details include parties involved in the incident,
if known; the alleged conduct constituting sexual harassment; and the date
and time of the alleged incident;

c. A statement that the Respondent is presumed not responsible for the
alleged conduct;

d. A statement that a determination of responsibility is made at the Grievance
Process’s conclusion;

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



e. A statement that the parties may have an advisor of their choice, who may
be an attorney, although any attorney or advisor who is not a District
employee will be at the party’s own cost;

f. A statement that the parties will be provided an opportunity to inspect and
review any evidence before the investigation report is finalized; and

g. If the Complainant or Respondent is a student, and the District’'s Student
Code of Conduct addresses false statements by students during the
disciplinary process, a citation to that portion of the Code of Conduct. If the
Code of Conduct does not address false statements by students, the notice
is not required to include any reference.

If, during the course of an investigation, the Investigator decides to investigate
allegations that are not included in this notice, the District will provide notice of
the additional allegations to the Complainant and Respondent.

3. Informal Resolution

During the Grievance Process, after a Formal Complaint has been filed but
before a determination of responsibility has been made, the District may offer
to facilitate an informal resolution process, or either party may request the
informal resolution process. A Formal Complaint must be filed to initiate the
informal resolution process.

Informal resolution does not require a full investigation and may encompass a
broad range of conflict resolution strategies, including, but not limited to,
arbitration, mediation, or restorative justice. The Title IX Coordinator will
determine the informal resolution process that will be used, including the
person who will facilitate that process.

Informal resolution is not available for a Formal Complaint alleging that an
employee sexually harassed a student.

A party is not required to participate in an informal resolution process.

When offering informal resolution, the Title IX Coordinator must (1) provide both
parties written notice of their rights in an informal resolution; and (2) obtain
written, voluntary consent from both parties to enter into the informal resolution
process. The written notice must contain the:

a. Allegations;

b. Informal resolution requirements, including the circumstances under which
the informal resolution precludes the parties from resuming a Formal
Complaint arising from the same allegations;

c. Right to withdraw from informal resolution and resume the Grievance
Process at any time prior to agreeing to a resolution; and

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



d. Any consequences resulting from participating in the informal resolution
process, including the records that will be maintained or could be shared

4. Investigation

The District has the burden of proof and the burden to gather evidence sufficient
to reach a determination of responsibility.

a. Investigation Process

The District will not require, allow, rely upon, or otherwise use questions or
evidence that constitute, or seek disclosure of, information protected under
a legally recognized privilege unless the person holding such privilege has
waived the privilege in writing.

The District may not access, consider, disclose, or otherwise use a party’s
medical records, including mental health records, which are made and
maintained by a healthcare provider in connection with the party’s treatment
unless the District obtains that party’s voluntary, written consent to do so for
the Grievance Process.

The Investigator must provide an equal opportunity for the parties to present
witnesses, including fact and expert witnesses, and other inculpatory or
exculpatory evidence. The Investigator cannot restrict parties from
discussing the allegations under investigation, nor can the Investigator
restrict parties from gathering or presenting relevant evidence.

Parties may be accompanied by an advisor of their choice, including an
attorney, in any meeting or Grievance Process proceeding. If a party
chooses an advisor who is not a District employee, the District is not
responsible for any associated costs. The Superintendent or designee may
establish restrictions regarding the extent to which the advisor may
participate in the proceedings, as long as the restrictions apply equally to
both parties (e.g., abusive, disruptive behavior or language will not be
tolerated; advisor will not interrupt the investigator to ask questions of
witnesses).

The Investigator must provide the date, time, location, participants, and
purpose of all hearings (if any), investigative interviews, and meetings, to a
party whose participation is invited or expected. Written notice must be
provided a sufficient time in advance so that a party may prepare to
participate.

As described in Section L of this Policy, retaliation against a person for
making a complaint or participating in an investigation is prohibited.

The Investigator must ensure that the Complainant and Respondent have
an equal opportunity to inspect and review any evidence obtained as part
of the investigation so that each party has the opportunity to meaningfully

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



respond to the evidence before the investigation’s conclusion. This
evidence includes (1) evidence upon which the District does not intend to
rely in reaching a determination regarding responsibility, and (2) inculpatory
or exculpatory evidence obtained from any source.

Before the investigation’s completion, the Investigator must send to each
party and the party’s advisor, if any, the evidence subject to inspection and
review in an electronic format or a hard copy, and the parties must have at
least 10 calendar days to submit a written response to the Investigator. The
party’s response must be considered by the Investigator before completing
the final investigation report.

b. Investigation Report

The Investigator must create an investigation report that fairly summarizes
relevant evidence and submit the investigation report to the Decision-
Maker.

At least 10 calendar days before a determination of responsibility is issued,
the Investigator must send the investigation report to each party for review
and written response. Written responses to the investigation report must be
submitted directly to the Decision-Maker.

The Investigator will endeavor to complete the investigation and finalize the
report within 60 days.

5. Determination of Responsibility

The Decision-Maker cannot be the same person as the Title IX Coordinator,
Investigator, Appeals Officer, or person designated to facilitate an informal
resolution process.

Before the Decision-Maker reaches a determination of responsibility, and after
the Investigator has sent the investigation report to the parties, the Decision-
Maker must:

a. Afford each party the opportunity to submit written, relevant questions that
a party wants asked of any party or witness; and

b. Provide each party with the answers, and allow for additional, limited follow-
up questions from each party.

Questions and evidence about the Complainant’s sexual predisposition or prior
sexual behavior are not relevant unless offered to prove that someone other
than the Respondent committed the alleged misconduct, or the questions and
evidence concern specific incidents of the Complainant’s prior sexual behavior
with respect to the Respondent and are offered to prove consent.

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



If the Decision-Maker decides to exclude questions from either party as not
relevant, the Decision-Maker must explain the decision to the party proposing
the questions.

The Decision-Maker must issue a written determination of responsibility based
on a preponderance of the evidence standard (i.e., more likely than not)
simultaneously to both parties. The written determination of responsibility must
include:

a. ldentification of the sexual harassment allegations;

b. Description of the procedural steps taken from the receipt of the Formal
Complaint through the determination of responsibility, including any:

i. Notification to the parties;
ii. Party and witness interviews;
iii. Site visits;
iv. Methods used to collect evidence; and
v. Hearings held.
c. Factual findings that support the determination;

d. Conclusions about the application of any relevant code of conduct, policy,
law, or rule to the facts;

e. A statement of, and rationale for, the result as to each allegation, including:
i. A determination of responsibility;

ii. Any disciplinary action taken against the Respondent (consistent with
Policies 4309, 4407, 4506, 4606, or 5206, as applicable, and any
applicable codes of conduct, handbooks, collective bargaining
agreements, or individual employee contracts); and

iii. Whether remedies designed to restore and preserve equal access to the
District’'s education program or activity will be provided to the
Complainant.

f. Appeal rights
6. Appeals

Notice of the determination of responsibility or dismissal decision must include
notice of the parties’ appeal rights.

Both parties may appeal a determination of responsibility or the decision to
dismiss a Formal Complaint in whole or in part for the following reasons only:

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



a. A procedural irregularity that affected the outcome.

b. New evidence that was not reasonably available at the time the
determination of responsibility or dismissal decision was made that could
affect the outcome.

c. The Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, or Decision-Maker had a conflict of
interest or bias for or against the Complainant or Respondent, generally or
individually, that affected the outcome.

d. [DISTRICT MAY CHOOSE TO ADD ADDITIONAL APPEAL GROUNDS]

An appeal must be filed with the Title IX Coordinator within 5 calendar days of
the date of the determination of responsibility or dismissal decision.

Upon receipt of an appeal, the Title IX Coordinator will assign an Appeals
Officer who will provide both parties written notice of the appeal and an equal
opportunity to submit a written statement in support of, or challenging, the
determination or dismissal decision.

The Appeals Officer must provide a written decision describing the result of the
appeal and the rationale for the result to both parties simultaneously. The
Appeals Officer will endeavor to decide an appeal within 30 days.

The Appeals Officer cannot be the same person who acts as the Title IX
Coordinator, Investigator, Decision-Maker, or person designated to facilitate an
informal resolution process on the same matter. The Appeals Officer also
cannot have a conflict of interest or bias against Complainants and
Respondents generally or individually.

The determination of responsibility is final upon the date the parties receive the
Appeals Officer’s written decision or on the date on which an appeal is no
longer timely.

G. Dismissal
1. Mandatory Dismissals
The Title IX Coordinator must dismiss a Formal Complaint if:

a. The Formal Complaint’s allegations, even if proven, would not constitute
sexual harassment as defined in this Policy;

b. The Formal Complaint’s allegations did not occur in the District’s programs
or activities; or

c. The Formal Complaint’s allegations did not occur in the United States.
2. Discretionary Dismissals

The Title IX Coordinator may dismiss a Formal Complaint if:

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



a. The Complainant notifies the Title IX Coordinator in writing that the
Complainant wishes to withdraw the Formal Complaint in whole or in part;

b. The Respondent’s enrollment or employment ends; or

c. Specific circumstances prevent the District from gathering evidence
sufficient to reach a determination (e.g., several years have passed
between alleged misconduct and Formal Complaint filing, Complainant
refuses or ceases to cooperate with Grievance Process).

The Title IX Coordinator will promptly and simultaneously notify both parties when
a Formal Complaint is dismissed. The notice must include the reasons for
mandatory or discretionary dismissal and the right to appeal. Appeal rights are
discussed above in Subsection F(6) of this Policy.

Dismissal of a Formal Complaint under this Policy does not excuse or preclude the
District from investigating alleged violations of other policy, rule, or law, or from
issuing appropriate discipline based on the results of the investigation.

H. Consolidation of Complaints

The Title IX Coordinator or Investigator may consolidate Formal Complaints where
the allegations arise out of the same facts or circumstances. Where a Grievance
Process involves more than one Complainant or more than one Respondent,
references in this Policy to the singular “party,” “Complainant,” or “Respondent”
include the plural, as applicable.

I. Remedies and Disciplinary Sanctions

The District will take appropriate and effective measures to promptly remedy the
effects of sexual harassment. The Title IX Coordinator is responsible for the
effective implementation of any remedies.

Appropriate remedies will be based on the circumstances and may include, but are
not limited to:

1. Providing an escort to ensure that the Complainant and Respondent can safely
attend classes and school activities;

2. Offering the parties school-based counseling services, as necessary;

3. Providing the parties with academic support services, such as tutoring, as
necessary;

4. Rearranging course or work schedules, to the extent practicable, to minimize
contact between the Complainant and Respondent;

5. Moving the Complainant’s or the Respondent’s locker or work space;

6. Issuing a “no contact” directive between the Complainant and Respondent;

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



7. Providing counseling memoranda with directives or recommendations;

These remedies may also be available to any other student or person who is or
was affected by the sexual harassment.

The District will impose disciplinary sanctions consistent with District Policy, as
applicable, and any applicable codes of conduct, handbooks, collective bargaining
agreements, or individual employee contracts. Discipline may range from warning
or reprimand to termination of employment, or student suspension or expulsion.

After a determination of responsibility, the Title IX Coordinator should consider
whether broader remedies are required, which may include, but are not limited to:

1. Assemblies reminding students and staff of their obligations under this Policy
and applicable handbooks;

2. Additional staff training;
3. Aclimate survey; or

4. Letters to students, staff, and parents/guardians reminding persons of their
obligations under this Policy and applicable handbooks.

If the Complainant or Respondent is a student with a disability, the District will
convene an IEP or Section 504 Team meeting to determine if additional or different
programs, services, accommodations, or supports are required to ensure that the
Complainant or Respondent continues to receive a free appropriate public
education. Any disciplinary action taken against a Respondent who is a student
with a disability must be made in accordance with Policy 5206B and the Individuals
with Disabilities Education Act or Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.

J. False Statements

Any person who knowingly makes a materially false statement in bad faith in a Title
IX investigation will be subject to discipline, up to and including discharge or
permanent expulsion. A dismissal or determination that the Respondent did not
violate this Policy is not sufficient, on its own, to conclude that a person made a
materially false statement in bad faith.

K. Confidentiality

The District will keep confidential the identity of a person who reports sexual
harassment or files a Formal Complaint, including parties and witnesses, except

o202+ JF] THRUN

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
PoLICY SERVIC E



as permitted or required by law or to carry out any provision of this Policy,
applicable regulations, or laws.

L. Retaliation

Retaliation (e.g., intimidation, threats, coercion) for the purpose of interfering with
a person’s rights under Title IX is prohibited. This prohibition applies to retaliation
against any person who makes a report, files a Formal Complaint, or participates
in, or refuses to participate in a Title IX proceeding. Complaints alleging retaliation
may be pursued in accordance with District Policy.

The exercise of rights protected under the First Amendment does not constitute
retaliation prohibited by this Section.

When processing a report or Formal Complaint of sexual harassment, pursuing
discipline for other conduct arising out of the same facts or circumstances
constitutes retaliation if done for the purpose of interfering with that person’s rights
under Title 1X.

Any person who engages in retaliation will be disciplined in accordance with
District Policy, as applicable, and any applicable codes of conduct, handbooks,
collective bargaining agreements, and individual employee contracts.

M. Training

All District employees must be trained on how to identify and report sexual
harassment.

Any person designated as a Title IX Coordinator, Investigator, Decision-Maker,
Appeals Officer, or any person who facilitates an informal resolution process must
be trained on the following:

1. The definition of sexual harassment;
2. The scope of the District’'s education programs or activities;

3. How to conduct an investigation and the District’s grievance process, including,
as applicable, hearings, appeals, and informal resolution processes; and

4. How to serve impartially, including avoiding prejudgment of the facts at issue,
conflicts of interest, and bias.

Investigators must receive training on how to prepare an investigation report as
outlined in Subsection F(4)(b) above, including, but not limited to, issues of
relevance.

Decision-Makers and Appeals Officers must receive training on issues of evidence
and questioning, including, but not limited to, when questions about a
Complainant’s prior sexual history or disposition are not relevant.

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



Any materials used to train District employees who act as Title IX Coordinators,
Investigators, Decision-Makers, Appeals Officers, or who facilitate an informal
resolution process must not rely on sex stereotypes and must promote impartial
investigations and adjudications of Formal Complaints. These training materials
must be posted on the District’s website.

N. Record Keeping

The District will maintain records related to reports of alleged Title IX sexual
harassment for a minimum of seven years. This retention requirement applies to
investigation records, disciplinary sanctions, remedies, appeals, and records of
any action taken, such as supportive measures.

The District will also retain any materials used to train Title IX Coordinators,
Investigators, Decision-Makers, Appeals Officers, and any person designated to
facilitate an informal resolution process.

0. Office for Civil Rights

Any person who believes that he or she was the victim of sexual harassment may
file a complaint with the Office for Civil Rights (OCR) at any time:

U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights
1350 Euclid Avenue, Suite 325
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
Phone: (216) 522-4970
E-mail: OCR.Cleveland@ed.gov

An OCR complaint may be filed before, during, or after filing a Formal Complaint
with the District. A person may forego filing a Formal Complaint with the District
and instead file a complaint directly with OCR. The District recommends that a
person who has been subjected to sexual harassment also file a Formal Complaint
with the District to ensure that the District is able to take steps to prevent any further
harassment and to discipline the alleged perpetrator, if necessary. OCR does not
serve as an appellate body for District decisions under this Policy. An investigation
by OCR will occur separately from any District investigation.

Legal authority: Education Amendments Act of 1972, 20 USC §§1681 - 1688; 34 CFR
Part 106

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
3301 Purchasing and Procurement

This Policy applies to all purchases of materials, supplies, and equipment. Purchases
acquired through lease financing are governed by this Policy, but true leases (i.e., rental
agreements) are not.

A. Responsibility for Purchasing

The District's administration, under the Superintendent’'s supervision, may
purchase items for the District, subject to any parameters established by the
Board.

B. When Competitive Bidding is Required

1. The District must competitively bid the purchase of an item or group of items
costing an amount equal to or greater than the then-current state bid threshold
published annually by MDE.

2. The District does not need to competitively bid a purchase_[Optional: in_an
emergency or] if competitive bidding is not required by law.

3. The District will not artificially segregate purchases into smaller orders to avoid
the bid threshold.

C. Bidding Procedure

1. The District may competitively bid a purchase using 1 or more of the following
methods:

a. Requesting written price quotations from at least 3 known and practical
vendors of an item;

b. Distributing a request for proposals to at least 3 known and practical
vendors of an item;

c. Posting a request for proposals on the District's website or any other
website that regularly informs vendors of bid opportunities;

d. Selecting a contract awarded to a winning bidder under a bid process
operated by a reputable bid cooperative if the District determines, after
reasonable due diligence, that the bid procedure used by the bid
cooperative was fair and open, resulted in a bid award to the lowest
responsible bidder, and the contract price is comparable to current market
rates for the purchased item; or



e. Any other process, in the Superintendent’s or designee’s discretion, that is
likely to result in at least 3 known vendors providing bids for the item sought,
regardless of whether at least 3 bids are actually received.

2. Each bidder responding to a request for proposals must certify that it is not an
Iran-linked business as defined by MCL 129.312.

3. Awarding Bids

a. If competitive bidding is required by law, any contract must be awarded by
the Board to the lowest responsible bidder.

b. In determining bidder responsibility, the District may take 1 or more of the
following into account:

e The District’s experience with the bidder;
e Others’ experience with the bidder;

e The bidder’s history of satisfactory performance or questionable
litigation, protests, or disputes;

e The bidder’s capitalization and solvency;

e The length of time the bidder has been engaged in its business;

e The recommendation of the District’s professional consultants; and
e Any other factor consistently and lawfully applied.

c. In any bid procedure, the District reserves the right to reject any or all bids
or waive any informalities or irregularities in the bid process.

4. Michigan-Based Business Preference

a. The District may give up to a 10% preference to a bidder that is a Michigan-
based business as defined by MCL 18.1268.

b. The Michigan-based business preference will not apply if federal funds are
used for the purchase.

D. Purchases Using State Aid Act Funds

1. The District will not use state aid to purchase foreign goods or services if
American goods or services are available, competitively priced, and of
comparable quality.

2. The District will give a preference to goods or services manufactured or
provided by Michigan businesses if competitively priced and of comparable
quality.



3. The District will give a preference to goods or services manufactured or
provided by Michigan businesses owned and operated by veterans if
competitively priced and of comparable quality.

E. Purchases Using Federal Funds

14— This-subsection-E-only-appliestopurchases-Purchases made with federal
funds and subject to the federal Unlform Grant Guidance—Al—terms—in—this

© 2021 IﬂﬁH’?

POLICY SERVICE



Legal authority: 2 CFR 200.1 et seq.; MCL 129.311 et seq.; MCL 380.1274; MCL
388.1764c

Date adopted:

Date revised:

THRUN

Law FiIrM, P.C.
PoLICY SERVICE

© 2021 P



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property

3301A Purchasing and Procurement with Federal Funds

This Policy applies to purchases of property and services with federal funds and subject
to the Uniform Grant Guidance. All terms in this Policy have the same respective
meanings as defined by federal requlation (2 CFR 200.1-99).

A. State Law Requirements Still Apply

Bidding requirements under Policy 3301 and Policy 3306, as applicable, remain
enforceable in addition to any requirements in this Policy.

B. Procurement Methods

The District must use 1 of the following procurement methods that includes
information sufficient to inform all potential bidders about the District’s technical,
service, and bid procedure requirements:

1. Purchases up to $10,000 (micro-purchases)

a. To the extent District administration determines that the cost of the purchase
is reasonable, micro-purchases may be made or awarded without bidding
in accordance with this Policy. For purposes of this subsection, “reasonable”
means the purchase is comparable to market prices for the geographic
area.

b. To the extent practicable, the District will distribute micro-purchases
equitably among qualified suppliers.

2. Purchases between $10,000 and $250,000 (small purchase procedures)

The District will use a bidding procedure in Policy 3301 subsection C.1., except
that the District may use the bidding procedure in subsection B.1.a, above, for
purchases up to the then-current state bid threshold published annually by
MDE if the District satisfies the annual certification requirements of 2 CFR
200.320(a)(1)(iv).

3. Purchases over $250,000

a. The District must either receive sealed bids through formal advertising or
prepare a comprehensive request for proposals and submit it to at least 5
sources.

b. With either method, the District will perform a price analysis, making an
independent estimate of costs before receiving bids.

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



C. The District will take affirmative steps to assure that minority-owned businesses,
women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are included in bidding
opportunities.

D. A person may protest the veracity, conformity, or eligibility of a bid. The District will
handle bid protests as follows:

1. Within 48 hours of the time bid results are available, the protesting person will
submit a written protest to the Superintendent describing in detail the nature of

the protest;

2. The Superintendent or designee will review the written protest, and the
Superintendent may bring it to the Board’s attention in the Superintendent’s
discretion; and

3. A person’s failure to file a protest as described above is an irrevocable waiver
of the bid protest.

Nothing in this Policy reduces or eliminates the District’s rights or protections
afforded under the law.

E. The District will retain all bids and formal bid solicitation documents for a period of
6 years after the bid opening date, or longer if required by law.

Legal authority: 2 CFR 200.1 et seq.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
3302 Acquisition of Real Property

The Board may acquire real property for any purpose and through any means permitted
by law.

A. Acquisition costs must be reasonable, as determined by the Board. Reasonable
cost may not be the same as fair market value.

B. [Optional: Subject to Board parameters and legal review, the Superintendent may
obtain, negotiate, modify, and execute transaction documents for any Board-
authorized acquisition of real property.]

C. The Board may meet in closed session to discuss the purchase or lease of real
property as permitted by law.

D. When title to real property is acquired, the District should provide written notice via
registered mail to the local tax assessor by December 31 of the year of acquisition
that the property will be tax-exempt.

Legal authority: MCL 15.268; MCL 207.501 et seq., 207.521 et seq.; MCL 380.553,
380.1225, 380.1351 et seq.; MCL 565.351 et seq.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o202+ 98] THRUN

s . AW FIRM, P.C.



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property

3303 Gifts and Donations

The Board recognizes and appreciates the generosity and support it receives in the form
of gifts, donations, and voluntary contributions (“Donations”) from individuals, companies,
parent/guardian support groups, the community, and other donors.

The District requests that substantial Donations be accompanied by Form 3303-F Gifts
and Donations. All Donations made for a particular purpose must be accompanied by
Form 3303-F.

A. Accepting Donations

1.
2.

Donations must be lawful and support an educational purpose.

Donations accepted by the District will become public funds or public property
unless an exception is provided under applicable law.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent or designee to accept Donations of
personal property with an estimated fair market value of [$ or less]. The
Board retains authority, in its discretion, to accept Donations of personal

property exceeding [$ .
The Board must approve all Donations of real property, regardless of value.

Donations accepted by the District will be used for any specific purpose
identified by the donor provided the purpose is lawful and consistent with the
District’s interests and objectives. A donor may identify the specific purpose of
the Donation and any other lawful conditions using the District 3303-F.

Except as required by law, the District does not have an obligation to replace a
Donation that is lost, destroyed, or becomes obsolete.

B. [Optional: Soliciting Donations

1.

The District may solicit donations in accordance with law, which may include

2.

pursuing an exemption from registration under the Charitable Organizations
and Solicitations Act.

Any individual wishing to solicit donations on behalf of the District must obtain

B-C.

prior written approval from the Superintendent or designee before representing
any affiliation with the District. Unless otherwise agreed by the Superintendent
or designee, the individual will be responsible for all costs and liability related
to the solicitation and all received donations will become the District’s property.]

Scholarships are governed by Policy 3207.

aw Firm, P.C.

02021 ] THRUN



G:D. A donor is solely responsible for any tax consequences related to a
Donation.

Legal authority: MCL 123.905; MCL 400.271, et seq.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

w Firm, P.C.

02021 ] THRUN



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
3303-F Gifts and Donations Form

The Board of Education recognizes and appreciates the generosity and support it
receives from individuals, companies, parent/guardian support groups, the community,
and other donors (“Donors”).

The District is a tax-exempt organization that may receive charitable contributions under
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code Section 170(c)(1). The District is not may-retbe-a
tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3). For additional information on
deductions related to a donation (“Donation”) or charitable contribution, Donors are
encouraged to consult with a tax professional. Donations to the District shall be treated
as public funds to be used for a public and educational purpose in accordance with state
and federal law. [Optional: Donors may also donate directly to,
(insert name of educational foundation supporting the
District). The Foundation is a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) (insert tax-
exempt status if applicable).]

Donor Information

Name of Donor:

Contact Person:

Address:

Phone: Email:

If the Donor is an internal support group operating within the District as described under
Policy 3106, please provide the following information, if applicable:

Describe student group or club, activity, or event:

© 20242. THRUN Page 1 of 3

Law FIRM, P.C.
nnnnnnnnn



3303-F Gifts and Donations Form

Donation Information

School building associated with Donation:
Insert “district-wide” if not associated with a particular school building.

Please indicate type of Donation and complete the appropriate section that follows.
O Cash Donation
O Real Property
O Personal Property (e.g., equipment, supplies)
O Other (e.g., services, capital projects, or other construction):

Cash or Monetary Donation:

Amount of Donation: $

Do not attach checks to this Form. The District will provide notification of acceptance or, if unable to
accept, notification ineluding-of the reason for non-acceptance.

Personal Property:

Description of Personal Property:

Estimated fair market value: * $

Real Property and Capital Projects:
Description of Real Property:

Estimated fair market value: * $

Pursuant to Policy 3303, donations of real property require approval by the Board of Education. The
Superintendent or designee will contact Donors desiring to gift real property or complete capital
projects for additional documentation as identified in Policy 3303.

Other:

Description:

* For specific information related to valuation, see IRS Publication 561, Determining the Value of Donated Property.

©2@%@THRUN Page 2 of 3

Law FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE



3303-F Gifts and Donations Form

Donation Purpose

Is the gift or donation for a specific purpose? [ Yes [ No

If yes, please describe the specific purpose (e.g., the District building, event or

student club) as well as any other related details:

Is the Donation for the purchase of a gift or an award for recognition (e.g., volunteer

services, student achievement, staff appreciation)? [ Yes [ No

If yes, please describe the purpose:

Do any other terms, conditions, or restrictions apply to the Donation? [ Yes [ No

If yes, please describe:

By signing this form, | understand and agree that:

The information provided is complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge and belief. | acknowledge
that | have read and understand Board Policy 3303, Gifts and Donations, and understand that accepted
Donations become public funds of the District unless a specific exception applies under law. Donor
acknowledges that the District shall not be accountable to replace Donations that are lost, destroyed, or

become obsolete. | further represent that | am an authorized representative of the Donor.

Signature: Date:

Printed Name:

Title or Position (if Donor is other than an individual):

For Internal Use

O Accepted [ NotAccepted Date:

Signature of Superintendent or Designee:

0 Donor Contacted by:

staff member name
Date:

If approved by Board, date of Board meeting:

[Optional: Provide a link to PDF version of Form on District letterhead]

©M@THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE

Page 3 of 3



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property

3304 Use of District Property

A. Definitions

1.

[Optional in conjunction with subsection D.5: “Non-curricular education group”
means a non-student group comprised of a substantial number of District
students organized for the general benefit of students, such as Boy Scouts, Girl
Scouts, 4-H, and other similar groups.]

“‘Non-student group” means any group or persons, other than a student group,
who requests to use District facilities and are supervised by at least 1 adult
responsible for the group.

“Student group” means 1 or more students participating in District-sponsored
curricular or extracurricular activities supervised by District personnel, such as
an athletic team, student council, academic team, or student club.

B. General Facilities Use Guidelines

1.

Rental fees for District facilities and equipment will be set by [Choose Option 1

or 2:] [Option 1: the Board-annualy—at-the District's—organizational-meeting.]

[Option 2: the Superintendent or designee.]

Any person or group using District facilities must maintain order and safety,
protect property, and restore the facilities to their condition before use.

The District may seek reimbursement from a user of its facilities for any costs
the District incurs in opening, restoring, or cleaning such facilities.

The Superintendent or designee may deny a request to use the District’'s
facilities or equipment if the Superintendent or designee believes that the
person or group does not have sufficient financial resources to cover costs
required by this Policy or is unwilling to pay them.

No person or group using District facilities under this Policy may charge a fee
for admission or parking unless approved in writing in advance by the
Superintendent or designee.

Any person or group using the District’s facilities for any purpose must comply
with all applicable laws, Board Policies, rules, and regulations.

For a non-student group that wishes to use a facility, a supervising adult must
submit a written facility use request to the Superintendent or designee. The
request, applicable rental fee, and other required documents must be received
by the Superintendent or designee before any facility use will be considered.

o202+ JF] THRUN

LAaw FIrM, P.C.



8.

The supervising adult assumes primary responsibility for complying with
subsection B.2.

Leasing District property is addressed in Policy 3305.

C. Use of District Facilities by Student Groups

1.

4.

The applicable building principal may determine the time and place of a student
group’s use of available District facilities.

Student groups may use available District facilities without charge.

The District may bear any costs associated with use by a student group (e.g.,
fees paid to a cook or a custodian).

Student groups have priority to use District facilities over non-student groups.

D. Use of District Facilities by Non-Student Groups

[Choose Option 1 or 2:]

[Option 1: The District does not allow non-student groups to use District facilities.]

1.

[Option 2: The Superintendent or designee may authorize or limit the use of
District facilities by non-student groups consistent with this Policy and
applicable law.

When any non-student group requests to use District facilities, the group may
be required to provide proof of insurance, naming the District as an additional
insured, with coverage acceptable to the Superintendent or designee.

Use must occur while the facility is available, with minimal interference to
scheduled activities, custodians, or other student and personnel facility use.

The facility use will occur at times and places determined by the Superintendent
or designee.

If non-student groups are authorized to use District facilities, the
Superintendent or designee will prioritize their use in the following order:

a. non-curricular education groups;

b. community groups solely or jointly supporting the District (e.g., booster
clubs, PTO);

c. government organizations within the District’s geographic boundaries;

d. non-profit organizations whose activities are open to the general public and
serve the community; and

e. all other non-student groups.

AW FIRM, P.C.

© 2021 4] :I'HRUN



The Superintendent or designee has sole discretion to determine the
classification of a non-student group.]

6. The District’s facilities are not public fora [Optional: , and a non-student group’s
access to such facilities does not create a public forum.][Note: Call legal
counsel to discuss before relying on this subsection D.6].

7. Denial of access

a. The Superintendent or designee may reject a non-student group’s request
to use District facilities if the group’s use of the facilities is for a commercial
purpose. A booster club or other organization raising money purely for the
support of a student group and not for personal profit is not considered a
commercial purpose.

b. The Superintendent or designee may lawfully restrict, exclude, or impose
conditions on a person inappropriately using District facilities or violating
this Policy. A person who refuses to comply may be considered a
trespasser.

E. [Optional: Use of Specialty Facilities by Application and Agreement

1. The District permits non-commercial use of the following facilities by persons
for their personal health and wellness: weight room, track, and
associated locker-room facilities (the “Specialty Facilities”). The District may
authorize use of the Specialty Facilities on [Choose one: an annual / a semi-
annual / a monthly] basis on conditions determined by the Superintendent or
designee, which may include a waiver and use agreement.

2. Aperson using the Specialty Facilities must comply with applicable provisions
of this Policy.

3. A person failing or refusing to abide by this Policy may lose the privilege of
using the Specialty Facilities.

4. Users of Specialty Facilities acknowledge that they have reduced privacy rights
while on District property and that lockers may be subject to search by District
officials.]

F. Using District Personal Property

1. A person may use District personal property for non-school use only with the
prior permission of the Superintendent or designee.

2. The District may seek reimbursement from a user of its personal property for
any costs the District incurs in repairing or replacing such personal property.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

AW FIRM, P.C.

© 2021 4] :I'HRUN



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
3305 Sale or Lease of District Property

The District may, in accordance with applicable law, sell, lease, or otherwise convey
(each, a “transfer”) its property, whether real or personal. [Optional: Subject to Board
parameters and legal review, the Superintendent may obtain, negotiate, or modify transfer
documents for any Board-authorized transfer of District property.]

A. The District may consider both solicited and unsolicited offers to transfer its
property. The District may market its property through any lawful process, including
employing a real estate broker, publicly listing the property for a specific price,
soliciting bids, or holding an auction.

B. The Superintendent or designee will contact the District’s financial advisor or legal
counsel to investigate any tax consequences from the transfer of District property
financed with tax-exempt obligations.

C. ExeeptforatransferinsubsectionD-theThe District may only transfer its property
in exchange for fair value, which value may be non-monetary-deemed-fairby-the

Beard. An appraisal may be obtained but is not required.

ED. The District may not impose a deed or use restriction that is prohibited by
law.

EE. The transfer of District real property is exempt from transfer tax.
Legal authority: Const 1963, art 9, § 18; MCL 123.1045; MCL 207.505, 207.526
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2021 §P) THRUN

w Firm, P.C.



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property

3306 Construction Bidding

The Board will comply with applicable laws and this Policy for the construction of a new
school building or an addition to or repair or renovation of an existing school building (a
“Construction Project”).

A. When Competitive Bidding is Required

1.

The District must competitively bid all labor and material for a Construction
Project if the project cost exceeds the then-current state bid threshold
published annually by MDE (the “Bid Threshold”).

. The District does not need to competitively bid a:

Construction Project costing less than the Bid Threshold;

contract for repair in emergency situations;

repair normally performed by District employees; or

professional consultant contract.

B. Bidding Procedure

1.

If competitive bidding is required, the District must follow the bidding procedure
prescribed by Revised School Code Section 1267 and award contracts to the
lowest responsible bidder.

. To determine whether a bidder is a responsible bidder, the District may consider

the factors enumerated in Policy 3301 subsection C.3.b.

If competitive bidding is not required, the District may use any lawful means to
procure contracts.

Each bidder must certify that it is not an Iran-linked business as defined by
MCL 129.312.

C. Alternates

1.

2.

Bid specifications may require bidders to submit bids with mandatory alternates
or allow bidders to submit voluntary alternates; provided, however, that no
voluntary alternate may change the nature of the work.

The Board, in its discretion, may award bids based on allowable alternates.

D. Michigan Business Preference

o202+ J] THRUN et

ccccccc



For any Construction Project, the District may apply a preference to a Michigan-
based business as described in Policy 3301 subsection C.4.

E. Construction Bidding Using State Aid Act Funds

The purchase of property and services made with state aid must comply with the
requirements described in Policy 3301 subsection D.

F. Construction Bidding Using Federal Funds

The purchase of property and services made with federal funds subject to the

Uniform Grant Guidance must-comply-with-the-Uniferm-Grant Guidance-and-the

procedures—deseribed-inPoliey3304-subsectionEare also governed by Policy
3301A.

Legal authority: 2 CFR 200.1, et seq.; MCL 129.311 et seq.; MCL 380.1267; MCL
388.1764c

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o202+ J] THRUN et

uuuuuuuuu



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property

3307 Construction Administration

This Policy sets forth procedures and requirements for District building and site
improvements. Bidding requirements for construction appear in Policy 3306.

A. Plan Review

1.

Before commencing construction, the District, or an authorized agent on the
District’s behalf, will submit project plans and specifications to the Michigan
Bureau of Construction Codes Plan Review Division.

Alternatively, the District may submit the plans and specifications to the
applicable local building department if the Board and the municipality’s
governing body have properly certified that full-time code officials, inspectors,
and plan reviewers registered under the Skilled Trades Regulation Act will
conduct plan reviews and inspections. In that situation, the District must also
submit the plans and specifications to the Bureau of Fire Safety.

[Optional for a District high school located within a city or village or a District
high school that does not have an athletic facility / Recommended if the District
has or anticipates constructing such a high school: In accordance with Revised
School Code Section 1263, before building a new high school or expanding a
high school by at least 20% of its existing square footage, the District, or an
authorized agent on the District’'s behalf, will submit the site plan to the local
zoning authority for administrative review.]

Before the District commences new construction or major renovation of a
school building or athletic facility, the Superintendent or designee will consult
with the law enforcement agency that will be the first responder for that building
or facility about safety issues.

B. Professional Consultants

1.

If the total cost of a school building construction project will be $15,000 or more:

a. a Michigan-licensed architect or professional engineer must prepare the
plans and specifications; and

b. a qualified person or firm must supervise construction as provided in
MCL 388.851.

2. The District may hire a construction manager for any project. If the construction

manager also performs construction, either directly or by assuming
responsibility for the work of other contractors (e.g., construction manager as
constructor):

02020 [T] THRUN fete)

ccccccccc



a. the construction manager may not supervise such construction under
MCL 388.851; and

b. the District must still bid the project as required by law.
C. Payment and Performance Bonds

1. For all contracts described in MCL 129.201 that exceed $50,000, the principal
contractor must procure performance and payment bonds in accordance with
law.

2. Unless the Superintendent or designee determines otherwise, the District
requires payment and performance bonds to be 100% of the contract sum.

3. The responsibility for procuring payment and performance bonds rests solely
with the contractor. The District has no duty to ensure that a contractor has
procured a payment or performance bond.

Legal authority: MCL 129.201 et seq.; MCL 339.6001 et seq.; MCL 380.1263, 380.1264;
MCL 388.851 et seq.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

02020 [T] THRUN fete)

ccccccc



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property

3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property

3308 Distribution of Printed Material and Advertising in School

District facilities may be used to advertise or distribute printed information for commercial
or promotional purposes (“‘Advertisement”) in accordance with this Policy. An approved
Advertisement does not reflect the District’'s approval or endorsement of any product,
organization, service, or issue referenced in the Advertisement. An aAdvertisement does
not include public recognition or commemoration of District or student organization donors
and sponsors.

A. General Restrictions on Advertisements

1. No Advertisement may:

violate law or Policy or urge a violation of law or Policy;
lie or mislead,;

advocate the use, or advertise the availability, of tobacco (including e-
cigarettes), alcohol, cannabis/marijuana, illegal drugs, or related
paraphernalia;

contain a statement or image that describes or displays profanity,
pornography, sexual activity, nudity, violence, serious injuries, or corpses;

incite violence or advocate the unlawful use of force;
invade a person’s privacy;
violate a trademark, copyright, patent, or other intellectual property right;

include material inappropriate for the maturity level of the students exposed
to the Advertisement; or

create a likelihood of a material and substantial disruption.

2. The District may regulate Advertisement content within legally permitted
parameters.

3. The District may determine the size, location, and times of display of all
Advertisements.

B. Student Group Advertisements efStudent Groups

1. A student group is 1 or more students participating in District-sponsored
curricular or extracurricular activities supervised by District personnel, such as
an athletic team, student council, academic team, or student club.

©292&.1:

HRUN

w FIRM, P.C.
uuuuuuuuuuu



2. A student group may use District facilities for that group’s Advertisements with
the prior approval of the applicable building principal or designee.

3. A non-student group Advertisement that appears within materials produced or
distributed by a student group (e.g., yearbooks, student newspapers, and
athletics or student club publications) is considered a non-student group
Advertisement.

C. Non-Student Group Advertisements

1. Anon-student group Advertisement is any Advertisement that is not considered
a student group Advertisement or District speech.

2. A non-student group Advertisement must:

e include a statement explaining that the group is not affiliated with, or
endorsed by, the District;

e receive prior approval from the Board [or Superintendent or designee]; and

e Dbe subject to a written contract with the District describing each party’s
obligations and rights.

3. [Optional: A non-student group Advertisement may not reference a political
candidate or ballot question.]

4. A non-student group Advertisement, if approved, [Optional but recommended:
is intended to generate revenue and] does not create a forum for speech or
expression. [Note: Consult legal counsel for forum analysis.]

D. School Bus Advertisements
1. An Advertisement may not appear on the exterior of a school bus.

2. The District may allow an Advertisement in a school bus interior to the extent
consistent with MDE’s “Advertising Inside School Buses” guidelines:
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/Advertising_Inside _School Buses

325476 7.pdf. A school bus Advertisement is otherwise subject to the same
restrictions and approval procedures as other Advertisements.

E. District Speech

An Advertisement does not include material used to promote, inform, or collect
funds for a product or service the District uses or authorizes in the performance of
its educational operations, regardless of whether the product or service is provided
by a non-student group. That material is considered the District's speech.
Examples include, but are not limited to, material distributed by District vendors
whose products or services the District uses or encourages students or staff to
use.

@2@2@. %] THRUN

aAw FIRM, P.C.
uuuuuuuuuuu


https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/Advertising_Inside_School_Buses_325476_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/Advertising_Inside_School_Buses_325476_7.pdf

Legal authority: MCL 257.1833
Date adopted:

Date revised:

FIrRM, P.C
ccccccccc

@2@2@. TVIV-IRUN



Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
3400 School Safety and Security

3409 Intentionally Left Blank

o 2001 FT] THRUN

L] _Aw FirM, P.C.



Date adopted:

Date revised:

2021 98] THRUN

] L AW FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



4100
4101
A.

© 2022

Series 4000: District Employment
Employee Rights and Responsibilities
Non-Discrimination
Equal Employment Opportunity

The District is committed to equal employment opportunity and compliance with
federal, state, and local laws that prohibit workplace discrimination, unlawful
harassment, and unlawful retaliation based on any protected class or activity. This
Policy applies to all aspects of employment, including recruiting, advertising, hiring,
training, job placement, evaluation, classification, promotion, transfer, work
assignment, compensation, benefits, discipline, demotion, termination, reduction
in force, recall, and any other term or condition of employment.

This Policy prohibits discrimination against employees or applicants for
employment based on the following protected classes: race, color, national origin,
ethnicity, religion, sex (including pregnancy, gender identity, and sexual orientation),
height, weight, marital status, age, disability, genetic information, veteran status,
military service, or any other legally protected class. This Policy also prohibits
unlawful retaliation based on a protected activity.

The District prohibits unlawful employment discrimination as required by applicable
civil rights statutes, including:

e Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based
on race, color, religion, or national origin;

e Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based
on race, color, religion, sex (including gender identity, and sexual
orientation), or national origin;

e Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, which prohibits
discrimination based on sex (including gender identity and sexual
orientation);

e Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA), which prohibits
discrimination based on age as to persons who are at least 40 yearsold;

e Equal Pay Act of 1963, which prohibits sex discrimination in payment of
wages for persons performing substantially equal work in the same
establishment;

e Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), which prohibits
discrimination based on disability;

e Americans with Disabilites Act of 1990 (ADA), which prohibits
discrimination against qualified persons with disabilities in employment,
public service, public accommodations, and telecommunications;

THRUN

LaAaw FIRM, P.C.



B.

© 2022

Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), which requires covered
employers to provide up to 12 work weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to
eligible employees for certain family, military, and medical reasons, and up
to 26 work weeks to care for a covered service member with a serious injury
or illness;

Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978, which prohibits discrimination based
on pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical conditions;

Genetic Information Non-Discrimination Act of 2008 (GINA), which prohibits
discrimination based on genetic information as to health insurance and
employment;

Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994
(USERRA), which provides job protection and reemployment rights to
individuals who voluntarily or involuntarily leave employment to undertake
military service, including military reservists and National Guard members
called to duty;

Michigan Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act of 1976 (ELCRA), which prohibits
discrimination based on race, color, national origin, age, sex (including
pregnancy and gender identity), religion, height, weight, or marital status;

Michigan Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act of 1976 (MPDCRA),
which prohibits discrimination against qualified persons based on disability
that is unrelated to that person’s ability to perform the duties of a particular
position or genetic information;

Michigan Equal Pay Act, which prohibits discriminatory wage practices
based on sex; and

e Public Employment Relations Act of 1947 (PERA), which prohibits a public

employer from discriminating against an employee based on membership
or non-membership in a labor organization.

e Michigan Whistleblower Protection Act of 1980, which protects employees
who report a violation or suspected violation of state, local, or federal law
and employees who participate in hearings, investigations, or court actions.

Reporting Requirements

Any employee who believes he/she has been subjected to behavior that violates
this Policy must file a complaint using the Employment Complaint Procedure in
Policy 4104. If Title IX sexual harassment is alleged, the procedures set forth in
Policy 3118 should be followed.

Employees with questions about compliance with this Policy and applicable laws
should contact the Superintendent or the Employment Compliance Officer(s).

THRUN

LaAaw FIRM, P.C.



Board members, administrators, and supervisors must promptly report incidents of
unlawful discrimination and retaliation. This duty to report applies to unlawful
discrimination and retaliation that the Board member, administrator, or supervisor
observes or about which he/she receives information.

Board members, administrators, or supervisors who receive a complaint alleging
a violation of this Policy must promptly report the complaint, in writing, to the
Employment Compliance Officer(s).

A failure to comply with reporting requirements may result in discipline, including
discharge.

Employment Discrimination Compliance Training

The District will train administrators, supervisors, and the Employment Compliance
Officer(s) on how to address and investigate discrimination and retaliation
complaints.

The District may also provide discrimination and retaliation training to Board
members and employees.

Training may be provided by an outside entity or person approved by the District.

Legal authority: 20 USC 1681 et seq.; 29 USC 206 et seq., 701 et seq., 2601 et seq.;

38USC 4301 et seq.; 42 USC 2000d et seq., 2000e et seq., 2000ff et
seq., 12101 et seq.; MCL 37.1101 et seq., 37.2101 et seq.; MCL
423.201 et seq.; MCL 750.556

Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2022

THRUN

LaAaw FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4102 Anti-Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment
A. Policy Statement

Employees will have the opportunity to work in an atmosphere free from unlawful
harassment, including sex-based harassment, as defined by state, federal, and
local laws. The District prohibits quid pro quo and hostile work environment
harassment.

The District will promptly and thoroughly investigate complaints pursuant to Policy
4104 alleging unlawful harassment and take appropriate action, including
discipline, against any person found to have violated this Policy. Investigation
determinations will be based on a preponderance of the evidence.

Unlawful harassment is strictly prohibited. This Policy applies to employee conduct
perpetrated against other employees, parents/guardians, officers, Board
members, agents, contractors, volunteers, and members of the public. Although
Title VII sexual harassment falls within this Policy, Title IX sexual harassment does
not. For the District's Policy on Title IX sexual harassment, see Policy 3118.
Allegations that an employee engaged in unlawful discrimination, harassment, or
retaliation against a student will be investigated under Policy 5202.

This Policy applies to unlawful conduct related to work in any way, regardless of
location.

B. Unlawful Employment Harassment Definition
Except with regard to Title IX sexual harassment, the following definitions apply:

“‘Quid pro quo” harassment occurs when a supervisor requires sex, sexual
favors, or sexual contact from an employee or job candidate as a condition of
employment and where:

a. submission to that conduct or communication is made a term or condition,
either explicitly or implicitly, to obtain or maintain employment; or

b. submission to or rejection of that conduct or communication is used as a
factor in a decision affecting a person’s employment.

2. “Hostile work environment” harassment is unwelcome verbal, visual/written, or
physical conduct towards an employee because of the employee’s race, color,
national origin, ethnicity, religion, sex (including pregnancy), height, weight,
marital status, gender identity, age, sexual orientation, disability, genetic
information, veteran status, military service, or any other protected class and
that has:

@2@%. ] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.
nnnnnnn



a. the purpose or effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work
environment;

b. the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an employee’s work;
or

c. an adverse impact on a person’s employment opportunities.

Hostile work environment harassment is unlawful where it is based on an
employee’s protected class and the offensive conduct becomes a condition of
continued employment or the conduct is sufficiently severe or pervasive to
create a work environment that a reasonable person under the totality of
circumstances would consider intimidating, hostile, or offensive.

3. Examples of conduct that may constitute unlawful sexual harassment include:

a. Verbal: Unwelcome comments, including: the use of derogatory, sexually
suggestive, or vulgar language; the use of sexual innuendo; unwelcome
advances or repeated requests for dates or sexual favors; threats based on
or motivated by a person’s sex; demanding or pressuring another person to
submit to sexual requests or advances to attain academic or professional
achievement; threatening another person’s academic or professional
reputation if that person does not submit to sexual requests or advances; or
any other similar behavior.

b. Visual/Written: Subjecting another person to sexually suggestive,
pornographic, or obscene images, text, or cartoons, including by electronic
mail, text message, letter, or any other medium; the use of obscene gestures
toward or around another person; leering at another person; or any other
similar behavior.

c. Physical: Unwanted kissing, touching, patting, hugging, pinching, or any
other unwanted physical contact; impeding another person’s normal
movements; stalking, assault, or battery based on the victim’s sex; any
other physical interference with another person based on that person’s sex;
or any other similar behavior.

C. Unlawful Retaliation

Unlawful retaliation against a complainant, witness, or other investigation
participant is prohibited. Any person who unlawfully retaliates is subject to
discipline, including discharge. A person who knowingly files a materially false
complaint or makes a materially false statement is subject to discipline, including

discharge.
c-D. Reporting Requirements

Board members, administrators, and supervisors must promptly report incidents of
unlawful harassment and retaliation. This duty to report applies to unlawful

0202+ J[TJTHRUN

LaAaw FIRM, P.C.



harassment and retaliation that the Board member, administrator, or supervisor
observes or about which he/she receives information.

Board members, administrators, or supervisors who receive a complaint alleging
a violation of this Policy must promptly report the complaint, in writing, to the
Employment Compliance Officer(s).

A failure to comply with reporting requirements may result in discipline, including
discharge.

Legal authority: 20 USC 1681 et seq.; 29 USC 621 et seq.; 42 USC 1983, 2000d et seq.,
2000e et seq., 2000ff et seq., 6101 et seq., 12101 et seq.; 29 CFR 1604.1
et seq., 1635; 34 CFR 106.8, 106.9; MCL 37.1101 et seq., 37.2101 et
seq.; MCL 380.1300a

Date adopted:

Date revised:

@2@%. ] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.
lllllllllll



Series 4000: District Employment
4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4103 Whistleblowers’ Protection

An employee shall report, on his/her own behalf or on behalf of another employee, a
violation or a reasenably-suspected violation of a federal, state, or local law, regulation,
or rule to the employee’s supervisor or the Employment Compliance Officer(s). Reports
must be made in good faith. An employee who makes or is about to make a report in good
faith and in compliance with this Policy will not be discharged, subject to adverse
employment action, or subject to other discrimination or retaliation.

If the employee’s supervisor is the subject of the violation or suspected violation, the
employee must report to the Employment Compliance Officer(s) or the Superintendent. If
the Employment Compliance Officer(s) or the Superintendent is the subject of the
violation or suspected violation, the employee must report to the President. If the
President is the subject of the violation or suspected violation, the employee must report
to the Vice President.

A report must be promptly submitted in writing pursuant to Policy 4101. The investigation
of the alleged violation will be performed by an impartial investigator. The investigation
may be referred to a third party investigator.

Legal authority: MCL 15.361 et seq.
Date adopted:

Date revised:

@2@2@. ) THRUN

Aw FIRM, P.C,
lllllllllll



Series 4000: District Employment
4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4105 Workplace Accommodations for Employees and Applicants with Disabilities

The District complies with the ADA, Section 504, the MPDCRA, and other federal, state,
and local laws that prohibit discrimination in employment against qualified persons with
disabilities. The District does not unlawfully discriminate against otherwise qualified
employees or applicants for employment with a physical or mental impairment that
substantially limits one or more major life activities, those regarded as having a disability,
or those with a record of a disability.

An applicant or employee with a disability, like all other applicants and employees, must
meet the District’s requirements for the job, including education, training, employment
experience, skills, or licenses/certifications. An applicant or employee with a disability
must be able to perform the job’s essential functions with or without reasonable
accommodation(s). After an applicant has been given a conditional job offer, the District
may ask disability-related questions about the applicant’s ability to perform the essential
functions of the position with or without reasonable accommodation.

An employee who requires a reasonable accommodation to perform essential job
functions must promptly inform the employee’s supervisor or the Superintendent or
designee. An applicant who requires a reasonable accommodation to perform essential
job functions must promptly inform the Superintendent or designee after receiving a
conditional offer of employment. A reasonable accommodation is defined as a change in
the work environment or in the methods of performing work to enable an otherwise
qualified applicant or employee to perform the essential job functions of a position and to
enjoy equal employment opportunities.

Upon receipt of an accommodation request, the District will begin the interactive process
with the employee or applicant to consider reasonable accommodation options consistent
with the ADA, Section 504, and the MPDCRA.

Reasonable accommodation requests that do not pose a direct threat to health or safety
or cause undue hardship, as defined by law, will be considered for qualified applicants or
employees with a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more
major life activities.

After considering the relevant medical information, essential job functions, and the
applicant’'s or employee’s requested accommodations, the District will, as appropriate,
implement reasonable accommodations that do not pose a direct threat to health or safety
or cause an undue hardship. The District is not obligated to adopt the applicant’s or
employee’s specific accommodation request.

The District may engage or re-engage in the interactive process, as necessary.

The District may require a medical statement supporting the requested accommodation.
The District may also require an employee to undergo an independent medical

Law FIRM, P.C.



examination, limited to the accommodation request, at the District's expense. Medical
information will be kept confidential.

Reasonable accommodation of a disability with a limited duration may be provided.

An applicant or employee who believes he/she has been discriminated against under this
Policy must promptly file a complaint using the Employment Complaint Procedure in
Policy 4104.

A qualified applicant or employee with a disability who needs a reasonable
accommodation to attend or participate in a public Board meeting may request an
accommodation under Policy 2501.

Legal authority: 29 USC 701 et seq.; 42 USC 12101 et seq.; 29 CFR 1630; 34 CFR 104;
MCL 37.1101 et seq., 37.2101 et seq.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

LAw FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4108 Union Activity and Representation
The District will not engage in any of the following:

e interfere with, restrain, or coerce employees in the exercise of their rights under
the Public Employment Relations Act (PERA);

e discriminate in regard to hire, terms, or other conditions of employment based on
membership or non-membership in a labor organization;

e discriminate against an employee because he/she has given testimony or
instituted proceedings under PERA,;

e initiate, create, dominate, contribute to, or interfere with the formation or
administration of any labor organization; and

e use public school resources to assist a labor organization in collecting dues or
service fees from wages of public school employees.

An employee who is subject to an investigatory interview that may result in discipline or
reasonably believes that an investigatory interview may result in discipline may bring to
the investigatory meeting another employee, or a union representative, if the employee
is in an exclusively represented bargaining unit. If the employee’s union representative of
choice is not immediately available, the investigatory meeting need not be delayed and
may proceed with another representative present.

The District may permit a union representative to attend other meetings, but is not
obligated to do so unless required by law or by an applicable collective bargaining
agreement. District administration is not required to inform an employee of the right to
union representation.

An employee is not entitled to have legal representation present at an employment-
related meeting with District administration, unless the Superintendent or designee gives
prior permission.

Legal authority: MCL 423.209, 423.210; NLRB v J Weingarten, Inc, 420 US 251 (1975)
Date adopted:

Date revised:

0202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



Series 4000: District Employment
4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4109 Break Time for Nursing Mothers

The District will provide reasonable break time for a non-exempt (i.e., hourly) employee
to express breast milk for her nursing child in a place, other than a bathroom, that is
shielded from view and free from intrusion by co-workers and the public for 1 year after
the child’s birth [Optional: or additional time may be granted for appropriate cause as
determined by the Superintendent or designee]. The break time for this purpose will be
unpaid unless the non-exempt employee uses paid break time to which she is otherwise
entitled under an applicable collective bargaining agreement, individual employment
contract, or employee handbook.

Legal authority: 29 USC 207(r)

Date adopted:

Date revised:

T THRUN

LAw FIrRM, P.C.

© 20292 PoLICY SERVICE



Series 4000: District Employment
4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
4111 Professional Development
A. General

For purposes of this Policy, “day” is defined as at least 6 hours and “year” is defined
as July 1 to June 30.

B. Teachers

The District provides professional development for teachers in compliance with
state law. At the District’s discretion and consistent with state law, professional
development hours may be counted as student instructional hours, although the
instructional calendar may be extended if necessary for the District to receive full
state aid under federal or state law. To facilitate professional development, the
District may provide a substitute, reimburse conference expenses or registration
fees, or provide released time for attendance. Professional development may
include working in professional learning communities or examining student data.

The District must document the following information:
e dates when professional development was provided;
e beginning and ending times; and
e topic(s) presented to participating teachers on each date.

The Superintendent or designee has the discretion to select topics for professional
development. For each day that professional development is provided, the District
must retain at least one of the following:

e sign-in/out sheet;

e attendance log;

e flyer/nNotices announcing the event;
e agenda/mMeeting minutes;

e travel voucher(s);

o food receipt(s); or

e District calendar (dates indicated).

The District will record teacher attendance, including probationary teachers, at
professional development on the prescribed form published by MDE or a modified

©2O2Ql T] THRUN

LAWFRM P.GC.
uuuuuuuuu



form designed to assist teachers with tracking their professional development for
teacher certification renewal.

In addition to the State-mandated professional development, the District is required
by state law to provide 15 days of professional development to new teachers in
their first 3 years of classroom teaching. Professional development should, where
appropriate, align with the teacher’s individual development plan.

C. Professional Staff

Professional staff are to participate in professional development as required under
state law or the respective professional standards consistent with the
professional’s position. Professional development may be on a local, state, or
national level. Superintendent or designee pre-approval is required before
attending professional development.

D. Maintaining Certifications and Licenses

Teachers, Non-Teaching Professionals, Administrators, and the Superintendent
must comply with professional development or continuing education obligations to
maintain certifications or licenses, including the payment of any related fees. The
District is not obligated to notify professionals that certifications or licenses are
expiring.

E. Other Employees

The District may offer in-services or training on a mandatory or voluntary basis to
other employees. If a training is mandated, employees will be paid and, if
applicable, released for that time. If the District employs bus drivers, bus drivers
will be paid for training time to keep a commercial driver’s license (CDL) current.

Legal authority: MCL 257.312e, 257.1801 et seq.; MCL 380.1231, 380.1233, 380.1233a,
380.1233b, 380.1233c, 380.1246, 380.1526, 380.1527, 380.1531,
380.1536; MCL 388.1674, 388.1763

Date adopted:

Dated revised:

©2o2gl T] THRUN

LAWFRM P.GC.
IIIIIIIIIII



Series 4000: District Employment

4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics

4201 Employee Ethics and Standards

Employees must act professionally and model high standards of behavior at all times.
Employees shall perform their respective duties and responsibilities in a professional
manner, using appropriate judgment. Employees must maintain a standard of behavior
that reflects positively on their status as District representatives in the community and is
consistent with the Michigan Code of Educational Ethics, which is incorporated herein by
reference. See:

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/Code of Ethics 653130 7.pdf

If an employee is uncertain as to a potential course of conduct, the employee should seek
advice from a supervisor before proceeding.

A. Employee Ethical Conduct

© 2022

Employees must exercise objectively sound and professional judgment when
engaging with students, parents/guardians, colleagues, administrators, Board
members, and community members. This standard extends to employee conduct
on and off school property. Ethical behavior generally includes, but is not limited

to:

1.

supporting the physical and emotional welfare and safety of students,
parents/guardians, colleagues, administrators, Board members, and
community members;

complying with federal and state law;

competently and appropriately performing duties and responsibilities for which
the employee is trained or assigned;

assigning tasks to District personnel who are qualified and hired to perform the
assigned task;

refraining from unlawful discrimination, including unlawful harassment, and
retaliation as defined by Policy;

immediately reporting suspected child abuse or neglect;

maintaining confidential information, including student, medical, personnel,
financial, and security information, as protected by statute;

appropriately using District funds, resources, and technology;

maintaining consistent and reliable work attendance, unless excused by the
employee’s supervisor or the Superintendent or designee, as applicable;

THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.


https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mde/Code_of_Ethics_653130_7.pdf

© 2022

10.engaging in activities or behaviors that enhance the operational and
instructional environment;

11.professionally communicating with students, parents/guardians, colleagues,
Board members, and community members, including through electronic
means;

11-12. Completing time and effort reporting under 4201-AG.

42.13. abiding by professional, ethical, and licensing standards established by
relevant governmental agencies, professional licensing boards, and
professional associations, including the Michigan State Board of Education;
and

43-14. self-reporting a criminal charge and plea or conviction, as required by law.
Conflict of Interest

Employees shall perform their duties and responsibilities free from a prohibited
conflict of interest, unless authorized by the Board or designee. Prohibited conflicts
of interest include, but are not limited to:

1. soliciting or accepting anything of value (such as a gift, loan, contribution, or
reward), other than compensation received from the District in exchange for
services provided to the District, that would influence the employee’s judgment
when performing the employee’s duties;

2. using public funds to purchase alcoholic beverages, jewelry, gifts, fees for golf,
or any item the purchase of which is illegal, except as consistent with and
permitted by Policy 3205 and Revised School Code Section 1814;

3. using or authorizing the use of the employee’s public employment or any
confidential information received through public employment to obtain
personal, professional, political, or financial gain other than compensation
received from the District in exchange for services provided to the District for
the employee or a member of the employee’s immediate family, or a business
with which the employee is associated;

4. using or authorizing the use of District personnel, resources, property, or funds
under the employee’s care and control other than in accordance with
prescribed constitutional, statutory, and regulatory procedures, or using those
items for personal, professional, political, or financial gain;

5. providing private services, lessons, tutoring, or coaching for students assigned
to the employee for additional remuneration, except as permitted by Policy
4214;

6. engaqging in any activity of a sexual or romantic nature with another
employee(s) or contractor(s) that the employee supervises, unless the
individuals are engaged to be married, married, or cohabitating;

THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



© 2022

7. engaging in any activity of a sexual or romantic nature on school property or at
school-sponsored events;

6-8. directly or indirectly supervising, making, or contributing to an employment

decision pertaining to a relative or significant other, or relative of a relative or
significant other (as defined by Policy 4213); and

7-9. engaging in any other activity that promotes an employee’s financial and

pecuniary interests over those of the District.
Student Fraternization

Employees must establish and maintain professional boundaries with students,
including while using personal or District technology. Employees are prohibited
from direct or indirect interactions with students that do not reasonably relate to an
educational purpose. Employees will behave at all times in a manner supportive of
the best interests of students and the District.

Conduct identified below constitutes unprofessional conduct, subjecting the
employee to discipline, including discharge, absent express Board or designee
authorization. The following list illustrates prohibited behavior involving students
but does not describe every kind of prohibited behavior:

1. communicating about alcohol use, drug use, or sexual activity when the
discussion is not appropriately related to a specific aspect of the curriculum or
the employee’s duties;

2. providing drugs, alcohol, tobacco, e-cigarettes, or other items students cannot
possess under the District’s Student Code of Conduct;

3. commenting about matters involving sex, using double entendre, or making
sexually suggestive remarks with no appropriate educational purpose;

4. displaying sexually inappropriate images, materials, or objects;
5. offering or soliciting sexual advice, whether written, verbal, or physical;

6. engaging in any activity of a sexual or romantic nature, including following
graduation where the relationship arises out of an employee-student
relationship;

7. inappropriate Kissing;

8. inappropriately intruding on a student’s personal space, such as by touching
unnecessarily, moving too close, or staring at a portion of the student’s body;

9. communicating directly or indirectly (e.g., by phone, email, text messaging, or
social media) on a matter that does not pertain to school unless the employee
obtained prior parental consent. Electronic communications with students
generally are to be sent simultaneously to multiple recipients and not just to

THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



one student except when the communication is clearly school related and
inappropriate for persons other than the individual student to receive (e.g.,
grades);

10.permitting a specific student to engage in conduct that is not permitted or
tolerated from other students;

11.inappropriately discussing with a student the student’s personal issues or
problems that should normally be discussed with a parent/guardian or
counselor unless the employee is the student’s family member;

12.inappropriately giving a student a personal gift;

13.allowing a student to live in the employee’s residence without prior
parent/guardian consent unless the student is the employee’s family member,
a foreign exchange student placed with the employee, or if the employee
serves as the student’s foster parent or legal guardian;

14.giving a student a ride in the employee’s vehicle without appropriate
authorization;

15.taking a student on an activity outside of school without first obtaining the
express permission of the student’'s parent/guardian and a District
administrator;

16.inviting a student to the employee’s home or residence without first obtaining
the express permission of the student’s parent/guardian;

17.going to a student’s home when the student’s parent/guardian or an adult
chaperone is not present unless the employee is the student’s family member;
or

18.engaging in any other conduct which undermines the special position of trust
and authority between a District employee and a student.

Employees suspecting child abuse or neglect must: (a) immediately contact
Children’s Protective Services (CPS), (b) file an appropriate report with that agency
as required by the Child Protection Law and Policy 4202, and (c) notify the
Superintendent or designee and the building principal or supervisor that the report
has been filed.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a, 380.601a, 380.634, 380.1308a, 380.1814; MCL 722.621

et seq.
Date adopted:
Date revised:
THRUN

© 2022

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment

4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics

4201-AG Employee Ethics and Standards — Time and Effort Reporting

Employees who are paid, in full or in part, with federal funds must maintain time and effort
records under this administrative guideline. This administrative guideline applies to
employees who are paid with state or local funds, but are used to meet a required “match”
in a federal program, full and part-time employees, stipends for employees administering
federal programs, and substitute teachers. Time and effort records must be completed on
forms provided by the District.

Employees must provide the information required by this administrative guideline on a
timely basis and following all procedures.

A. Definitions

1. Cost Objective: A program, function, or activity for which cost data are
desired (e.qg., administrative costs).

2. Multiple Cost Objective Employee: Employees who work on multiple cost
objectives, such as more than one federal award, a federal award with a
non-federal award, or more than one activity within a federal award that is
separately tracked by the District.

3. Single Cost Objective Employee: Employees who work exclusively on one
cost objective.

4. Employee Compensation: All amounts paid to an employee for services
rendered during the award period. Compensation includes salaries, fringe
benefits, stipends, bonuses and payments made under supplemental
contracts.

5. Personnel Activity Report (PAR): A document certifying the amount of time
a multiple cost objective employee spends on each cost objective. The PAR
must:

i. Reflect an after-the-fact distribution of the activities performed:;
ii. Account for the total activity for which the employee is compensated:
iii. Be prepared at least monthly and coincide with one or more pay

periods; and
iv. Be signed by the employee.

B. Requirement

Charges to federal grants or awards for salaries and wages must be based on records
that accurately reflect the work performed. These records must:

© 2022 THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



1. Be supported by a system of internal controls that provides reasonable assurance that
the charges are accurate, allowable, and properly allocated;

2. Include verification through electronic signatures and documentation from individuals
with first-hand knowledge incorporated into official records;

3. Reasonably reflect total activity for which the employee is compensated, not
exceeding 100% of compensated activities;

4. Encompass both federally-assisted and all other activities compensated by the District
on an integrated basis. Reported hours need to cover 100% of the employee’s time,
regardless of full-time versus part-time work status;

5. Comply with the established accounting policies and practices of the District; and

6. Support the distribution of the employee’s salary or wages among specific activities or
cost objectives.

C. Procedure

A. Single Cost Objective Employees

An_employee who works on a single cost objective must complete a semi-annual
certification that indicates the employee worked solely on that cost objective for the period
covered by the certification. The certification must be prepared at least every six months.
Either the employee or a supervisor with first-hand knowledge of the work performed by
the employee must sign the semi-annual certification.

A semi-annual certification must:

o Be executed after the work has been completed;

o State that the employee worked solely on activities related to a particular
cost objective;

) Identify the cost objective;

) Specify the reporting period;

o Be signed by the employee or a supervisor with first-hand knowledge of the
work performed; and

o Be dated.

The supervisory official for all single cost objective employees must complete the semi-
annual certification and forward it to the [identify position].

The [identify position] will send the semi-annual certification forms to departments,
schools, and offices in January and July. If an employee works on a short-term cost
objective and their end date does not coincide with the normal January/July collection
dates for semi-annual certifications (e.g., a supplemental contract for summer school
programs), the employee must obtain a semi-annual certification from the [identify
position] after the period when the work has ended.

B. Multiple Cost Objective Employee

© 2022 THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Employees working on _multiple cost objectives must maintain PARs or equivalent
documentation indicating the amount of time spent on each cost objective for the period
covered by the PAR or equivalent documentation. The PAR or equivalent documentation
must be prepared at least every month. The employee must sign the PAR or equivalent
documentation.

A PAR or equivalent documentation must:

° Be executed after the work has been completed (projections of how an
employee is expected to work or position descriptions are not sufficient);
° Account for the total activity for which each employee is compensated,

including part-time schedules or overtime (total activity means all of the time
an_employee works, not just the amount of time worked on a Federal
program);

Identify the cost objectives;

Specify the reporting period;

Be prepared at least monthly and coincide with one or more pay periods;
Be signed by the employee (unlike a semi-annual certification, a
supervisor’s signature alone is not sufficient); and

o Be dated after the fact (when the work has been completed).

All multiple cost objective employees must complete the PAR, unless they receive
permission from the [identify position] to use equivalent documentation instead of a PAR.

Copies of executed PARSs, or approved equivalent documentation, must be forwarded to
the [identify position].

C. Supplemental Contracts

An employee’s overtime work must be reflected in the employee’s time and effort record.
If, however, an employee works in two distinct positions, the employee may maintain
separate time and effort records for each position.

D. Stipends

Employees receiving stipends for District-sponsored activities (e.q., for professional
development) may satisfy time and effort records by signing the sign-in_ and sign-out
sheets provided at the activity. Employees receiving such stipends for non-District
sponsored activities should contact the [identify position] to obtain the necessary
documentation.

D. Training

The District will provide training on the requirements related to federal timekeeping to all
staff involved in federal programs through group training, one-on-one training, or informal
technical assistance.

© 2022 THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



E. Reconciliation

It is the District’'s practice to charge employee compensation costs to federal programs
based on budget estimates that reasonably approximate how an employee will work
during the year. The District will reconcile payroll charges to the time and effort reflected
in employee time and effort records at least quarterly.

If the District identifies a variance in how an employee’s salary was charged and how
much the employee actually worked, the District will adjust its payroll charges so that the
amount charged to federal funds reflects the employee’s actual time and effort. If the
difference between the actual and budgeted amounts is 10% or greater, the District will
adjust its accounting records at least quarterly. If the reconciled difference is less than
10%, the District will adjust the accounting records at least annually.

F. Document Retention

Time and effort records must be maintained for a period of five (5) years by the District.

G. Sanctions

Any district employee who violates this procedure will be subject to appropriate discipline
as reflected by comments to be placed in their annual employee evaluation.

For violations of this procedure, the District may impose sanctions as follows:

o If time and effort records are not completed and returned on time, salary
costs associated with uncertified grant activity may be removed for the
individual and will be charged to a General, Special, or Vocational
Education non-grant account.

° The District may suspend any new work by a non-compliant employee, or
the inclusion of a non-compliant employee in projects or programs until time
and effort records are up-to-date and properly completed and certified.

o Employees who complete certification of time and effort records that are
inaccurate or incomplete may be subject to discipline, up to and including
discharge. Employees who fail to properly complete time and effort records
or who violate the procedures established in this administrative guidelines
may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including discharge.

) At the Superintendent’s or designee’s discretion, payment to an individual
for time and effort expended on the grant may be withheld if time and effort
records are not complete.

Legal authority: 2 CFR 200.430
Dated adopted:

Date revised:

© 2022 THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Series 4000: District Employment
4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics

4202 Children’s Protective Services (CPS) Reporting and Student Safety and
Welfare

During the performance of their duties, employees must exercise due care for the safety
and welfare of the District’s students.

A. Required Reports to CPS, District administration, and Michigan State Police

1. A reporter must: (a) promptly notify the Superintendent or designee and the
building principal of the report; and (b) submit an electronic or written report to
CPS within the statutory timeframe. Failure to make an immediate report or
follow-up with an electronic or written report may result in discipline, including
discharge, as well as criminal or civil penalties. CPS may be contacted at
855-444-3911 or www.michigan/gov/mdhhs.

Administrators, teachers, counselors, social workers, psychologists, nurses,
physical therapists, physical therapist assistants, occupational therapists,
athletic trainers, and others identified as mandatory reporters pursuant to
Michigan’s Child Protection Law must immediately report all instances of
suspected child abuse or neglect to CPS. Other employees are also expected
to make reports to CPS of suspected child abuse or neglect.

2. Employees must promptly report to the building principal or the Superintendent
or designee any instances of injury (accidental or intentional), violence, threats
of violence, self-harm, hazards, or any other situation that endangers student
safety and welfare or raises reasonable concerns as to the safety of students.

3. Employees must promptly report to the building principal or the Superintendent
or designee incidents of student bullying and crimes or attempted crimes
involving physical violence, gang-related activity, illegal possession of a
controlled substance or controlled substance analogue, or other intoxicant,
trespassing, and property crimes, including theft and vandalism.

Within 24 hours of an alleged incident, an administrator must make an
appropriate report to the Michigan State Police as required by law.

B. Student Safety and Welfare

1. Employees will maintain control and supervision of students to ensure student
safety and will take appropriate action if the employee observes an unsafe or
dangerous situation.

2. Employees will treat students with respect and maintain appropriate
professional boundaries with students both in and out of school. Employees
must avoid conduct with students that potentially creates the appearance of an
unprofessional, unethical, or inappropriate relationship. Romantic relationships

© 202040l THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



between employees and students are prohibited regardless of the student’s
age, including following graduation where the relationship arises out of an
employee-student relationship.

3. An employee will not assess, diagnose, prescribe, or provide therapy or
counseling services to a student unless: (a) the employee is appropriately
certified or licensed under Michigan law; and (b) the services are within the
employee’s job duties. An employee will direct students in need of these
services to the appropriate District employee or community resource.

4. Employees will comply with and respect confidentiality of student records and
privacy rights, including not posting student information or images online
without prior authorization from the employee’s supervisor.

5. Employees will not interfere with or adversely impact a parent’s/guardian’s right
to determine and direct their student’s care, wellbeing, teaching, and education.

6. [Optional: Pursuant to the state’s 2013 Task Force on the Prevention of Sexual
Abuse of Children, the Board authorizes the Superintendent or designee to
consider and implement all of the following:

e age-appropriate, evidence-based curriculum and instruction for students in
grades pre-K to 5 concerning child sexual abuse awareness and prevention;

e training for District personnel on child sexual abuse, including but not limited
to, training on supportive, appropriate response to disclosure of abuse;

e providing educational information to parents/guardians on the warning signs
of a child being sexually abused and information on needed assistance,
referral, or resources;

e available counseling and resources for students affected by sexual abuse;

e emotional and educational support for a students affected by sexual abuse;
and

e a review of the system to educate and support personnel who are legally
required to report child abuse or neglect.]

Legal authority: MCL 380.10, 380.1308, 380.1308a, 380.1310a; MCL 388.1766; MCL
722.621 et seq.

Dated adopted:

Date revised:

@2@2@. Tl THRUN

LaAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



4200
4205

Series 4000: District Employment
Employee Conduct and Ethics
Hiring and Background Checks

The District is committed to prohibiting unlawful discrimination in its hiring practices
consistent with Policy 4101. Hiring decisions are based on qualifications, skills,
knowledge, abilities, education, certifications/licenses, experience, demeanor, and other
job-related-criteria the Board may deem relevant. In making hiring decisions, the Board
or designee will consider enrollment, operational requirements, financial needs, and the
District’s best interests.

A.

© 2021

Advertising and Posting

Vacancies may be posted on a designated website or other location and distributed
to appropriate employee groups or relevant professional associations. The posting
may outline general duties, qualifications, pay range, work experience, and hours.
Vacancies may be posted for at least [___] calendar days unless a different time
period is specified in a collective bargaining agreement. Applications must be
submitted to the central office unless otherwise designated. The District may
establish an online application process. Postings will comply with applicable
collective bargaining agreements.

Hiring

The Board will determine the hiring process for the Superintendent. For all other
positions, the Superintendent or designee will determine the process to consider
and interview qualified applicants. The Superintendent or designee is authorized
to hire non-exempt staff, temporary, and substitute employees. Teachers, Non-
Teaching Professionals, Supervisors, and Administrators that the Superintendent
or designee recommends for hire are subject to Board approval.

The District will not consider an applicant for employment unless the applicant
provides the District with the following:

1. written consent for the criminal records division of the Michigan State Police to
conduct the criminal history check required by Revised School Code Section
1230 and the criminal records check required by Revised School Code Section
1230a;

2. asigned statement that complies with Revised School Code Section 1230b(1);
and

3. other required application materials.

Falsification or misrepresentation of credentials, qualifications, references, or
application materials will be grounds for disqualification or discipline, including
discharge.

i3 THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C,



C. Background Checks for Employees, Contractors, and Volunteers

1. The District will conduct a background check on a selected applicant upon an
offer of employment or before a person is assigned to regularly and
continuously work under contract in any of its schools. The Superintendent or
designee will receive and review the results of the background check before
the District employs or allows the person to regularly and continuously work
under contract in any of its schools, unless otherwise permitted by law.

2. "Regularly and continuously work under contract” means any of the following:

a. to work at school on a more than intermittent or sporadic basis as an owner
or employee of an entity that has a contract with the District to provide food,
custodial, transportation, counseling, or administrative services or to
provide instructional services to pupils or related and auxiliary services to
special education pupils;

b. to work at school on a more than intermittent or sporadic basis as a person
under a contract with the District to provide food, custodial, transportation,
counseling, or administrative services, or to provide instructional services
to pupils or related and auxiliary services to special education pupils.

3. “School” means in a classroom, elsewhere on District property, or on a school
bus or other school-related vehicle.

4. The background check will include:
a. a criminal history check pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1230;
b. a criminal records check pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1230a;

c. an unprofessional conduct check pursuant to Revised School Code Section
1230b; and

d. if a certification is required for the position, such as a teaching certificate or
administrator certificate, District verification that the person’s certification is
valid.

The background check may include any other matters the District deems
relevant, such as verifying references, school transcripts, and prior
employment, as may be permitted by law.

If the criminal history check report, criminal records check report, or any other
report discloses that the person has been convicted of a listed offense as
defined in MCL 28.722, and the District verifies the conviction using public
records, the District must not employ the person or allow the person to regularly
and continuously work under contract in any of its schools. If any of the reports
disclose that the person was convicted of a felony as defined in MCL 761.1,
and the felony is not a listed offense, and the District verifies the conviction
using public records, the District must not employ the person or allow the

© 2021 §0b] THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C.



person to regularly and continuously work under contract in any of its schools
unless the Superintendent and the Board each specifically approve the
employment or assignment in writing.

Employment offers are contingent on the Superintendent’s or designee’s
review of the background check results.

All the information the District obtains via the criminal history check report,
criminal records check report, or any other report that discloses that the person
has been convicted of a listed offense will be maintained pursuant to
4205-AG-1.

5. Confidentiality

All the information the District obtains via the criminal history check report,
criminal records check report, or any other report that discloses that the person
has been convicted of a listed offense are to be considered confidential and will
not be released except pursuant to 4205-AG-1(C)(5). Violation of confidentiality
is a misdemeanor punishable by a fine up to $10,000.

Notification from the Michigan Department of Education or Michigan State
Police about a District employee’s criminal conviction is exempt from FOIA for
the first fifteen (15) days until the information is verified. Once verified, only
information regarding physical or sexual abuse may be released. The
employee may release the information with written authorization.

D. Other Post-Offer Considerations

The District will not make disability-related medical inquiries or inquire about an
applicant’s disability-related requested accommodation(s) until after a conditional
job offer is made, consistent with Policy 4105. Based on the physical and mental
demands of a position, an examination and/or drug test may be required following
a conditional offer of employment. The examination will be performed by a health
care provider identified by the Superintendent or designee at the District’s
expense.

Legal authority: MCL 28.722; MCL 380.1230, 380.1230a, 380.1230b; MCL 761.1
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2021 §0b] THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C.



4200

Series 4000: District Employment
Employee Conduct and Ethics

4210 Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace; Tobacco Product Restrictions

A.

C.

© 2020-20

General

Employees serve as role models to students at school and in the community.
Employee substance abuse constitutes a threat to the physical and mental well-
being of employees and students and significantly impedes job performance and
effectiveness.

The District maintains a drug and alcohol free workplace. In addition, to the extent
permitted by law, the District strives to maintain a tobacco product free workplace.

. Definitions

1. “lllicit substance” means any consumable alcohol; illegal drugs, including but
not limited to those substances defined as “controlled substances” pursuant to
federal or state law; marihuana; anabolic steroids, human growth hormones or
other performance-enhancing drugs; and substances purported to be illegal,
abusive, or performance-enhancing (i.e., “look-alike” drugs). This definition
also includes any other substance used by an employee as an intoxicant.

2. “District premises” means District buildings, facilities, or other District property
which is owned, leased, or used for a District purpose or District-owned
vehicles or vehicles used for a District purpose.

.°°

“District purpose or function” means a District-sponsored or District-approved

act|V|ty, event, function or other activity performed by an employee under the
District’s jurisdiction, which is within the scope of employment, duties, or job
description.

34. “Tobacco product” means a form of tobacco intended to be inhaled, chewed,
or placed in a person’s mouth.

4-5.  “Under the influence” means the use or misuse of an illicit substance or
other intoxicant (including over-the-counter and prescription medication) by an
employee that in any degree impairs, negatively affects, or tends to deprive that
person of any physical or mental capacity normally possessed and required to
perform job responsibilities.

5.6. “Reasonable suspicion” means specific, contemporaneous, and articulable
observations concerning an employee’s behavior, speech, appearance, and
odor that suggests the employee is under the influence of an illicit substance.

Standards of Conduct

53 THRUN

LaAw FIrRM, P.C.



Employees willmaintaina-drug-and-alcoholfree-workplace-and-are prohibited from

the following conduct on District premises or at a District function:

1. manufacturing, selling, soliciting, possessing, using (including application,
injection, inhalation, or ingestion), dispensing, or distributing any illicit
substance;

2. being under the influence as defined in this Policy; er
3. _misusing over-the-counter and prescription medications;-er

4. manufacturing, selling, soliciting, dispensing, or distributing any tobacco
product;

or

5. using a tobacco product on District premises, except:

a. at outdoor areas including, but not limited to, an open-air stadium, on
Saturdays, Sundays, and other days on which there are no regularly
scheduled school hours, or

b. after 6 p.m. on days during which there are reqularly scheduled school
hours;

Violating these drug—and—alcoholfree—workplace—standards will subject an

employee to discipline, including discharge.

If a reasonable suspicion exists that an employee is under the influence, the
Superintendent or designee may direct the employee to submit to a drug test or
breathalyzer. If the employee refuses, the employee may be subject to discipline,
including discharge, based on the District’s observations.

D. [Optional: Reporting Requirements for Transportation Employees Subject to
Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act

An employee subject to the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act must
notify the Superintendent or designee of any criminal drug conviction for a violation
occurring in the workplace no later than 5 calendar days after that conviction. Upon
receiving notice of an employee’s conviction of a criminal drug violation occurring
in the workplace, the Board or designee must take appropriate action within 30
calendar days.]

Legal authority: 20 USC 7101 et seq.; 41 USC 8101 et seq.; 42 USC 12101 et seq.;
Schedules |-V of Chapter 13 of the Controlled Substances Act, 21 USC
812; 29 USC 701 et seq.; MCL 37.1211; Schedules 1-5 of the Michigan
Uniform Controlled Substances Act, MCL 333.7201 et seq.; MCL
380.11a, 380.601a; MCL 436.1101 et seq.; MCL 750.473.

Date adopted:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



4200
4213

© 2022

Series 4000: District Employment
Employee Conduct and Ethics
Anti-Nepotism
General

Employment decisions motivated by nepotism, as defined below, are prohibited to
avoid conflicts of interest, favoritism, and lost productivity. Employment decisions
will be based on qualifications, experience, and other legitimate business reasons.
This Policy applies to all categories of employment including regular, temporary,
and part-time classifications.

. Definitions

1. “Nepotism” means favoritism in the workplace based on a relationship with a
relative or significant other.

2. “Relative” means a spouse, child, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild,
aunt, uncle, first cousin, niece, nephew, or corresponding in-law, step, or
adopted relative.

3. Slgmflcant others means_(_) persons engaged to be marned,_(_)eE persons

a romantlc or Qersonal relatlonshlp or (3) persons who are cohabltatlnq

Employment Decisions

The District may employ relatives and significant others in the absence of
nepotism. In making employment decisions, including hiring, placement,
supervision, directing work, promoting, compensating, evaluating, and disciplining
employees who are a relative or significant other, an employee should:

1. disclose the existence of any relationships subject to this Policy to the
Superintendent or designee;

2. avoid conflicts of interest, as defined in Policy 4201, and any appearance of a
conflict of interest; and

3. avoid favoritism and any appearance of favoritism.

An employee’s relative or significant other should not be hired to work in any
position in which the Board or designee concludes a conflict of interest or the
appearance of a conflict of interest may exist. Relatives and significant others are
permitted to work at the District provided one does not report directly to, supervise,
evaluate, or manage the other. The Superintendent or designee, or the Board, as
applicable, may make exceptions to this Policy.

THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C.



Supervisors and subordinates who become relatives or significant others while
employed may be subject to transfer, reassignment, or other action based on the
need for compliance with this Policy.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a, 380.601a
Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2022 [T THRN



Series 4000: District Employment
4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
4217 Social Media

Employee use of social media while on District property, during work hours, or while using
District-owned devices must not interfere with District educational purposes or work
performance and must not be used in any manner that violates this Policy, Policy 4201,
or federal or state law.

“Social media” refers to any publicly accessible internet-based service that enables a user
to share communications, images, or videos with others or participate in social
networking. Social media includes blogs and social networking sites.

While using social media on or off duty, an employee must:
A. not engage in criminal activity;

B. make clear that the employee’s views or endorsement of political candidates and
political parties are their own, not the District’s, as applicable;

C. refrain from using a District email address to register on social networks, blogs, or
other online tools for personal use;

D. engage in appropriate communications with students,-and parents/guardians, and
District stakeholders and community members;

E. maintain student privacy and not disclose confidential student information;-and

F. report to the appropriate administrator(s) any behavior or activity which endangers
student or staff security, safety, or welfare;- and

EG. refrain from engaging in behavior that disrupts or adversely impacts the
efficacy of the District’'s operations.

Employee use of social media in violation of this Policy detracts from the District’s
educational mission, adversely impacts the District, and may result in discipline, including
discharge.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a(3), 380.601a
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
4218 Employee Dress and Appearance

Employee attire conveys an important image to students and the community. Employees
must maintain professional dress and appearance, including appropriate hygiene,
cleanliness, and grooming.

Employees must, at a minimum, dress in accordance with the student dress code.
A. Administrators, Professionals, Paraprofessionals, and Office Employees

Administrators, professionals, paraprofessionals, and office employees must dress
in business casual attire except as otherwise appropriate to their individual
assignments. Attire must not distract other employees or students from the learning
environment or pose a safety risk._Employees shall not dress in a manner that
expresses partisan _or_political speech unless expressly permitted by law, a
collective bargaining agreement, or approved in writing by a building administrator.

The building administrator may temporarily suspend all or a portion of the dress
code when other factors support a lower dress expectation for employees (e.g.,
designated “casual days” or “spirit days”).

B. Food Service, Custodial, Maintenance, Mechanic, and Transportation Employees

Subject to any applicable collective bargaining agreement, food service, custodial,
maintenance, mechanic, and transportation employees must dress in attire
appropriate to the work the employee is performing and will not pose a safety risk
to the employee or others.

Closed-toe shoes are required. Steel-toed shoes may be required for custodians,
maintenance, and mechanics. The District reserves the right to require uniform
clothing as may be appropriate.

C. Enforcement

The Superintendent or designee has the discretion to make determinations about
appropriate staff dress and appearance. Any violation of this Policy may result in
discipline, including discharge.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a(3), 380.601a
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
4220 Use or Disposal of District Property

Employees are prohibited from using District property for personal use [Optional: unless
the Superintendent or designee approves the use in advance.| Employee use of District
property will be consistent with Policies 3304 and 4214.

After use, District property must be immediately returned to the appropriate location or
department. The property must be returned in the same condition it was in at the time of
acquisition. The employee is responsible for the cost of repair or replacement if the
employee negligently damages the District’s property.

Employees may not dispose of District property without the supervisor’s written approval.
Employees may not take possession of discarded District property without written
approval from the Superintendent or designee.

State law regulates the disposal, removal, or refusal to return District books, papers, or
records. Retention and disposal of District books, papers, or records must conform with
the State of Michigan’s Records Retention and Disposal Schedule for Michigan Public
Schools.

An employee who violates this Policy may be subject to discipline, including discharge,
and civil and criminal prosecution.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a(3), 380.601a; MCL 399.811; MCL 750.491
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 §0b] THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
4222 Unauthorized Work Stoppage and Strikes

Employees are prohibited from engaging in a strike. A strike is the concerted failure to
report for duty, the willful absence from a person’s position, the stoppage of work, the
refusal to perform or volunteer for duties that had been performed in the past, or the
abstinence in whole or in part from the full, faithful, and proper performance of the
employment duties for the purpose of inducing, influencing, or coercing a change in
employment conditions, compensation, or the rights, privileges, or obligations of
employment.

Employees who violate this Policy may be subject to discipline, including discharge, and
financial penalties under the Public Employment Relations Act.

The District is prohibited from engaging in a lock-out, unless operations have been
ceased, in whole or in part, due to a strike in violation of this Policy.

Legal authority: MCL 423.201, 423.202
Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2022 [T THRN



Series 4000: District Employment

4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
4226 Intentlonally Left Blank Iemperaw—GOWD—#—Vaeema#en—Iestmg—and—Faee

© 2022 .THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE



LAw FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE

© 2022 .THRUN



{1 H 1)

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE

© 2022 THRUN



© 2022 .THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE



LAw FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE

© 2022 .THRUN



J (13 H H ti

© 2022 .THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE



Date adopted:

Date revised:

LAw FIRM, P.C
POLICY SERVICE

© 2022 .THRUN



Series 4000: District Employment

4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics

4227 False Medicaid Claims

Under federal law, when the District receives annual amount of at least $5,000,000.000
in Medicaid payments, the District is required to inform all employees and contractors
about the legal requirements and remedies in order to comply with and prevent fraud and
abuse in the Medicaid Program.

A. The Federal False Claims Act (FCA). Medicaid prohibits individuals and
organizations from submitting false or fraudulent claims to the government for
payment or reimbursement. Any claim submitted by employees or contractors for
Medicaid reimbursement must be accurate, correct, and complete.

1. An employee or contractor shall not knowingly submit a false claim. The term
“knowingly” does not require the claimant to have actual knowledge that the
claim is false. An employee violates this Policy by acting with reckless disregard
or in deliberate ignorance. A violation of this Policy includes, but is not limited
fo:

a. knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, a false or fraudulent claim
for payment or approval

b. knowingly making, using, or causing to be made or used, a false record or
statement material to a false or fraudulent claim;

c. conspiring to commit a violation under the FCA:;

d. having possession, custody, or control of property or money used, or to be
used, by the government and knowingly delivering, or causing to be
delivered, less than all of that money or property;

e. authorizing to make or deliver a document certifying receipt of property
used, or to be used, by the government and, intending to defraud the
government, making or delivering the receipt without
completely knowing that the information on the receipt is true;

Law FIrRM, P.C,.
POLICY SERVICE


https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-1547388228-290201124&term_occur=999&term_src=
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-565986953-290201124&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729

f. knowingly buying, or receiving as a pledge of an obligation or debt, public
property from an officer or employee of the government, or a member of the
Armed Forces, who lawfully may not sell or pledge property; or

g. knowingly making, using, or causing to be made or used, a false record or
statement material to an obligation to pay or transmit money or property to
the government, or knowingly concealing or knowingly and _improperly
avoiding or decreasing an obligation to pay or transmit money or property
to the government.

2. Penalties

a. The FCA and Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act (“PFCRA”) provides civil
and criminal remedies to individuals who violate federal law.

b. The District reserves the right to discipline, up to and including discharge,
employees who violate this Policy.

c. The District reserves the right to terminate the contract with a third party
contractor found to be in violation of this Policy.

B. Michigan Medicaid False Claim Act (‘“MMFCA”) prohibits fraud in the obtaining of
benefits or payments in connection with the medical assistance program.

1. An employee or contractor shall not knowingly:

(i) make or cause to be made a false representation of a material fact in
the application for, or the determination of, Medicaid benefits;

(ii) fail to report any event affecting the initial or continued right to receive
a_Medicaid benefit or fails to report an event affecting the initial or
continued right of any other person on whose behalf the individual has
applied for Medicaid benefits;

(iii) solicit, offer, or receive a bribe or kickback in connection with the
furnishing of goods or services for which payment is made to a Medicaid
provider:;

(iv) make or receive a payment or the rebate of a fee for referring an
individual to another for Medicaid services;

(v) enter into a conspiracy or agreement to defraud the state by obtaining
a Medicaid payment for a false claim;

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE


https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-1547388228-290201124&term_occur=999&term_src=
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-389535362-290201126&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-1547388228-290201124&term_occur=999&term_src=
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-299066663-290201127&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-389535362-290201126&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-1547388228-290201124&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-1547388228-290201124&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729
https://www.law.cornell.edu/definitions/uscode.php?width=840&height=800&iframe=true&def_id=31-USC-389535362-290201126&term_occur=999&term_src=title:31:subtitle:III:chapter:37:subchapter:III:section:3729

(vi) make or cause to be made a false claim under the Social Welfare
Act, Act 280 of Public Acts of 1939, as amended, to an employee or officer
of the state; or

(vii) make or cause to be made a claim under the Social Welfare Act,
which claim represents that goods or services are medically necessary in
accordance with professionally-accepted medical standards when the
goods or services are not medically necessary

2. Penalties

a. The MMFCA provides civil and criminal remedies to individuals who violate
federal law.

b. The District reserves the right to discipline, up to and including discharge,
employees who violate this Policy.

c. The District reserves the right to terminate the contract with a third party
contractor found to be in violation of this Policy.

Legal authority: 31 U.S.C. 3729-3733, 31 U.S.C. 3801, MCL 400.601 et seq

Date adopted:

Date revised:

LAaw FIRM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Series 4000: District Employment
4300 Non-Exempt Staff
4301 Definition

“‘Non-exempt staff” may include transportation, custodial, maintenance, food service,
clerical, and paraprofessional employees and other employees who do not meet an
exemption under the Fair Labor Standards Act or the Michigan Improved Workforce
Opportunity Wage Act. The term does not include “exempt” professional staff,
administrators, supervisors, or the Superintendent (as defined in Policies 4401, 4501, and
4601). Non-exempt staff are employed at-will and their employment may be altered or
terminated at any time with or without cause, unless governed by a collective bargaining
agreement or individual employment contract containing a different standard of
employment security.

[Optional{in-tieu-of“at-wil™employmentstatus): Unless otherwise provided by a collective

bargaining agreement or individual employment contract, non-exempt staff will be subject
to a probatlonary perlod of 1 work year%ueeess#u#eentrpleﬂen—ef—me—preba%mqary—peﬂed

Legal authority: 29 USC 201 et seq.; MCL 380.11a(3), 380.601a; MCL 408.934a
Date adopted:

Date revised:

@2@2@. Tl THRUN

LaAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccc



4300
| 4303

Series 4000: District Employment
Non-Exempt Staff

Compensatory Time [Optional | [Note: If the Board elects not to adopt this Policy,
delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank”
after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering
of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.]

The District may offer Non-Exempt Staff compensatory time, in lieu of overtime
pay, at a rate of 1.5 hours of compensatory time for 1 hour of time for which the
employee earns overtime pay._The District may determine that some employee
classifications are ineligible for compensatory time.

. For represented, Non-Exempt Staff compensatory time must be provided under a

collective bargaining agreement, memorandum of understanding, or other
agreement between the District and the exclusive collective bargaining
representative.

For non-represented, Non-Exempt Staff, the staff member must submit an
express, voluntary written request to receive compensatory time in lieu of overtime
pay before the performance of overtime work. This request is subject to prior
approval by the District. The Non-Exempt Staff member’s written request must be
kept in the payroll file for each instance of compensatory time.

Compensatory time is only available to those Non-Exempt Staff members who
receive 10 or more paid days of leave per year, in addition to the compensatory
time. If requested by the employee and approved by the District, the terms of the
compensatory time plan are subject to the following:

1. acceptance of compensatory time in lieu of overtime pay is not required as a
condition of employment;

2. employees are permitted to use compensatory time unless it will unduly disrupt
District operations;

3. employees may not accrue more than 240 hours of compensatory time at any
time;

4. employees may, at any time, request monetary compensation for accrued
compensatory time at a rate not less than the regular rate earned by the
employee at the time the employee earned the compensatory time. Payment
must be made within 30 days after the request; and

5. upon voluntary or involuntary termination of employment, an employee who
has accrued compensatory time must be paid monetary compensation for
accrued compensatory time at a rate not less than the regular rate earned by
the employee at the time the employee earned the compensatory time.

T THRUN

© 20224 Law FiRM, P.C.



E. Unless otherwise prohibited by a collective bargaining agreement, the District may
terminate a compensatory time plan after providing 60 days’ notice to Non-Exempt
staff. Employees will receive monetary compensation for accrued compensatory
time at a rate not less than the regular rate earned by the Non-Exempt Staff at the
time the staff member earned the compensatory time.

F. The District must provide Non-Exempt Staff who earn compensatory time a
statement reflecting the accrual and use of compensatory time in the period that it
is earned or used. The payroll records for Non-Exempt Staff who earn
compensatory time must identify the accrual of compensatory time.

G. The District will not directly or indirectly interfere with a Non-Exempt Staff
member’s right to request or not request compensatory time in lieu of overtime pay
or require a member to use compensatory time. In assigning overtime hours, the
District will not discriminate among Non-Exempt Staff within a classification based
on the choice to request or not request compensatory time off in lieu of overtime

pay.
Legal authority: 29 USC 207; MCL 408.414a, 408.934a

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2022 T THRUN



Series 4000: District Employment
4300 Non-Exempt Staff

4304 Employee Timekeeping Responsibilitiesand-Payroll-Hnformation

Non-Exempt Staff must record all hours worked in compliance with District procedures.
Non-Exempt Staff will be compensated for authorized recorded hours worked, including
preliminary and subsequent work activities and overtime. Timekeeping records must
reflect actual time worked to ensure accurate payment of wages.

Substantiated falsification or misrepresentation of hours worked may result in discipline,
including discharge.

Legal authority: 29 USC 201 et seq.; MCL 408.471 et seq.
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2029. THRUN

LaAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



Series 4000: District Employment
4300 Non-Exempt Staff
4306 Assignment and Transfer

The Board authorizes the Superintendent or designee to assign and transfer Non-Exempt
Staff to meet identified District needs, including curricular, fiscal, personnel management,
or other operating reasons. The Superintendent’'s or designee’s authority includes
assignment, transfer, and the addition or removal of Non-Exempt Staff member’s duties
and responsibilities. In exercising authority pursuant to this Policy, the Superintendent or
designee will comply with the applicable collective bargaining agreement or individual
employment contract.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a(3), 380.601a
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment

4300 Non-Exempt Staff

4308 Reduction and Recall of Non-Exempt Staff

The Board, in its sole discretion, may determine that a reduction in force of a Non-Exempt
Staff member is appropriate due to curricular, fiscal, personnel management, or other
operating conditions. Areduction in force may consist of a reduction of hours or personnel.
Reductions in force and recalls are subject to Board approval.

A. Staff Subject to a Collective Bargaining Agreement or Individual Employment
Contract

If the Board determines that a reduction of Non-Exempt Staff governed by a
collective bargaining agreement or individual employment contract is necessary,
the Superintendent will implement a reduction in force in conformance with the
applicable agreement(s).

B. Non-Exempt Staff Not Subject to a Collective Bargaining Agreement or Individual
Employment Contract Containing Reduction and Recall Provisions

1. Reduction in Force

The Superintendent or designee will make reduction in force recommendations
to the Board. The Superintendent’s or designee’s recommendation to the Board
may consider the following criteria for reduction, which are not in order of
priority or weight:

a.
b.

C.

programs and services to be offered;

employee qualifications, abilities, skills, and education;
federal, state, and local funding;

employment experience that is relevant to an assignment;

federal and state laws or regulations that may mandate certain employment
practices;

special or advanced training that would be of present or future value to the
District;

the organizational and educational effect caused by a reduction of Non-
Exempt Staff member(s);

formal and informal evaluation of Non-Exempt Staff performance by a
supervisor;

length of service with the District and within a classification; and

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



j- any other criteria that are rationally related to providing effective support
services and operation of or administration of the District, such as discipline
record and compliance with attendance Policies and procedures.

2. Notification
Notice will be provided as follows:

a. Before the Board considers a reduction in force, the Superintendent or
designee will notify, in writing, each affected non-exempt staff member that
the Superintendent or designee is recommending a reduction in force or
hours that would affect the non-exempt staff member and the date and time
of the Board meeting at which the Board will consider the reduction in force.

b. After the Board’s decision on reduction in force, the Superintendent or
designee will provide written notice of the Board’s action to the affected non-
exempt staff member(s).

c. A non-exempt staff member who is subject to a reduction in force must,
during the period which the member is eligible for recall, provide the District
with an accurate residential address, email address, and phone number and
report any subsequent change in the employee’s contact information.
Failure to maintain current contact information may be deemed a waiver of
recall rights.

d. The District may allow a laid off non-exempt staff member to be included on
the District's list of substitutes at the Superintendent’s or designee’s
discretion. If the District uses a laid off non-exempt staff member as a
substitute, remuneration will be determined by the District or an applicable
collective bargaining agreement.

C. Recall

A Non-Exempt Staff member subject to a reduction in force as described above
will have preferred rights to recall to employment for a period of 12 months
commencing on the date that the District implemented the reduction in force. The
Non-Exempt Staff member will be recalled to any position within the member’s
classification. Recall decisions will be based on the criteria specified in subsection
B.1 of this Policy.

A Non-Exempt Staff member who declines an offer of recall to a position
comparable to that held at the time of layoff or for which he/she is otherwise
qualified will be removed from the recall list and will forfeit any further employment
rights with the District.

A Non-Exempt Staff member must respond within 10 days after the date the District
sent notice of recall. Failure to do so may be deemed a waiver of recall rights.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a(3), 380.601a

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4300 Non-Exempt Staff
4309 Discipline and Termination
A. Discipline

The Superintendent or designee may discipline non-exempt staff for behavior
warranting discipline, as determined by the Superintendent or designee, provided
the discipline is not for an unlawful purpesereason. Off--duty conduct may result in
discipline if it adversely affects the District and is not a legally protected activity.
Before discipline is imposed, the Non-Exempt Staff member will be provided notice
of the alleged inappropriate behavior and an opportunity to respond to the
allegations.

A Non-Exempt Staff member governed by a collective bargaining agreement or
individual employment contract will be disciplined consistent with the procedures
and standards specified within that agreement.

A Non-Exempt Staff member who reasonably believes an investigatory interview
may result in discipline may bring a representative consistent with Policy 4108.

The Superintendent or designee will record discipline in writing, if warranted.
Written discipline will be placed in the Non-Exempt Staff member’s personnel file.
The Non-Exempt Staff member may submit a written rebuttal letter consistent with
Policy 4224.

Consistent with Revised School Code Section 1230b, unprofessional conduct will
not be suppressed or removed from a personnel file.

B. Termination

A Non-Exempt Staff member is employed at-will and subject to discharge by the
Superintendent or designee, with or without cause, provided the discharge is not
for an unlawful purpose, unless a collective bargaining agreement, individual
employment contract, law, Policy, or handbook provides otherwise.

Legal authority: MCL 380.1230b(6); MCL 423.501 et seq.; NLRB v J. Weingarten, Inc.,
420 US 251 (1975)

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2022 T THRUN



4400
4401

Series 4000: District Employment
Professional Staff
Definition
General

Professional Staff primarily perform work that requires advanced knowledge or
work that is intellectual in nature, consistent with the FLSA's definition of
“professional.” The Professional Staff member’s area of expertise is related to
learning or comes from prolonged course of study, including teachers and Non-
Teaching Professionals, but excluding Administrators/Supervisors (as defined
under Policy 4501) and the Superintendent (as defined under Policy 4601).

. Teachers

Teachers are professional persons who provide or direct instruction to students
and must be appropriately qualified and certified for the assigned teaching position,
consistent with federal and state law and District Policies. Each teacher shall
maintain required qualifications and certification as a condition of that teacher’s
continued employment.

A classroom teacher employed by the District must: (1) have a valid Michigan
teaching certificate or authorization to teach under_the law (see Revised School
Code Section 1233b); and (2) be assigned by the District to deliver direct
instruction to students as a teacher of record.

A teacher must promptly notify the Superintendent or designee, in writing, if the
teacher’s certification or authorization expires, is revoked, or nullified. Failure to
provide this written notice, whether willfully or negligently, may result in discipline,
including discharge.

Non-Teaching Professionals

Non-Teaching Professionals are “other Professional Staff” who are not teachers
and who meet the professional exemption under the FLSA, such as counselors
(i.e., those counselors who are not certified teachers), social workers, teacher
consultants, behavior specialists, speech pathologists (i.e. who are not certified
teachers), physical or occupational therapists, nurses, and psychologists. A Non-
Teaching Professional is not required by law to hold a teaching certificate or
authorization for the assigned duties. Each Non-Teaching Professional must be
qualified and certified as required by the Board or federal and state law. Each Non-
Teaching Professional must maintain those qualifications and certifications as a
condition of that person’s continued employment.

A Non-Teaching Professional must promptly notify the Superintendent or designee,
in writing, if the person’s certification, license, or endorsement expires, is revoked,

T THRUN

© 20202 Law Firm P.C.



or nullified. Failure to provide this written notice, whether willfully or negligently,
may result in discipline, including discharge.

Legal authority: 29 USC 201 et seq.; MCL 38.81 et seq.; MCL 380.1231, 380.1233,
380.1233b, 380.1236, 380.1237

Date adopted:

Dated revised:

20204 T] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4400 Professional Staff
4403 Performance Evaluation

Performance evaluations are essential to provide quality educational services and to
measure competency. This Policy does not diminish the Board’s authority or ability to non-
renew a professional staff member’s contract at the end of the contract’s term, consistent
with applicable statutes, collective bargaining agreements, Policies, and individual
employment contracts.

A. Teachers

Teachers will be evaluated pursuant to a performance evaluation system under
Revised School Code Section 1249 and the Teachers’ Tenure Act. This
performance evaluation system will include, as appropriate, the following:

1. an annual evaluation process that meets statutory standards;
2. an evaluation tool that incorporates components required by law, including:

a. individual performance as a majority factor, including student growth
(predominant factor), pedagogical skills (teacher’s knowledge of the subject
area and ability to impart that knowledge and preparation), classroom
management, and relationships with students, parents/guardians, and other
teachers;

b. student growth as required by law;
c. attendance and discipline;
d. significant, relevant accomplishments and contributions; and

e. relevant special training other than required professional development or
continuing education.

3. an individualized development plan (IDP) for all probationary teachers, for
teachers rated minimally effective or ineffective, or at the evaluator’s discretion
where performance deficiencies are noted;

4. classroom observations with appropriate feedback;
5. a mid-year progress report, if required by law;

6. an annual performance evaluation numerical score (“year-end effectiveness
score”), unless the person qualifies for a biennial evaluation, correlated to
effectiveness ratings of highly effective, effective, minimally effective, or
ineffective;

@2@%. ] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.
lllllllllll



7. a tool approved by MDE, a modified tool (if posting requirements are met), or
a local evaluation tool if adopted in compliance with Revised School Code
Section 1249 and corresponding regulations;

8. website posting of required information for the evaluation tool;

9. training on the evaluation tool for teachers and evaluators as required by law;
and

10.other components that the Superintendent or designee deems relevant,
important, or in the District’s best interests.

If a tenured teacher is rated ineffective on 3 consecutive year-end annual
evaluations, the teacher shall be discharged consistent with due process. The
District is not precluded from discharging a teacher at other times as provided by
the Teachers’ Tenure Act.

B. Non-Teaching Professionals Subject to the Teachers’ Tenure Act

The performance evaluation system for a Non-Teaching Professional with a
teaching certificate who is subject to the Teachers’ Tenure Act must include multiple
observations. An IDP will be developed during the employee’s probationary period.
Except during the probationary period, which must include annual evaluations, the
Superintendent or designee will evaluate the employee’s performance at intervals
determined by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or designee
has discretion to select and use an evaluation tool that serves the District’'s best
interests.

The Superintendent or designee also has discretion to implement an IDP if
performance deficiencies are noted, regardless of the employee’s effectiveness
rating.

C. Non-Teaching Professionals Not Subject to the Teachers’ Tenure Act

For Non-Teaching Professionals without a teaching certificate who are not subject
to the Teachers’ Tenure Act, the Superintendent or designee will evaluate the
employee’s performance at intervals determined by the Superintendent or
designee, except annual evaluation will be performed during the employee’s
probationary period. The Superintendent or designee has discretion to select and
use an evaluation tool that serves the District’s best interests.

An IDP may be established at the Superintendent’s or designee’s discretion.

If the Non-Teaching Professional's employment is governed by a collective
bargaining agreement or individual employment contract, the Superintendent or
designee will adhere to the applicable language on evaluation.

Legal authority: MCL 38.71 et seq.; MCL 380.11a, 380.601a, 380.1233b, 380.1248,
380.1249; 380.1249a(2); MCL 423.215

@2@%. ] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.
lllllllllll



Date adopted:

Date revised:

o202+ [T] THRUN

ccccccccc



Series 4000: District Employment
4400 Professional Staff
4405 Reduction in Force and Recall
A. Teachers

When making program and staffing decisions, the Board will retain the most
effective teachers who are certified and qualified to instruct courses within the
applicable curriculum, academic levels, and departments. The Board has the
exclusive right to determine the size of the teaching staff based on curricular, fiscal,
and other operating conditions. To the extent that the determinations involve
Revised School Code Section 1248 requirements, this Policy will guide the
implementation of that statute.

1. General Provisions

a. The Superintendent will be responsible, acting within the approved budget,
for establishing the number and nature of teaching assignments to
implement the approved curriculum. If the Superintendent determines that
insufficient funds are budgeted for the existing teaching staff or that a
reduction in teaching staff is necessary due to program or curricular
considerations, the Superintendent will recommend to the Board the
teaching positions to be reduced.

b. If after a reduction of teachers, the Superintendent determines that the
District’'s remaining programs and curriculum cannot be delivered through
the existing teaching staff and that sufficient funds are budgeted to support
an increase in the number of teachers, the Superintendent may recommend
to the Board that teachers be added.

c. Decisions about the reduction and recall of teachers will be guided by the
following criteria:

i. Retaining the most effective teachers who are certified (or otherwise
approved or authorized) and qualified to instruct the courses within the
curriculum, academic level(s), and department(s).

A) This Policy does not require the retention or recall of a probationary
or tenured teacher whose most recent performance evaluation
contains an overall rating of ineffective or minimally effective in
preference to any probationary or tenured teacher rated either
effective or highly effective, as reflected in that teacher’s most recent
performance evaluation.

B) A probationary teacher rated as effective or highly effective on the
teacher’s most recent annual year-end performance evaluation is not

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



subject to being displaced by a tenured teacher solely because the
other teacher is tenured under the Teachers’ Tenure Act.

ii. Teachers must be properly certified, approved, or authorized for all
aspects of their assignments. The teacher’s certification, authorization,
or approval status will be:

A) Determined by applicable statutes and regulations, including the
Revised School Code, Teacher Certification Code, and MDE’s Rules
for Special Education Programs and Services; and

B) Based on documentation on file with the Superintendent’s office.

1) Ateacher must maintain current and valid certification, approval,
or authorization, as applicable, and will be responsible for filing a
copy of the teaching certificate, approval, or authorization with the
Superintendent’s office in compliance with Revised School Code
Section 1532.

2) If a teacher petitions for nullification of the teaching certificate or
any endorsement, the teacher must promptly provide written
notice of that petition to the Superintendent’s office.

ii. In addition, teachers must be fully qualified for all aspects of their
assignments, as determined by the Board, based upon documentation
on file with the Superintendent’s office, including:

A) Compliance with applicable state or federal regulatory standards,
including standards established as a condition to receipt of
foundation, grant, or categorical funding;

B) Compliance with applicable accreditation requirements;

C) Professional training and academic preparation for an instructional
assignment that is anticipated to contribute to the teacher’s
effectiveness in that assignment;

D) Formal or specialized training in the subject area(s) or grade level(s);
and

E) Prior teaching experience relevant to the instructional assignment
and anticipated to contribute to the teacher’s effectiveness,
including:

1) Experience in a relevant building or department or at a relevant
academic/grade level,

2) Experience teaching relevant instructional subjects;
3) Recency of relevant and comparable teaching assignments;

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



4) Previous effectiveness ratings;
5) Disciplinary record, if any:and
6) Attendance-; and

6)7) Other relevant factors as determined by the District.

iv. Teachers must provide the District with current information and
documentation supporting the teacher’s certification and qualifications.

A) Reduction and recall decisions will be based on the teacher’s
certification and qualifications in the District’'s records at the time of
the decision.

B) Alaid off teacher must maintain current contact information (address,
phone, and email address) with the Superintendent’s office.

C) Failure to maintain current contact information may negatively impact
the teacher’s recall.

v. Teacher reductions and recalls are by formal Board action.

vi. Before the Board authorizes a teacher reduction, the Superintendent or
designee will notify, in writing, the affected teacher of an opportunity to
respond, either in person or in writing, to the proposed reduction.

vii. The Superintendent or designee will provide written notice of Board
reduction in force or recall decisions to each affected teacher.

viii. A teacher’s length of service with the District or tenure under the
Teachers’ Tenure Act will not be the primary or determining factor in
reduction in force and recall decisions.

d. Teacher reduction in force decisions will be implemented by the following:

i. If 1 or more teaching positions are to be reduced, the Superintendent
will first identify the academic level(s) or department(s) affected by the
reduction. Among those teachers who are certified, approved, or
authorized and qualified to instruct the remaining curriculum within the
affected academic level(s) or department(s), selection of a teacher(s) for
reduction in force will be based on the year-end effectiveness score
identified in Policy 4403.

ii. Teachers within the affected academic level(s) or department(s) who are
certified and qualified for the remaining positions and who received the
highest year-end effectiveness score will be retained. Teachers within
the affected academic level(s) or department(s) with the lowest year-end
effectiveness score will be laid off.

© 2020- @ I_-I:VIV-IFBMUF'NC



iii. When a teaching position is identified for reduction and there exists a
concurrently vacant teaching position for which the teacher in the
position to be reduced is both certified and qualified, and the teacher
has received an overall rating of at least effective on that teacher’s most
recent year-end performance evaluation, that teacher may be assigned
to the vacant position unless the Superintendent determines that the
District’'s educational interests would not be furthered by that
assignment.

iv. If more than 1 teacher whose position has been identified for reduction
is certified and qualified for a concurrently vacant teaching assignment,
the teacher with the highest year-end effectiveness score, if at least
effective, will be given priority for the assignment unless the
Superintendent determines that the District's educational interests
would not be furthered by that assignment.

v. [Choose Option 1 or 2:]

[Option 1: If the reduction or recall decision involves more than 1 teacher
and multiple teachers have the same year-end effectiveness score used
to determine each teacher’s effectiveness rating, a tenured teacher has
priority over a probationary teacher and among tenured teachers.
Teacher seniority (as established by the most recent seniority list for the
bargaining unit to which the tenured teachers belong or, if none exists,
the District’s records) will determine preference for reduction or recall.]

[Option 2: If the reduction or recall decision involves more than 1 teacher
and multiple teachers have the same year-end effectiveness score, the
Board may approve and implement a tiebreaker mechanism using a
discrete part(s) of the evaluation system. For example, if the reduction
or recall decision involves more than one teacher and multiple teachers
have the same year-end effectiveness score used to determine each
teacher’s effectiveness rating, the teacher with the higher year-end
effectiveness score reflected in the [insert Board preference] portion of
the evaluation will have preference for reduction or recall, as applicable.
If this year-end effectiveness score is also tied, seniority (as established
by the most recent seniority list for the bargaining unit to which the
tenured teachers belong or, if none exists, the District’s records) will
determine preference for reduction or recall.]

[Optional: At least 30 calendar days’ notice of reduction in force will be
provided, absent extenuating circumstances.]

2. Teacher Recall Process

a. A teacher is eligible for recall under this Policy for | ] months
[recommended: 12] from the date the District implemented the reduction in
force.

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



b. The Superintendent will first identify the academic level(s) or department(s)
where a teaching vacancy exists.

c. Before or in lieu of initiating the recall of a laid-off teacher, the
Superintendent may reassign teachers to fill vacancies in accordance with
Policy 4402.

d. After or in lieu of any reassignment of existing teaching staff, the
Superintendent may take either of the following actions to fill a vacancy:

i. Recall the laid-off teacher with the highest overall effectiveness score on
the teacher’s most recent year-end evaluation under the performance
evaluation system adopted by the Board and who is certified and
qualified for the vacancy, provided the teacher was rated at least
effective.

ii. Post the vacancy and consider all applicants if the Superintendent
determines that:

A) the District’s educational interests would not be furthered by recalling
an otherwise eligible laid-off teacher who meets the certification and
qualification standards for the position and who received the highest
overall effectiveness score on that teacher’s most recent year-end
evaluation; or

B) no teacher on layoff meets the certification and qualification
requirements for the position as otherwise stated herein.

e. The Superintendent or designee will provide written notice of the Board'’s
recall decision to any recalled teachers and will establish the time within
which a teacher must accept recall to preserve the teacher’s employment
rights.

f. Alaid-off teacher who is offered an interview for a vacancy and who fails to
appear at that interview forfeits all rights to recall and continued
employment.

g. A laid-off teacher who is recalled and fails to accept recall by the time
designated in the recall notice, or who does not report for work by the
deadline specified in the recall notice after filing a written acceptance of
recall with the Superintendent, will forfeit all rights to recall and continued
employment unless the Superintendent, in the Superintendent’s sole
discretion, has extended the time limit in writing.

B. Reduction in Force and Recall of Non-Teaching Professionals

For Non-Teaching Professionals governed by a collective bargaining agreement,
the Superintendent will implement the collective bargaining agreement’s standards

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



and procedures that pertain to reduction in force or recall when recommending a
reduction in force or recall to the Board.

If no collective bargaining agreement exists, or if an existing agreement does not
address reduction in force or recall of Non-Teaching Professionals, the
Superintendent will recommend a reduction in force or recall among Non-Teaching
Professionals using the same standards and procedures as set forth in this Policy
for teachers.

C. Unemployment Compensation

A teacher or Non-Teaching Professional who is laid off and who is paid
unemployment compensation chargeable to the District during the summer
immediately following a reduction in force and who is recalled on or before the
beginning of the next school year will be paid according to an annual adjusted
salary rate such that the employee’s unemployment compensation received plus
the adjusted annual salary rate will be equal to the annual rate of salary the
employee would have earned for the school year had the employee not been laid
off.

Legal authority: MCL 38.71 et seq.; MCL 380.11a, 380.601a, 380.1248, 380.1249,
380.1532; MCL 423.215

Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4400 Professional Staff
4406 Professional Improvement Sabbaticals

The Board may, in its sole discretion and consistent with Revised School Code Section
1235_and any applicable collective bargaining agreement, approve a Professional Staff
member’s paid or unpaid leave of absence for the purposes of pursuing professional
improvement (i.e., a sabbatical) or any other similar circumstance. A Professional Staff
member seeking a leave of absence must apply in writing to the Superintendent or
designee for presentation to the Board at least 60 days in advance. The leave of absence
will be consistent with any applicable collective bargaining agreement or individual
employment contract. If necessary, the Board will negotiate a letter of agreement with the
appropriate bargaining unit to approve a Professional Staff Member’s paid or unpaid leave
of absence for the purposes of pursuing professional improvement or any other similar
circumstance.

Legal authority: MCL 380.1235
Date adopted:

Date revised:

T THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C.

© 20204



Series 4000: District Employment
4400 Professional Staff
4407 Discipline

Maintaining appropriate procedures and standards for addressing misconduct and other
inappropriate behavior by Professional Staff is a critical component in furthering an
effective educational environment and in providing quality educational services to
students. Off-duty conduct may result in discipline if it adversely impacts the District and
is not a legally protected activity. Information about substantiated unprofessional conduct
will not be suppressed or removed from a personnel file consistent with Revised School
Code Section 1230b.

Tenured teacher discipline or demotion will occur only for a reason(s) that is not arbitrary
or capricious. Likewise, the disciplining of other professionals will be governed by the
arbitrary or capricious standard unless expressly stated otherwise in a collective
bargaining agreement, employee handbook, or individual employment contract. Under
the arbitrary or capricious standard, a disciplinary decision must be supported by a
preponderance of the evidence and the discipline must have a rational relationship to the
established misconduct or inappropriate behavior.

Before imposing discipline, the Superintendent or designee will investigate whether a
Professional Staff member engaged in conduct that may justify discipline. The
investigation should include discussions with witnesses determined by the
Superintendent or designee to have relevant information and a review of tangible
evidence (e.g., documents, video, electronic communications). The Professional Staff
member will be provided an opportunity to respond to the allegation(s).

If a Non-Teaching Professional is governed by a collective bargaining agreement or
individual employment contract, the Superintendent or designee will adhere to the
disciplinary standards and procedures in that agreement. If the collective bargaining
agreement or individual employment contract does not have an applicable provision, then
the standards and procedures outlined below will apply.

The following procedures may be used for investigating allegations of Professional Staff
misconduct or inappropriate conduct:

A. The Superintendent or designee may consult with legal counsel in appropriate
cases and may request that legal counsel assist with an investigation.

B. The Superintendent or designee will give the Professional Staff member verbal or
written notice of the allegation(s).

C. If the complaint alleges suspected child abuse or neglect, the matter must be
immediately reported to Children’s Protective Services.

o 2022 [T THRN



© 2022

. The Superintendent or designee will give verbal or written notice of the time, date,

and location of a meeting to provide the Professional Staff member with an
opportunity to respond to the allegation(s) and substantiating factor(s).

An employee who_is subject to an investigatory interview that may result in
discipline or who reasonably believes an investigatory interview may result in
discipline may bring a representative consistent with Policy 4108.

The Superintendent or designee is authorized to place a Professional Staff
member on paid non-disciplinary administrative leave pending the completion of
an investigation when, in the judgment of the Superintendent or designee, placing
the Professional Staff member on leave will protect the investigatory process or
work environment.

If an investigation concludes that a preponderance of the evidence (i.e., more likely
than not) establishes that the Professional Staff member engaged in conduct
warranting discipline, the appropriate level of discipline will be guided by the
following:

1. the seriousness of the offense;
2. the Professional Staff member’s prior disciplinary and employment record;

3. whether other Professional Staff members have engaged in similar or like past
conduct known to the District's administration and the discipline imposed for
those infractions;

4. the existence of aggravating or mitigating factors, as determined by the
Superintendent or designee;

. applicable federal or state law;

5
6. the Professional Staff member’s acceptance of responsibility;
7. the likelihood of recurrence; and

8

. any other factors the Superintendent or designee determine are relevant.

. Disciplinary measures may include verbal warning (memorialized in writing),

written reprimand, unpaid suspension, financial penalty, or discharge. Nothing in
this Policy requires that the above disciplinary measures be applied progressively
or sequentially. The District reserves the right to apply a disciplinary measure it
determines to be appropriate to a specific set of circumstances. The District may
consider additional preventative measures to address the misconduct, including
training, coaching, and other remedial measures.

Discipline will be confirmed in writing to the Professional Staff member and placed
in that person’s personnel file. The discipline imposed may also be reflected in the
person’s year-end performance evaluation where it pertains to areas measured in
the evaluation.

THRUN

LAw FIRM, P.C.



J. The Superintendent or designee is authorized to impose discipline with the
exception of:

1. the discharge of a Professional Staff member; and
2. the demotion of a tenured teacher, as defined in the Teachers’ Tenure Act.

The Board’s action may be based upon the Superintendent’s or designee’s written
recommendation and applicable procedures set forth in the Teachers’ Tenure Act.

K. Atenured teacher’s salary may be escrowed after tenure charges are approved by
the Board pursuant to Policy 4208.

Legal authority: MCL 38.71 et seq.; MCL 380.11a, 380.601a; MCL 423.215; NLRB v J
Weingarten, Inc, 420 US 251 (1975)

Date adopted:

Dated revised:

o 2022 [T THRN



Series 4000: District Employment

4500 Administrators/Supervisors

4503 Performance Evaluation

Performance evaluations of Administrators are an essential element of providing quality
educational services and measuring an employee’s competency. This Policy does not
alter the Board’s authority or ability to terminate an Administrator’'s employment during
the term of an individual employment contract or to non-renew an Administrator’s contract
at the end of the contract’s term.

A. Building Level and Central Office Instructional Administrators

The Superintendent or designee will ensure that building level and central office
Administrators who are regularly involved in instructional matters are evaluated
consistent with a performance evaluation system under Revised School Code
Sections 1249 and 1249b. This performance evaluation system will include, if
appropriate, the following:

1.

a year-end annual evaluation by the Superintendent or designee, unless the
Administrator qualifies for a biennial evaluation. This does not preclude more
frequent Administrator evaluations as determined necessary by the
Superintendent or designee;

. an individualized improvement plan if the Administrator is rated minimally

effective or ineffective or where performance deficiencies are noted;
student growth and other assessment required or authorized by law;

an overall effectiveness rating of highly effective, effective, minimally effective,
or ineffective;

dismissal of an Administrator rated ineffective on 3 consecutive year-end
evaluations;

an evaluation tool approved by the MDE, a modified tool (if posting
requirements are met), or a local evaluation tool adopted in compliance with
Revised School Code Sections 1249 and 1249b;

website posting of required information pertaining to the evaluation tool;
appropriate training for evaluators; and

other components that the Superintendent or designee deems relevant,
important, or in the District’s best interest.

B. Non-Instructional Administrators, Supervisors, and Directors

The Superintendent or designee may evaluate Non-Instructional Administrators,
Supervisors, and Directors based on the appropriate evaluation instrument as

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



determined by the Board and consistent with any applicable collective bargaining
agreement or individual employment contract. An individual improvement plan may
be implemented to remediate and enhance employee performance.

Legal authority: MCL 380.11a, 380.601a, 380.1249, 380.1249b

Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 4000: District Employment
4500 Administrators/Supervisors
4504 Performance Based Compensation

The Superintendent or designee will implement a performance based compensation
system for building level and central office Administrators regularly involved in
instructional matters pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1250 and State School
Aid Act Section 164h. The system must include job performance and accomplishments
as a significant factor in determining compensation and additional compensation and be
based, at least in part, on student growth data as measured by assessments and other
objective criteria for effective and highly effective professionals.

The Superintendent may recommend merit pay to the Board for non-instructional
Administrators, Supervisors, and Directors.

Collective bargaining agreements and individual employment contracts covering
administrative personnel regularly involved in instructional matters must include a method
of compensation that complies with this Policy.

Legal authority: MCL 380.1249, 380.1249b, 380.1250; MCL 388.1764h
Date adopted:

Date revised:

@2@2@. Tl THRUN

LaAw FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



Series 4000: District Employment
4500 Administrators/Supervisors
4506 Discipline

The Superintendent or designee may discipline Administrators, Supervisors, or Directors
for misconduct, violations of contract, Policy, or law, or other inappropriate behavior. Off-
duty conduct may result in discipline if it adversely impacts the District and is not otherwise
a legally protected activity. This Policy does not cover termination of an Administrator,
Supervisor, or Director, which is addressed in Policy 4507.

Before discipline is imposed, the Administrator, Supervisor, or Director will be provided an
opportunity to respond to the allegation(s).

An Administrator, Supervisor, or Director governed by a collective bargaining agreement
or individual employment contract may be disciplined consistent with applicable
procedures and standards in that agreement. An employee who_is subject to an
investigatory interview that may result in discipline or who reasonably believes an
investigatory interview may result in discipline may bring a representative consistent with
Policy 4108.

If the Superintendent or designee concludes, by a preponderance of the evidence, that
the conduct in question has been substantiated and that discipline is warranted, the
Superintendent or designee may discipline the employee so long as the basis for the
discipline follows the standard(s) identified in the employee’s applicable collective
bargaining agreement or individual employment contract. If the employee is not subject
to a collective bargaining agreement or individual employment contract, the
Superintendent or designee may implement discipline for any lawful reason. The
disciplinary action may be considered in the employee’s performance evaluation. Written
discipline will be placed in the employee’s personnel file.

A suspension without pay may be imposed as a disciplinary consequence, consistent with
the Fair Labor Standards Act, for infractions of safety rules of major significance or
infractions of workplace conduct rules, such as rules prohibiting unlawful harassment,
workplace violence, drug or alcohol use, or for infractions of state or federal laws.
Disciplinary deductions may only be made in full-day increments and must be imposed
pursuant to a written Policy applicable to all employees.

Evidence of substantiated unprofessional conduct cannot be suppressed or removed
from a personnel file consistent with Revised School Code Section 1230b.

The Teachers’ Tenure Act shall apply if an Administrator’s tenure rights are implicated by
the disciplinary action.

[Optional: Discipline that results in 5 days or more of lost compensation may be reviewed
by the Board.]

Law FIRM, P.C.



Legal authority: 29 CFR 541.602(b)(5); MCL 380.11a, 380.601a, 380.653, 380.1230b,
380.1249, 380.1249b; MCL 423.209

Date adopted:

Date revised:



4600
4601

Series 4000: District Employment
The Superintendent
General

Employment

Except in limited circumstances as otherwise allowed by law, the Board will employ
a Superintendent as the District’s chief administrative officer who will report to the
Board. The Superintendent’s individual employment contract will not exceed 5
years. The Superintendent will maintain appropriate certification, as well as comply
with continuing education requirements, as a condition of continued employment.
The Superintendent must immediately notify the Board if his or her certification
expires or is nullified or revoked.

Duties and Responsibilities

The Superintendent will regularly advise the Board on significant legal,
educational, financial, and other school-related developments affecting the District
and the Board and will demonstrate exemplary leadership and knowledge of
contemporary educational philosophy and effective practices.

The Superintendent will ensure compliance with requirements imposed by federal
and state law, Policy, and governmental authorities with jurisdiction over Michigan
schools. The Board delegates to the Superintendent the general power and
authority to do the following, within Board-approved Policy and budgetary
parameters:

1. direct curriculum and take actions to maximize student safety, welfare, and
educational opportunities;

2. [Option: Suspend students up to 59 days and expel students consistent with
Policy 5206];

3. ensure compliance with student disciplinary standards and procedures;
4. accept all employee resignations on the Board’s behalf;

5. make other employment decisions consistent with these Policies, specifically
including the right to hire, recall, transfer, assign, direct, discipline, and
recommend or impose termination, as applicable;

6. develop and implement recruitment, application, and selection procedures to
fill vacancies for Non-Exempt Staff, Teaching Professionals, Non-Teaching
Professionals, Administrators, Supervisors, and Directors and to make hiring
recommendations to the Board for approval, if applicable;

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



7. manage District grounds, buildings, property, and equipment and make
determinations about their use, maintenance, improvements, purchases, and
repairs in accordance with law;

8. temporarily close one or more of the District’s schools or programs or alter the
school day when the Superintendent determines that the action is necessary
for the health and safety of students and staff;

9. maintain adequate supplies and materials for students and staff;

10.consult with outside advisors, attorneys, auditors, and others in the best
interests of the District;

11.negotiate collective bargaining agreements and other contracts, subject to
Board review and ratification;

12.serve as the Board’s spokesperson and community liaison;

13.develop, recommend, and implement cooperative programs and services with
other public and private entities that will promote attainment of District goals
and objectives;

14.implement Board policies and supervise the District’'s day-to-day operations;

15.take action in circumstances not authorized by Board action or Policy when
required to effectively run the District’s day-to-day operations, to respond to a
lawful order, or to implement rules to protect health and safety. The
Superintendent should (1) inform the Board of the action taken and the need
for expedited action; and (2) report the action to the Board during the first

meeting proceeding-following the action; and

45.16. draft administrative quidelines and forms which are consistent with these
Policies or the law to effectively run the District’'s operations; and

46-17. take action as permitted or required by law or as authorized by Board action
or Policy.

C. Fiscal Management

The Superintendent, in consultation with other District personnel, will prepare and
present to the Board a proposed annual District budget for the upcoming fiscal
year. Budget adoption and amendments will be subject to Board approval. The
Superintendent will furnish the Board with all information requested by the Board
for proper consideration of the proposed budget. After the proposed budget is
adopted by the Board at a public hearing held in compliance with the Budget
Hearings of Local Government Act, the Superintendent, in consultation with the
individual acting in the capacity of the District’s business official, will oversee and
control budget expenditures to ensure compliance with the budget adopted by the
Board.

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



Legal authority: MCL 141.411 et seq.; MCL 380.11a, 380.601a, 380.653, 380.654,
380.1229(1), 380.1229(4), 380.1246, 380.1536

Date adopted:

Date revised:

o202+ JF] THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C,
PoLICY SERVIC E



Series 4000: District Employment
4600 The Superintendent
4602 Hiring

The Board will determine and select the best candidate to serve as the Superintendent,
based on qualifications, experience, and demonstrated capabilities. The Board may enlist
professional consultants, employees, community members, or others to assist with the
recruitment and selection process.

Qualified candidates will possess and maintain certifications, permits, and approvals
required by federal and state law for the office of Superintendent. The hiring process will
comply with the Michigan Open Meetings Act.

Before hiring the selected candidate, an offer of employment will be conditioned on
successful completion of a background check as described in Policy 4205.

The Board should consult with legal counsel when drafting the Superintendent’s
employment contract.

The Superintendent’'s employment contract shall not exceed five years in duration. If a
Superintendent vacates the position before a new Superintendent is selected, the Board
shall appoint an interim Superintendent to oversee operations until a new Superintendent
is selected. Hiring decisions shall be based on qualifications, skills, knowledge, abilities,
education, certifications/licenses, experience, demeanor, and other criteria the Board
may deem relevant.

Legal authority: MCL 15.261 et seq.; MCL 380.1229(1), 380.1536
Date adopted:

Date revised:

o 2020 JT] THRUN

LaAw FIrRM, P.C.



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5100 Student Rights
5101 Student Expression

The District will balance student speech and expression rights with its responsibility to
provide a safe, orderly learning environment.

Students may not engage in speech or expressive conduct that would materially and
substantially interfere with or disrupt school operations, including school activities and
educational programming. An actual disruption is not required before school officials may
regulate student speech or impose discipline if they can reasonably forecast a substantial
and material disruption or interference with school operations.

Students may be disciplined for speech or expressive conduct that: is materially and
substantially disruptive or that school officials can reasonably forecast will create a
substantial disruption; is obscene, sexually explicit, indecent, or lewd; promotes the use
of or advertises illegal substances; incites violence; contains “fighting words” or
constitutes a true threat of violence; [Optional: constitutes hate speech or symbols,
including, but not limited to, swastikas or Confederate flags]; involves a student walkout;
urges a violation of law, Board Policy, or rule; or is not constitutionally protected.
Administrators will evaluate student speech on a case-by-case basis, including the
location, context, and nexus to the school, before imposing discipline.

Student activism is subject to the above standards.

As used in this Policy, “fighting words” are words that tend to provoke a violent response
amounting to a breach of the peace.

Legal authority: U.S. CONST. amend. I; Const 1963, art I, § 5; Tinker v Des Moines Indep
Community Sch Dist, 393 US 503 (1969)

Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2021 4] THRUN

Law Firm, P.C.



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5100 Student Rights
5104 Age of Majority

State law recognizes students are adults at age 18 or when otherwise legally
emancipated. Except as noted below, all Board Policies, applicable codes of conduct,
and any other applicable rules or behavioral expectations apply to all students regardless
of age.

Unless inconsistent with a court order, students who are 18 years or older or legally
emancipated may:

A. have the same rights as their parents/guardians as they relate to access to or
control of their student records;

B. represent themselves during disciplinary conferences;
E-C. request a personal curriculum; and
D. have other rights or privileges as determined by the Superintendent or designee;

E. [Optional] sign themselves in and out of school;

F. [Optional] provide reason(s) for their absences and tardies;

E .

Eligible students who wish to assert these rights must notify the building principal in
writing. Otherwise, sections B-F above will not apply. The building principal or designee
may notify an eligible student’s parent/guardian that the eligible student has exercised the
rights listed under this Policy.

Legal authority: MCL 380.1278b; MCL 722.4, 722.52
Date adopted:

Date revised:

POLICY SERVICE



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5200 Student Conduct and Discipline

5206 Student Discipline [Note: This Policy complies with all relevant laws and rules
and reflects the most common practices to address student discipline. If this Policy
does not reflect your District’s practices, Thrun Law Firm will work with you to
modify the Policy to incorporate your District’s practices consistent with applicable
law.]

[Note: The Board must also adopt Policies 5206A, 5206B, 5206C, and 5206E. Board
Policy 5206D is optional.]

A. Student Discipline - Generally

The Board is committed to providing students and staff with a safe learning
environment free from substantial disruption. Consistent with this commitment, the
District may discipline students who engage in misconduct, up to and including
suspension or expulsion from school.

The District will take steps to effectively discipline students in a manner that
minimizes out-of-school suspensions and expulsions. The District will comply with
applicable laws related to student discipline, including the consideration of specific
factors and possible use of restorative practices.

B. Applicability
This Policy applies to student conduct that occurs:
1. on District property;
2. at a school-sponsored or school-related event;
3. on a school bus or vehicle;
4. while traveling to or from school, including at a bus stop; and
5

. atany other time or place if the conduct has a nexus to the school, substantially
disrupts the school environment, or as permitted by law.

C. Student Code of Conduct

The Superintendent or designee will develop, regularly update, and annually
publish a student code of conduct in all student handbooks. The student code of
conduct must:

1. identify offenses that may result in discipline;

@2@%2@ THRUN

Law FirmMm, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



2. identify possible disciplinary consequences for each offense, which may, if

appropriate, include suspension or expulsion;

3. be consistent with applicable state and federal laws and Board Policies; and

4. include a copy of Policy 5206E entitled “Suspension from Class, Subject, or

D.

Activity by Teacher.”
Definitions
For purposes of this Policy:

1. “suspend” or “suspension” means a disciplinary removal from school for less
than 60 school days;

2. “expel” or “expulsion” means a disciplinary removal from school for 60 or more
school days;

3. ‘restorative practices” means practices that emphasize repairing the harm to
the victim and the school community caused by a student’s misconduct; and

4. “Mandatory 7 Factors” means the following:

a. the student’s age;

b. the student’s disciplinary history;

c. whether the student has a disability;

d. the seriousness of the behavior;

e. whether the behavior posed a safety risk;

f. whether restorative practices are a better option; and

g. whether lesser interventions would address the behavior.
Restorative Practices

Before suspending or expelling a student (except a student who possesses a
firearm in a weapon-free school zone), teachers, administrators, and the Board
must first determine whether restorative practices would better address the
student’'s misconduct, recognizing the Board’s objective of minimizing out-of-
school suspensions and expulsions. Likewise, teachers, administrators, and the
Board must consider whether restorative practices should be used in addition to
the suspension or expulsion. Restorative practices, which may include a victim-
offender conference, should be the first consideration to remediate offenses such
as interpersonal conflicts, bullying, verbal and physical conflicts, theft, damage to
property, class disruption, harassment, and cyberbullying.

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



All victim-offender conferences must be conducted consistent with state and
federal law and Policies. No student who claims to be the victim of unlawful
harassment may be compelled to meet with the alleged perpetrator of the
harassment as part of a restorative practice.

Discretionary Suspension or Expulsion

Under Michigan law, a suspension of 10 or fewer school days is presumed to be
reasonable. A suspension of more than 10 school days or an expulsion is, in most
circumstances, presumed not to be justified. Before imposing a suspension or an
expulsion, administrators or the Board must consider the Mandatory 7 Factors.

1. Building Administrators - 10 or fewer days

The Board delegates to all building administrators the authority to suspend a
student for up to 10 school days consistent with the student code of conduct.

A building administrator may also suspend a student for up to 10 school days
pending further investigation and possible further disciplinary consequences,
including a longer-term suspension or expulsion.

Before exercising this authority, the building administrator must consider the
Mandatory 7 Factors.

Additionally, before suspending a student for any length of time, the building
administrator must provide the student due process as described in Policy
5206A. If the student is a student with a disability, the student’s discipline is
also subject to Policy 5206B.

2. Superintendent - Less than 60 school days

The Board delegates to the Superintendent the authority to suspend a student
for less than 60 school days consistent with the student code of conduct. Before
exercising this authority, the Superintendent must consider the Mandatory 7
Factors.

Any time the Superintendent finds that a suspension of more than 10 school
days is warranted, the Superintendent must base the rationale on the
Mandatory 7 Factors and explain the rationale in writing.

Additionally, before suspending a student for any length of time, the
Superintendent must provide the student due process as described in Policy
5206A. If the student is a student with a disability, the student’s discipline is
also subject to Policy 5206B.

3. Board - Suspension or Expulsion

The Board may suspend or expel a student for an offense consistent with the
student code of conduct.

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



G.

Before exercising this authority, the Board must consider the Mandatory 7
Factors.

Any time the Board finds that a suspension of more than 10 school days or
expulsion is warranted, the Board must base the rationale on the Mandatory 7
Factors and explain the rationale in writing.

Before exercising this authority, the Board must provide the student due
process as described in Policy 5206A. If the student is a student with a
disability, the student’s discipline is also subject to Policy 5206B.

Criminal Sexual Conduct — Discretionary Suspension or Expulsion

If a student commits criminal sexual conduct, as defined in Revised School Code
Section 1311, against another student enrolled in the District and expulsion is not
mandatory under Policy 5206 H.3, the District may suspend or expel the student
even if the student has not been criminally charged, subject to consideration of the
Mandatory 7 Factors.

Before exercising this authority, the District must provide the student due process
as described in Policy 5206A. If the student is a student with a disability, the
student’s discipline is also subject to Policy 5206B.

. Mandatory Suspension or Expulsion

Building principals and other administrators must refer all incidents that may result
in a mandatory suspension or expulsion to the Superintendent or designee for
transmission to the Board. As explained below, the Board recognizes that in some
circumstances it may choose not to suspend or expel a student. Nothing in this
section may be construed as limiting the Board'’s discretion to suspend or expel a
student for any offense that the student code of conduct identifies as possibly
resulting in suspension or expulsion.

1. Possession of a Dangerous Weapon
a. Possession of a Firearm

If a student possesses a firearm in a weapon-free school zone, the Board
will permanently expel the student unless the student demonstrates, in a
clear and convincing manner, at least one of the following:

e the student was not possessing the firearm to use as a weapon or to
deliver, either directly or indirectly, to another person to use as a weapon;

e the student did not knowingly possess the firearm;

e the student did not know or have reason to know that the firearm
constituted a “dangerous weapon”; or

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



e the student possessed the firearm at the suggestion, request, or
direction of, or with the express permission of, school or police
authorities.

If a student demonstrates one of the above circumstances in a clear and
convincing manner and the student has not been previously suspended or
expelled from school, the Board will not expel the student unless the Board
finds that, based on the circumstances, expulsion is warranted.

. Possession of a Dangerous Weapon (Other than a Firearm)

If a student possesses a dangerous weapon (other than a firearm) in a
weapon-free school zone, the Board will consider whether to permanently
expel the student or to impose a less severe penalty after first considering
the Mandatory 7 Factors.

The Board is not required to expel a student for possession of a dangerous
weapon (other than a firearm) if the student demonstrates, in a clear and
convincing manner, at least one of the following:

¢ the student was not possessing the instrument or object to use as a
weapon or to deliver, either directly or indirectly, to another person to use
as a weapon;

e the student did not knowingly possess the weapon;

e the student did not know or have reason to know that the instrument or
object constituted a “dangerous weapon”; or

e the student possessed the weapon at the suggestion, request, or
direction of, or with the express permission of, school or police
authorities.

If a student demonstrates one of the above circumstances in a clear and
convincing manner and the student has not been previously suspended or
expelled from school, the Board will not expel the student unless the Board
finds that, based on the circumstances, expulsion is warranted.

. Applicable Definitions for Dangerous Weapon Offense

“Weapon-free school zone” means school property and a vehicle used by a
school to transport students to or from school property.

“School property” means a building, playing field, or property used for
school purposes to impart instruction to children or used for functions and
events sponsored by a school, except a building used primarily for adult
education or college extension courses.

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.

POLICY SERVICE



‘Dangerous weapon” means a firearm, dagger, dirk, stiletto, knife with a
blade over 3 inches in length, pocket knife opened by a mechanical device,
iron bar, or brass knuckles.

“Firearm” means (i) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is
designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action
of an explosive; (ii) the frame or receiver of any such weapon; (iii) any
firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (iv) any destructive device. “Firearm”
does not include an antique firearm, as defined by 18 USC § 921.

“‘Destructive device” means (i) any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas
(including a bomb, grenade, rocket having a propellant charge of more than
four ounces, missile having an explosive or incendiary charge of more than
one-quarter ounce, mine, or similar device); (ii) any type of weapon (other
than a shotgun or a shotgun shell that the Attorney General finds is
generally recognized as particularly suitable for sporting purposes) by
whatever name known which will, or which may be readily converted to,
expel a projectile by the action of an explosive or other propellant, and which
has any barrel with a bore of more than one-half inch in diameter; and (iii)
any combination of parts either designed or intended for use in converting
any device into a destructive device and from which a destructive device
may be readily assembled.

d. Additional Procedures for Dangerous Weapon Expulsion

The Superintendent or designee must ensure that if a student is expelled
for possession of a dangerous weapon, the student’s permanent record
reflects the expulsion. The Superintendent or designee must refer a student
who is expelled for possession of a dangerous weapon to the county
department of social services or the county community mental health
agency and notify the student’s parent/guardian (or the student, if the
student is at least age 18 or is an emancipated minor) of the referral within
3 calendar days of the expulsion. The Superintendent or designee must also
make a referral to local law enforcement and contact the student’s
parent/guardian immediately any time a student is found to have brought a
dangerous weapon to school or possessed a dangerous weapon at school,
at a school related activity, or in a school vehicle. If a District official
confiscates a dangerous weapon, the District official will give the dangerous
weapon to law enforcement and will not release the dangerous weapon to
any other person, including the legal owner.

Unless reinstated pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1311(6), a
student expelled by another district or public school academy for
possession of a dangerous weapon may not enroll in the District.

2. Arson

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



If a student commits arson as defined in Revised School Code Section 1311,
in a school building or on school grounds, the Board will consider whether to
permanently expel the student or to impose a less severe penalty after first
considering the Mandatory 7 Factors.

The Superintendent or designee must ensure that if a student is expelled for
committing arson, the student’s permanent record reflects the expulsion. The
Superintendent or designee must refer a student who is expelled for committing
arson to the county department of social services or the county community
mental health agency and notify the student’s parent/guardian (or the student,
if the student is at least age 18 or is an emancipated minor) of the referral within
3 calendar days of the expulsion.

Unless reinstated pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1311(6), a student
expelled by another district or public school academy for committing arson may
not enroll in the District.

. Criminal Sexual Conduct

If a student commits criminal sexual conduct as defined in Revised School
Code Section 1311, in a school building or on school grounds, or pleads to, is
convicted of, or is adjudicated for criminal sexual conduct against another
student enrolled in the District, the Board will consider whether to permanently
expel the student or to impose a less severe penalty after first considering the
Mandatory 7 Factors.

The Superintendent or designee must ensure that if a student is expelled for
committing criminal sexual conduct, the student’s permanent record reflects the
expulsion. The Superintendent or designee must refer a student who is
expelled for committing criminal sexual conduct to the county department of
social services or the county community mental health agency and notify the
student’s parent/guardian (or the student, if the student is at least age 18 or is
an emancipated minor) of the referral within 3 calendar days of the expulsion.

Unless reinstated pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1311(6), a student
expelled by another district or public school academy for committing criminal
sexual conduct may not enroll in the District.

4. Physical Assault

a. Physical Assault Against Employee, Volunteer, or Contractor

If a student in grade 6 or above commits a physical assault at school against
an employee, volunteer, or contractor and the victim reports the physical
assault to the Board or to a school administrator or, if the victim is unable to
report the assault, another person makes the report on the victim’s behalf,
the Board will consider whether to permanently expel the student or to
impose a less severe penalty after first considering the Mandatory 7
Factors.

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



The Superintendent or designee must ensure that if a student is expelled
for physically assaulting an employee, volunteer, or contractor, the student’s
permanent record reflects the expulsion. The Superintendent or designee
must refer a student who is expelled for physically assaulting an employee,
volunteer, or contractor to the county department of social services or the
county community mental health agency and notify the student’s
parent/guardian (or the student, if the student is at least age 18 or is an
emancipated minor) of the referral within 3 calendar days of the expulsion.

Unless reinstated pursuant to Revised School Code Section 1311a(5), a
student expelled by another district or public school academy for physically
assaulting an employee, volunteer, or contractor may not enroll in the
District.

b. Physical Assault Against Another Student

If a student in grade 6 or above commits a physical assault at school against
another student and the physical assault is reported to the Board or to an
administrator, the District will consider whether to suspend or expel the
student or to impose a less severe penalty after first considering the
Mandatory 7 Factors.

A resident student in grade 6 or above who is currently expelled by another
district or public school academy for committing a physical assault against
another student may request to enroll in the District. The Superintendent or
designee will consider the request along with any information the
Superintendent or designee determines relevant. The Superintendent or
designee may either grant or deny the request. The Superintendent’s
decision is final.

c. Applicable Definitions for Physical Assault Against Student

i. “Physical assault” means intentionally causing or attempting to cause
physical harm to another through force or violence.

ii. “At school” means in a classroom, elsewhere on school premises, on a
school bus or other school-related vehicle, or at a school-sponsored
activity or event whether or not it is held on school premises.

5. Bomb Threat or Similar Threat

If a student in grade 6 or above makes a bomb threat or similar threat directed
at a school building, other District property, or at a school-related event, the
District will consider whether to suspend or expel the student or to impose a
less severe penalty after first considering the Mandatory 7 Factors.

A resident student in grade 6 or above who is currently expelled by another
district or public school academy for making a bomb threat or similar threat may
request to enroll in the District. The Superintendent or designee will consider

THRUN

Law FirmM, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



the request along with any information the Superintendent or designee
determines relevant. The Superintendent or designee may either grant or deny
the request. The Superintendent’s decision is final.

|. Statewide School Safety Information Policy (SSSIP) & Law Enforcement Reporting

The Superintendent or designee must notify law enforcement when required by
the SSSIP and make all other reports and provide all other notifications required
by the SSSIP or any state or federal law. Nothing in this Policy limits the ability of
a school administrator to contact law enforcement at any other time.

J. Educational Programming During Suspension or Expulsion

Except as otherwise required by law or as provided in this Policy, a student who
has been suspended or expelled may not be on school property, attend classes or
other school functions, or participate in extracurricular activities during the
student’'s suspension or expulsion without written permission from the
Superintendent or designee. District personnel may assist students who have been
suspended or expelled to explore alternative means, as allowed by law, to earn
credit and to complete coursework during the period of the student’s suspension
or expulsion.

Legal authority: 18 USC 921; 20 USC 1401 et seq., 7151; 29 USC 705, 794-794b; MCL
380.1308-1310, 380.1310a, 380.1310c, 380.1310d, 380.1311,
380.1311a, 380.1312, 380.1313

Date adopted:

Date revised:

@29;42@ THRUN

Law FirmMm, P.C.
POLICY SERVICE



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters

5300 Student Enrollment, Attendance, and Records

5305 Schools-of-Choice

The Board will annually determine whether the District will accept schools-of-choice
students who reside in the same ISD in which the District is located, who reside within an
ISD contiguous to the ISD in which the District is located, or both. If the Board determines
that schools-of-choice students will be accepted for enroliment, the Board will establish
the grades, schools, and programs in which they may enroll and the number of schools-
of-choice students the District will accept for each open grade, school, or program.

If the Board determines that the District will accept schools-of-choice students, the
Superintendent or designee will ensure that applicable provisions of state law are
followed, including, without limitation:

A. publishing the grades, schools, and programs for which the District will accept
schools-of-choice applicants;

B.

establishing an application period of at least 15 and no more than 30 calendar days
if the Board has limited the number of schools-of-choice students who may enroll
in a grade, school, or program;

selecting students who may enroll in the following manner:

1.

the Superintendent or designee must give preference to an applicant who
resides in the same household as a student already enrolled in the District;

the Superintendent or designee may refuse to enroll a student who has been
suspended from another school in the preceding 2 years or who has ever been
expelled from another school or convicted of a felony;

the Superintendent or designee will require that schools-of-choice students
meet the same criteria that a resident student must meet to enroll in a grade or
specialized/magnet school or program;

if, after applying the enrollment preferences and exclusions described in this
Policy, there are more applicants than spots available in a particular grade,
school, or program, the Superintendent or designee will select students based
on a random draw lottery;

except as otherwise stated in this Policy, the Superintendent or designee may
not make enroliment decisions based on any other factors:.

D. following all notice and timeline requirements;

E. allowing a student who has enrolled as a schools-of-choice student to continue to
enroll in the District until the student graduates, enrolls in another school, drops
out of school, or is expelled from school;

© 202040l THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



F. requesting records from a student’s previous district.

Before enrolling a student who resides outside of the ISD in which the District is located
and who has been identified as a child with a disability under the Individuals with
Disabilities Education Act, the Superintendent or designee will attempt to enter into a cost-
sharing agreement with the student’s resident district. If the District and the student’s
resident district fail to reach a cost-sharing agreement, the student will not be enrolled in
the District.

If the District receives a request from another district for records about a resident student’s
schools-of-choice application, the Superintendent or designee will promptly respond to
the request.

The Superintendent or designee may pursue all available legal options, including referral
to law enforcement, against any person who provides false or misleading information on
a schools-of-choice application.

Students not eligible to enroll pursuant to this Policy may only enroll consistent with Policy
5303.

Legal authority: MCL 388.1705, 388.1705¢c
Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 202040l THRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5500 School Sponsored and Extracurricular Activities
5506 Field Trips
Field trips should generally be conducted during the school day.
A. General Conditions

All field trips must be pre-approved by the building principal or designee. Out-of-
state and overnight trips require pre-approval from the Board or its designee. Field
trips should be primarily academic in nature and related to the curriculum. The
Superintendent or building principal(s) will develop procedures for approval of trips
and communicate those procedures to instructional staff.

B. Parent/guardian Permission

Each student must submit a completed permission form signed by the student’s
parent/guardian before being allowed to attend a field trip.

C. Supervision

Teachers must ensure that students are adequately supervised and chaperoned
by a responsible adult at all tlmes during field trips. All chaperones must be at least

msu#aneeeeverage{@phend—%d—a—sai&éwmg—reeerd}—A chaperone is prohlblted

from drinking alcoholic beverages or using non-prescribed controlled substances
at any time during the field trip. A chaperone must adhere to all District and building
volunteer requirements, including Policy 3105.

The District may deny or terminate a chaperone assignment for any fawful-reason
that is not unlawful.

The District will not prohibit an eligible student from participating in a field trip solely
because the student’s parent/guardian does not chaperone.

D. Student Conduct

A student’s failure to comply with Board Policy, the student code of conduct, and
any other applicable rules or behavioral expectations while on a field trip may result
in disciplinary action and removal or exclusion from the trip.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

© 2020 80P) THRUN



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5700 Student Health and Safety
5710 Student Suicide Prevention

Employees, volunteers, and contractors must immediately notify the building principal or
designee if a student is exhibiting signs of unusual depression, expressing suicidal
thoughts, or threatening or attempting suicide or self-harm.

The District will convene a crisis response team to investigate and develop an intervention
plan for the student, if necessary.

A member of the crisis response team will immediately notify the student’s
parent/guardian if the student threatens or attempts suicide.

District personnel who suspect that a student may have a disability under Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act or the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act must immediately
refer the student for an evaluation.

[Mandatory if your District issues student identification cards for students in grades 6-12:

Beginning—with-the2021-2022 schoolyear—theThe District will print the number of a

national, state, or local suicide prevention hotline that can be accessed at any time on
student identification cards for students in grades 6-12.]

[Optional, but encouraged by state law: The District will post on its website homepage
and in a conspicuous location in the school counselor’s office MDHHS model information
materials about suicide prevention services, suicide, depression, and anxiety.]

[Optional: The District will provide age-appropriate instruction and professional
development about suicide prevention, consistent with Policy 2203 and state law.]

Legal authority: MCL 380.1171, 380.1893
Date adopted:

Date revised:

@2022' ] THRUN

Law FIrRM, P.C.
ccccccccc



Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5700 Student Health and Safety

5711 Toilet Training [Optional][Note: If the Board elects not to adopt this Policy,
delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left
Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure
accurate numbering of subsequent policies in the Policy Manual.]

Except when toilet -training is part of the instructional program, students are expected to
be fully toilet trained before the first day of school, unless otherwise specifically addressed
in the student’s IEP or Section 504 Plan.

The student’s parent/guardian is responsible for ensuring that the student is toilet trained.
The parent/guardian is also responsible for providing clean clothes for a student who may
have toileting accidents.

No student will be punished;—abused; or humiliated for soiling or wetting clothing or not
using the toilet.

The building principal or designee alse-should consider whether the-repeated toileting
accidents are related to a disability.

Except when toilet_-training is part of the instructional program, staff will not assist a
student with toileting unless directed to do so by the student’s IEP or Section 504 Plan.

Date adopted:

Date revised:

@MTHRUN

Law FIRM, P.C.
FOLICY SERVICE



DRAINAGE EASEMENT
Parcel L.D. No. 61-15-135-200-0011-00
NORTH POINT DRAIN

For and in consideration of the payment of One Dollar ($1.00) and the prospective benefits
to be derived because of the establishment, construction, operation, maintenance and improvement
of the North Point Drain (the “Drain™), a county drain under the supervision of the Muskegon
County Water Resources Commissioner, whose address is 141 E Apple Avenue, Muskegon,
Michigan 49442;

Fruitport Community Schools, a Michigan general powers school district organized and
operating under the provisions of the Revised School Code, MCL 380.1, et seq., as amended
(successor in interest to Fruitport Community Schools 4" Class School District #22), of 305 E.
Pontaluna Road, Fruitport, Michigan 49414 (the “Landowner”), which is the owner of lands
described in Exhibit A (“Property”), now conveys and releases to the North Point Drain Drainage
District (“Drainage District”), of 141 E Apple Avenue, Muskegon, Michigan 49442, an easement
for purposes of establishment, construction, operation, maintenance and improvement of the Drain
over and across the Property (“Drainage Easement”), as described and depicted in the attached
Exhibif A (“Drainage Easement Area”).

This conveyance shall be deemed a sufficient conveyance to vest in the Drainage District
an easement over the Drainage Easement Area for the uses and purposes of drainage with such
rights of entry upon, passage over, storing of equipment and materials including excavated earth
as may be necessary or useful for the establishment, construction, operation, maintenance, and
improvement of the Drain.

Non-movable or permanent structures shall not be constructed by Landowner, its agents,
employees, or contractors within the specific limits of the Drainage Easement Area without the
prior written consent of the Drainage District, Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landowner shail
have the right to maintain the existing parking lot, soccer field, and a future fence within the Drain
Easement Area (“Encroachments™). The Encroachments are depicted in the attached Exhibit A.
Landowner shall not have the right to replace, improve, or increase the footprint of the
Encroachments without receiving prior written consent from the Drainage District and obtaining
all necessary local, state and federal permits. If an Encroachment is removed, partially removed,
or damaged due to the Drainage District’s construction activities on the Property, the Drainage
District shall be responsible for repair/replacement of said Encroachment. All other costs related
to maintenance, repair, and replacement of the Encroachments shall be the sole responsibility of
the Landowner. ’



This conveyance shali also be deemed sufficient to vest in the Drainage District an
easement over the Drainage Easement Area for the clearing and/or grading of the Drainage
Easement Area and the spreading andfor removal of spoils and excavated materials.

Landowner reserves the right to use the Drainage Easement Area for the purposes not
inconsistent with the Drainage District’s use of the Drainage Easement Area,

The Drainage Easement shall be binding upon Landowner and the Drainage District, their
heirs, assigns, successors in interest and successors in office and be deemed to run with the land

in perpetuity,
Exempt pursuant to: MCL 207.505(a) and MCL 207.526(a).

Fruitport Commuaity Schools, a
Michigan general powers school
district

Dated: WQQ?; \Z 2022 %m(%v\a_@___

its: 6‘&(@#1%%
STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF Mushemer, s
On this ‘g@\ day of 'C\T.._Q},. , 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and for

said County, personally appeared TJaswn Kewneld, Wf Fruitport
Community Schools, a Michigan general powers school Histrict, asMully authorized to execute all
documents necessary and related to the above conveyances, to me known to be the person

described in and who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be his/her
free act and deed.

CATHERINE A, SHAWL i o 0 Dol

Notary Public, Stete of Michigan s Notary Public
_ County O Ottawa State of [(N{gak County of
My Commission Expires 02:20-2024 ol .
Acting in the County of

Drafted By: When Recorded Return To:
Cole D. Hedrick (P81919) Brendz M. Moore
Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PLC Muskegon County Water Resources Commissioner
4151 Okemos Road 141 E Apple Avenue
Okemos, Michigan 48864 Muskegon, Michigan 49442
(517)381-0100 (231) 724-6219



PONTALUNA ROAD
NB9"23'45'W _ 1312.78'

Z| N. LINE SEC. 35
¥ .
‘é" NE COR./
:f'ﬁ SEC. 35
o TSN, R16W
50,0 /?I
A
R o
A S .00-'00 M
- 4 — 5-—2 o »
? \5’"‘3 siew
w7 A e A~
' f’ 4 L
S s
by {/,/ Zle £
o7 [ve JPod
g 7 uifn OO
B 3
; Z
A_t
EASEMENT AREA (TYP.)
426.4° {
0 570.0' N
S89°33'18"E  1296.40°
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION
The Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4, Section 35,
TJown 9 North, Range 16 West,
Fruitport Township, Muskegon County, Michigan.
EASEMENT DESCRIPTION
An Ecsement for Droinage Described as:
The West 50.00 feet of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeost 1/4,
Section 35, Town 9 North, Ronge 16 West,
Fruitport Township, Muskegon County, Michigan, Except the South
300.00 feet.
Also the South 50.00 the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4,
Section 35, Town 9 North, Range 16 West,
Fruitport Township, Muskegon County, Michigan, Except the West
300.00 feet and dlso Except the East 570.00 feet. 0 300 600

Horizonts]l Scale in Feet

l 21213 Mile Rd. NW
QE Watker, M1 43544
Ph: §16-301-7888
Wi LREML.com DATE: 5/12/2022 EXH I B IT A

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS

Koy L3, 2042 - TRSMm R \froiecis\20- 064 Rorth Foin! Drotn\LDExhldl — E5uT ANG QN TTLANE dwg, TPEFS:

PROJECT: 20-064




Quitclaim Deed

Grantor;
Name: Fruitport Community Schools
Street Address: 305 E. Pontaluna Road,
City/State/Zip:  Fruitport, Michigan 49414

Grantee:
Name: North Point Drain Drainage District
Agent: Muskegon County Water Resources Commissioner

Street Address: 141 E Apple Avenue
City/State/Zip: Muskegon, Michigan 49442

BY THIS QUITCLAIM, Fruitport Community Schools, a Michigan general powers school district
organized and operating under the provisions of the Revised School Code, MCL 380.1, et seq., as amended
(successor in interest to Fruitport Community Schools 4" Class School District #22), whose mailing
address is 305 E. Pontaluna Road, Fruitport, Michigan 49414 (“Grantor™), quitclaims to the North Point
Drain Drainage District, whose mailing address is 141 E Apple Avenue, Muskegon, Michigan 49442
(“Grantee”).

WITNESSETH that Grantor, for good and valuable consideration and for the sum of One Dollar ($1.00)
paid by the Grantee, does hereby remise, release, and quitclaim unto Grantee forever, all the right, title,
interest and claim, which the Grantor has in and to the parcel described and depicted in the attached
Exhibit A, consisting of approximately 2.07 acres (Part of Parcel No. 61-15-135-200-001 1-00).

IF THE REAL ESTATE GRANTED HEREIN IS UNPLATTED, the Grantor grants to the Grantee the
right to make zero divisions under Section 108 of the Land Division Act, Act No. 288 of the Public Acts
of 1967, as amended. This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a farm operation.
Generally accepted agricultural and management practices which may generate noise, dust, odors, and
other associated conditions may be used and are protected by the Michigan Right to Farm Act.

Subject to easements, restrictions and reservations of record, together with all and singular the tenements,
hereditaments and appurtenances thereto belonging or in anywise appertaining.

This transaction is exempt from real estate transfer tax pursvant to MCL 207.505(h)(i) and MCL
207.526(h)(i).

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, Grantor has caused this Quitclaim to be executed by the duly authorized
officer as of the day and year written below.

Page 1 o0f2



FRUITPORT COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
A Michigan general powers school district

Dated: SLLQD{ \8 ;-20'2-?- \tzerﬂ(:e*—"-ﬁl@

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
COUNTY OF) Aaad ) ss.
On this !gh" day of T‘toﬁ , 2022, before me, a Notary Public in and for said

County, personally appeared 3¢ cery gﬁe_,gg , MM‘ Fruitport Community
Schools, a Michigan general powers school district, as fully‘authorized to execute all documents necessary
and related to the above conveyances, to me known to be the person described in and who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same to be his/her free act and deed.

KATHERINE A. SHAWL oymm a/ zéw

Notary Public, State of Michigan . , Notary Public
County Of Ottawa State of , County of [\ N
My Commission Expires DZm-@:M My Commission EXpiI’CS.' ! 5! Ei; 29

Acting in the County of Acting in the County of
Drafted By: When Recorded Return To:
Cole D. Hedrick (P81919) Brenda M. Moore
Fahey Schultz Burzych Rhodes PLC Muskegon County Water Resources Commissioner
4151 Okemos Road 141 E Apple Avenue
Okemos, Michigan 48864 © Muskegon, Michigan 49442
(517) 381-0100 (231) 724-6219

Page 2 of 2



PONTALUNA ROAD

N89°23'45"W 1312.78’

N. LINE SEC. 35~ NE GOR. =
SEC. 35
TON, R16W
REMAINING
PARCEL
" A
e
g }:9) g =
o —
Lu AN
: |5 o
oo
8 ZloS
S 0w
S |2 00
Ay ¥-)
A NBS°33'18"W S
P.0.B. / 300.000 =
S00°04’20"E
300.00"
Peae [——N00°04'20"W
300.00°
S89°33'18"E  996.40"
S89°33'18"E—"
300.00°

0 30D 600

Horizontal Scale in Feet

SHEET 1 OF 2
Heoernar— EXHIBIT A

2121 3 Mile Rd, NW
Walker, Ml 49544
Ph: 616-301-7888
www.LREM|.com

ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS

cun 10, 2022 - 1:37pm H:\Projects\20-G64 North Point Drain\LD\Exhibit — ESMT AMD QUITCLAIM.dwg, AREF:



PARCEL SPLIT

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4, Section 35, Town 9 North, Range 16
West, Fruitport Township, Muskegon County, Michigan more precisely described as:
Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 35, thence N83°23'45"W along the
North line of said Section, 1312.78 feet; thence S00°04’20"E along the West line of
the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section, 1026.34 feet to the Point of
Beginning; thence continuing S00°04'20"E, 300.00 feet to the Southwest corner of the
Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section; thence $89°33'18”E along the
South line of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section, 300.00 feet:
thence N00°04'20"W, 300.00 feet; thence N89°33'18"W, 300.00 feet to the Point of
Beginning.

Contains: 90,000 S.F. (2.07 Acres)

REMAINING PARCEL

The Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4, Section 35, Town 9 North, Range 16 West,
Fruitport Township, Muskegon County, Michigan.

Except, Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 35, thence N89°23'45"w
along the North line of said Section, 1312.78 feet; thence S00°04’20"E along the West
fine of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section, 1026.34 feet to the
Point of Beginning; thence continuing S00°04'20"E, 300.00 feet to the Southwest corner
of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section: thence S89°33'18"E along
the South line of the Northeast 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section, 300.00
feet; thence NOO°04'20"W, 300.00 feet; thence NB89°33’18"W, 300.00 feet to the Point
of Beginning.

SHEET 2 OF 2
rorcrno | EXHIBIT A

: 2121 3 Mile Rd. NW
Walker, MI 49544
Ph: 616-301-7888
www.LREM|.com

ENGINEERS & SURVEYCRS

Jum 10, 2022 - 1:37pm Hi \Projects\20-064 Marth Point Deain\LINEwhitit — ESMT AND QUITCLAIM dwg, #RiFs:



Fruitport Charter Township
5865 Airline Road
Fruitport, MI 49415

(231) 865-3151 (phone) (231) 865-3118 (fax)

LAND DIVISION APPLICATION

The applicant must answer all questions and include all attachments or this form will be returned. Only property
owners, or their agents, may apply for a land division. State law allows up to 45 days (from receipt of completed
form) for Township to determine approval or denial. Consideration of the division will not begin until all of the
items have been submitted to the Township.

Approval of a division of land is required before it is sold, or leased for more than one year, when a new parcel is
less than 40 acres and not just a property line adjustment (Sec. 102 e & f).

Approval of a division is not a determination that the resulting parcels comply with other ordinances or regulations.

Bring or mail to: Assessor, Fruitport Charter Township.

Complete each of the following entries:

1.

Location of the parent parcel to be divided:
Parcel address; 3113 E. Pontaluna Rd
Parent Parcel Number: 61-15-135-200-0011-00

Legal Description of Parent Parcel: Attached

Property Owner Agent/Applicant (if other than Owner)
Fruitport Co mty Sc Brenda Moore
Name Name
305 E Pontaluna R Muskegon County Water Resources Commissioner
Address Company Name
Eruitport, M1 49415 141 E Apple Ave
City, State, Zip Address
(231) 865-4100 e Muskegon, ML, 49442
Phone City, State, Zip
ikennedy@fruitporischools.net 1nootebr@ co.muskegon.mi.us
Email Email
St ==
I Contact Person: Cole Hedrick Ph:_517-898-3710 Email:_chedrick@fsbrlaw.com
s
Provide proof of fee ownership of the land proposed to be divided.

Provide proof of all property taxes being current.
Lien/Interest:

a. s there a mortgage, land contract, or other lien/interest on this property? [ JYes [X] No
b.  If yes, have you been authorized to divide this land? [] Yes [] No

(attach proof of authorization)
¢ Any special assessment attached to the land? [] Yes [X] No

Passessing\appiication for division Rev. 8:12/22



For office use only

o | Prccl#6- 1S - \BS - 200 - OO\ - 0D Zoning R-|

Number of Splits Requested I Number of Splits Allowed
Date Application Received ¥ /] 7/ Preliminary Review  / /  Deadline  /  /

¢. Public access is provided to each new parcel by:
[ an existing road.
[ a new public road; Road Name
[ a new private road (if located within a PUD or PURD only)
Road Name
(X a recorded, pre-existing easement.

Attach, or write in this space, the legal description of the proposed new road or pre-
existing easement, or pre-existing shared driveway if applicable:
Recorded Easement attached

7. Legal Description of the proposed new parcel(s). Type here or attach text:
_Attached

8. The number of FUTURE DIVISIONS which might be allowed, but are not included in this application,
and for which you desire to reserve for division at some time in the future.
a.  The number of future divisions being transferred from the Parent parcel with this application to
another parcel(s): 0
b. Identify the other parcel(s) and future rights being transferred:

Make sure your deed includes both statements as required in Section 109(3) and (4) of the Act. If
a roadway agreement is required (PURD, PUD, existing easement), provide a copy of that
Agreement.

¢. List any shared ponds, drives, etc. which may pertain. Provide pertinent agreement.

9. Development Site Limits: Check each that represents a condition which exists on any part of the parent
parcel.

[] is in a DNR-designated critical sand dune area

[] is riparian or littoral (1t 1s a river or lake front parcel)

[ includes a wetland

7] includes a beach

(O is within a flood plain

(] includes slopes more than twenty five percent (a 1:4 pitch or 14° angle) or steeper
(] is on muck soils or soils know to have severe limitation for on-site sewage systems

P\assessing\application for division Rev. 81222

(=1



] is known or suspected to have an abandoned well, underground storage tank or contaminated soils.
< no limitations exist

10. Attachments: All attachments (A, B, C, D & E, ) MUST be included. Letter each attachment as shown
here.
a. Choose one of the following:
[ A survey, sealed by a professional surveyor, of proposed division(s) of
parent parcel.
A map/drawing of proposed division(s) of parent parcel,

The survey or map (scaled 1” = 100°) must include the following:

(1) current boundaries (as of March 31, 1997), and

(2) all previous divisions made after March 31, 1997 (indicate when made OR none),
and

(3) the proposed divisions(s), and

(4) dimensions of the proposed divisions, and

(5) existing and proposed road/easement rights-of-way, and

(6) easements for public utilities from each parcel to existing public utility facilities, and

(7) any existing improvements (buildings, wells, septic systems, driveways....OR none),
include setbacks from existing and created lot lines, and

(8) any of the features checked in question number 7, page 2 (Development Site Limits)

b. Indication of approval, or permit from County Road Commission, MDOT, or Zoning
Administrator for each proposed new road, easement or shared driveway.

c. A copy of any transferred division rights in the parent parcel.
d. Afeeof §75.00 (Check returned for non-sufficient funds may void application.)
€. Release from County Drain Commissioner (unless waived by zoning administrator).

IMPROYEMENTS: Describe any existing improvement (buildings, well, septic, etc.), which are on the
parent parcel, or indicate none (attach extra sheets if needed): The parent parcel includes the middle schagl building,

maintenance/bus storage facility, athletic fields including soccer, football, baseball and tennis courts as well as
parking lots and drives. The property is serviced by water, sanitary, electric and gas utilities. The proposed property

split does not contain any known improvements and consists of a 300° x 300’ woodlot, Access to the parcel split
will be via the easements shown on the attached Exhibit

P:\assessing\application for division Rev. 8/12:22



AFFIDAVIT and PERMISSION for municipal, county and state officials to enter the property for inspections:

[ hereby agree that the statements made above are true, and if found not to be true, this application and any
approval will be void.

Further, [ agree to comply with the condition and regulations provided with the parent parcel division.

Further, I agree to give permission for officials of the municipality, county, and the State of Michigan to enter the
property where this parcel division is proposed, for purposes of inspection to verify that the information of the
application is correct (at a time mutually agreed with the applicant).

Further, I understand this is only a parcel division, which conveys only certain rights under the applicable local
land division ordinance, the local zoning ordinance, and the State Land Division Act (formerly the Subdivision
Control Act P.A. 288 of 1967, as amended [particularly by P.A. 591 of 1996], MCL 560.101 et, seq.), and does not
include any representation or conveyance of rights in any other statute, building code, zoning ordinance, deed
restriction, or other property rights,

Further, I understand that all existing special assessments will remain with the parent parcel or may be paid in full
before the land division is approved. I also understand that taxes will not be prorated by the Treasurer’s office.

Further, I understand all property taxes must be paid current.

Finally, even if this division is approved, I understand zoning, local ordinances and State Acts change from time to
time, and if changed, the divisions made here must comply with the new requirements (apply for division approval
again) unless deeds, land contracts, leases or surveys representing the approved divisions are recorded with the

Register of Deeds or the division is built upon before the changes to the law are made.

ALL PROPERTY OWNERS MUST SIGN

Property Owner’s Signatureg"r a\(‘;‘“"-f% Date: 8_1_[;4 202

Property Owner’s Signature Date: __/ /

Property Owner’s Signature Date: _ /_/

For office use only:

Reviewers Action:

__\—Approved without conditions
Approved with conditions
Conditions:
Denied
Reason(s): .

[

- : — o
——— "E \
Signature ___\¢ P‘%\: \t‘—/»-%\ Date _<¢/ _D.ﬂ_f 2Z.

P:\assessing\application for division Rev. 8/12.22



Business and Finance Committee
Monday, September 12, 2022
11:30 a.m., Superintendent’s Office
Meeting Minutes

Attendance: Dave Hazekamp, Elroy Buckner, Kris Cole, Jason Kennedy, John Winskas, Jessica
Wiseman, and Mark Mesbergen

1. Board of Education/Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy Update
Jason gave an update on the proposed board policy language changes that were related to
the finance committee.

2. Update on Construction Projects
John gave an update on the construction projects that are happening this fall. Mark and
John gave an update on projects that are going to go out to bid in the near future with
work starting next year.

3. Approval without Conditions: School Land Division — Northpoint Drain
Jason gave an update on the Northpoint Drain. He shared the approval documentation
with the committee.

4. Prelim 2022 Fund Balances
Mark gave an update on how the audit is going and an estimated final fund balance if no
adjustments needed to be made. The audit will be presented at the next committee
meeting with an action item at the October board meeting.

5. Section 98c: Funds to Address Learning Loss
Jason gave an update on a new section within the State of Michigan’s budget. This
section is to help with the cost of addressing learning loss. The section is to be paid out
(if the school district applies for the application) based on a per student amount. Fruitport
will be applying for the grant.

Meeting adjourned at 12:19 p.m.
Respectfully submitted by Mark Mesbergen



Attachment: XII-1

Personnel Committee
Monday, September 12, 2022
5:00 p.m.

MEETING MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office

3255 E. Pontaluna Rd.
Fruitport, MI 49415

Attendance:
The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. and Dave Hazekamp, JB Meeuwenberg, and Jason Kennedy
were present.

1. Board of Education / Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy Update - The Committee discussed the
second reading of policies from the annual policy update that pertained to the Personnel
Committee.

2. Teacher Recommendations for Hire - The Committee reviewed the hiring process for the
kindergarten teaching position at Shettler Elementary. The recommendation for hiring will be
placed on the consent agenda for approval at the regular Board meeting.

3. School Psychologist Vacancy and Posting - The Committee discussed the need to consider
hiring a school psychologist through a third party vendor while the District continues to post a
vacancy and search for a qualified candidate for this position.

4. Bond Stipends and Construction Projects - The Committee discussed the continuation of a
bond stipend in the amount of $2,500 for John Winskas and Mark Mesbergen for the additional
time necessary to manage the District’s athletic bond projects. A recommendation will be placed

on the Board agenda for approval on September 19, 2022.

5. Other - The Committee reviewed items from the other Board Committee meetings that will be
discussed at the Regular Board Meeting on Monday, September 19, 2022.

6. Public Comment: None
7. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 5:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Jason Kennedy, Superintendent



AGENDA SECTION: Personnel

BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

To:

Board of Education Attachment #: XII-2

From: Jason Kennedy

Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:
Bond and Project Construction Management Stipends

Background Information:

The District has provided bond and construction management stipends to John Winskas and Mark Mesbergen
for responsibilities and time above their normally worked hours within their pay agreements to manage and
oversee the construction projects within the District. Again, time above the normally worked hours has been
necessary to complete the athletic construction projects this summer and fall. It is recommended that John
Winskas and Mark Mesbergen be provided with $2,500 stipends to compensate them for time above their
normally worked contractual hours to manage these projects.

Financial Impact:
$5,000

Recommended Action:
To approve bond and construction management stipends in the amount of $2,500 for John Winskas and
Mark Mesbergen, as discussed. The stipend will be paid through a non-elective 403b plan contribution.

Action Taken:
Vote: _ Buckner ___ Burgess ____Cole ____Franklin

____Hazekamp ___ Kelly ____Meeuwenberg




AGENDA SECTION: Personnel

BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

To:

Board of Education Attachment #: XI1-3

From: Mark Mesbergen

Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:
Fruitport Bus Drivers / Food Service Association Letter of Agreement

Background Information:

The Association’s contract states that in order to get paid for their sick time, the employee needs to have at
least 200 hours of sick hours. This language does not matter if an employee leaves FCS or retires into the
pension system. With discussion with the union leadership along with looking at the other Fruitport contracts,
this letter of agreement was created. It was agreed to have this contract to reflect the other contracts in terms
that if an employee retires into the pension system, then it does not matter how many sick hours an employee
and the employee will get paid for those sick hours.

Financial Impact:
$0 for Fruitport Community Schools.

Recommended Action:
To approve the Letter of Agreement with the Fruitport Bus Drivers / Food Service Association, as
discussed.

Action Taken:
Vote: __ Buckner ____Burgess ___Cole ___ Franklin

___ Hazekamp __ Kelly ____ Meeuwenberg




Letter of Agreement between Fruitport Bus Drivers/ Food
Service Association and the Fruitport Board of Education
effective August 6, 2022:

RE: Article 10(B)6 - Retirement/Termination of
Employment

Current Language:

With 14 calendar day written notice retirement/termination of
employment with at least 200 accumulated paid sick leave hours
and at least five (5) years of continuous employment with the
district, all accumulated paid sick leave hours shall be paid to
the employee at the rate of 50% of the employee s basic hourly
rate.

The above-named parties hereby agree to the following:
1. Amend Article 10(B)6 to the following:

With 14 calendar day written notice termination of
employment with at least 200 accumulated paid sick
leave hours and at least five (5) years of continuous
employment with the district, all accumulated paid sick
leave hours shall be paid to the employee at the rate of
50% of the employee s basic hourly rate.

With 14 calendar day written notice of an employee
retiring into the Michigan Pension System, all
accumulated paid sick leave hours shall be paid to the
employee at the rate of 50% of the employee s basic
hourly rate.

2. All other sections of the Fruitport Bus Drivers/Food
Service Association’s contract are unchanged.

wmaww7. %f,wma/ %{a

—/0) d T
Fruitport Bus Drivers/ Food Service %’1 0 ) 27~
Association Date




Attachment: XIlI-1

Student Affairs Committee
Monday, September 12, 2022
5:30 p.m.

MEETING MINUTES

Meeting Location:
Fruitport Community Schools Central Office

3255 E. Pontaluna Rd.
Fruitport, MI 49415

Attendance:

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. with Tim Burgess, Susan Franklin, Dave
Hazekamp, Monte Kelly, and Jason Kennedy present. Student 091922-01, along with the
student’s mother, were present during the reinstatement petition hearing portion of the meeting.

1. Student Reinstatement Hearing and Recommendation - The Committee reviewed
information submitted by Student 091922-01 and their mother as it pertained to the
student’s reinstatement hearing. Information included:

Ten (10) paragraph reflection letter from the student

Letter of apology to the Board and District from the student

Three (3) letters of recommendation for reinstatement

Log of 40 hours of community service conducted through the court and with
Fruitport Township

Supplemental order of disposition from Judge Gregory Pittman indicating that
probation had been completed, the petition dismissed, and the case closed
Summary report and assessment from Family Court identifying the student as a
low risk

Evaluation from Health West

Student grades and academic progress in the Muskegon County Virtual Academy
Completed MDE petition for reinstatement from the parent

It is the recommendation of the Student Affairs Committee to the Board of Education to
grant an unconditional reinstatement of Student 091922-01, effective September 26,

2022.



Attachment: XIlI-1

2. Board of Education / Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy Update - The Committee
discussed the Thrun Law Firm Annual Policy Update as it pertained to the Student
Affairs Committee.

3. Section 98b: School Goal Requirements - The Committee discussed the goal reporting
requirements for the 2022-2023 school year, including the goals for each building. The
goals have been posted to the District’s transparency page, as required. Goal reporting
will take place mid-year and end of year with the Board.

4. Section 98c: Funds to Address Learning Loss - The Committee discussed Section 98¢
and the application requirements to receive State funds to address learning loss.

5. Review of Publicly Released Grade 3-8 M-STEP Data - The Committee reviewed
grade 3-8 M-STEP data from the state assessment for the 2021-2022 school year. This
data was just publicly released.

6. COVID-19 Protocols and Parent Illness Guide - The Committee discussed the need to
continue to update its Safe Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Service
Plan, as the District has accepted ESSER funds. The District has posted this information

to its website for parents and students.

7. Other - The Committee reviewed items from the other Board Committee meetings that
will be discussed at the Regular Board Meeting on Monday, September 19, 2022.

8. Public Comment: None
9. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 6:28 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Jason Kennedy, Superintendent



AGENDA SECTION: Student Affairs

BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

To:

Board of Education Attachment #: XI11-2

From: Jason Kennedy

Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:
Resolution: Petition for Student Reinstatement (Student 091922-01)

Background Information:

The Board of Education permanently expelled Student 091922-01 on January 6, 2022. The District received
a petition for reinstatement from the student and their mother on August 22, 2022. The Student Affairs
Committee held a reinstatement hearing with the student on September 12, 2022. The committee reviewed
the conditions outlined within the expulsion resolution from January 6, 2022, and the following documents:
Ten (10) paragraph reflection letter from the student, a letter of apology to the Board and District from the
student, three (3) letters of recommendation for reinstatement, a log of 40 hours of community service
conducted through the court and with Fruitport Township, a supplemental order of disposition from Judge
Gregory Pittman indicating that probation had been completed, the petition dismissed, and the case closed, a
summary report and assessment from Family Court identifying the student as a low risk, an evaluation from
Health West, and a completed MDE petition for reinstatement from the parent. It is the recommendation of
the Student Affairs Committee to grant an unconditional reinstatement of Student 091922-01, effective
September 26, 2022.

Financial Impact:
None

Recommended Action:
To approve the Student Affairs Committee recommendation, and the Board Resolution on student petition
for reinstatement for Student 091922-01, effective September 26, 2022, as discussed.

Action Taken:
Vote: _ Buckner ___ Burgess ____Cole ____Franklin

____ Hazekamp ___ Kelly ____Meeuwenberg




Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
5200 Student Conduct and Discipline
5206-F-17 Board Resolution: Reinstatement of an Expelled Student

Fruitport Community Schools
BOARD RESOLUTION ON REINSTATEMENT PETITION

A regular meeting of the Board of Education (the “Board”) was held in the Boardroom,
within the boundaries of the District, on the 19th day of September, 2022, at 7:00 o’clock
in the p.m. (the “Meeting”).

The meeting was called to order by , President

Present: Members
Absent: Members

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member
and supported by Member :

WHEREAS:

1. On January 6, 2022, the Board permanently expelled a student whose identity is
known to the Board (the “Student”) for a violation of the Student Code of Conduct and as
authorized by the Revised School Code.

2. On August 22, 2022, pursuant to the Revised School Code and Board policy, the
District received a petition for the Student’s reinstatement.

3. Pursuant to Board policy, the Student Affairs Committee of the Board of Education
was appointed to review the reinstatement petition (the “Committee”).

4. The Committee considered the reinstatement petition and information provided to
it by the Student’s parents/guardians and by the Superintendent.

5. Following its review, the Committee made a recommendation to the Board. The
Committee’s recommendation was based on consideration of each of the seven factors
identified in Revised School Code Sections 1311(6)(e) and 1311a(5)(e).

6. The Board thoroughly reviewed and deliberated upon the Committee’'s
recommendation and independently reviewed and deliberated upon all of the information
provided to the Committee and to the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. Based upon consideration of the seven factors identified in Revised School Code
Section 1311(6)(e), the Student’s petition for reinstatement is unconditionally granted and
the Student may return to school on or after September 26, 2022.

o2022 [T THRUN Page 1 of 2

Law FIrRM, P, C.
POLICY SERVICE



5206-F-17 Board Resolution: Reinstatement of an Expelled Student

2. Consistent with Revised School Code Sections 11a and 1311(1), the Board finds
that the interests of the District are served by this resolution.

3. The administration is directed and authorized to implement all terms of this
resolution and is delegated all necessary authority to do so.

4. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with provisions of
this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Ayes: Members
Nays: Members
Resolution declared adopted.

The undersigned, duly qualified and acting Secretary to the Board of Education of
Fruitport Community Schools, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and
complete copy of a resolution adopted by said Board at the Meeting, the original of which
is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the meeting
was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267,
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Steve Kelly, Board Secretary

o2022 [T THRUN Page 2 of 2

Law FIrRM, P, C.
FOLICY SERVICE



AGENDA SECTION: Student Affairs

BOARD ACTION REQUEST FORM

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022

To:

Board of Education Attachment #: XI111-3

From: Jason Kennedy

Subject to be Discussed and Policy Reference:
Overnight Trip Request: 8" Grade Trip to Washington, DC

Background Information:

8" grade students electing to attend the trip will visit various monuments, memorials, museums, and places
of interest in and around Washington, DC. The trip will extend the US history learning targets, as well as
foster relationships amongst students and staff. Students will experience hands on learning, while learning
about the branches of government, the founding fathers and documents, among other content. The trip will
include air transportation and three (3) nights hotel lodging. Overnight bussing is no longer an option due to
bus driver shortages. Students will leave on April 27, 2023 and will return on April 30, 2023. A day by day
itinerary has been provided in the packet.

Financial Impact:

The cost of the trip, including airfare and hotel accommodations is $1,359. The cost of the trip is to be
covered by students with multiple scholarship and fundraising opportunities planned. Students signing up
within 48 hours of the parent meeting will receive $100 off the price of the trip.

Recommended Action:
To approve the overnight trip request by Tammy Ruch for 81" grade students to Washington, DC, as
discussed.

Action Taken:
Vote: __ Buckner ____Burgess ___Cole ___ Franklin

___ Hazekamp __ Kelly ____ Meeuwenberg




Fruitport Community Schools
Overnight Field Trip Request

The details for this overnight trip are as follows:

Background Information

Group Requesting Permission: 8th Grade

Staff Person(s) in Charge: Tammy Ruch

Start of Trip Date 4/27/2023

End of Trip Date 4/30/2023

Funding Sources: WorldStrides provides income based scholarships, a personal fundraising link, and
extended payment plans. FMS will offer two school fundraisers. WorldStrides will offer 20$100
scholarships. Students will receive a $100 discount if they sign up within 48 hours of the trip meeting.
Are all students Participating? No

Chaperone/Student Ratio: 1:15

Destination information

Destination: Washington DC

Destination Information: Various monuments, memorials, and museums in and around Washington DC.
Purpose of Trip: This trip will extend the US History learning targets as well as foster relationships
amongst students and between students and staff. During the trip, students will learn valuable
information from experienced and knowledgeable tour guides. They will gain hands on experience
learning about the branches of government, the founding fathers and documents, and the FBI. Students
will also visit museums, monuments, and memorials that honor people who served our country as well
as groups that have historically been marginalized.

Lodaing Inf i
Lodging Accommodations: Hotel (3 nights)

Ledging information: Provided by WorldStrides approximately one month prior to departure.

Transportation Arrangements: Leave by airplane on Thursday morning of April 27, 2023 and return

Sunday evening on April 30, 2023. Sample' itinerary attached. Final itinerary provided by WorldStrides .
one month prior to departure. 0\’&\’\‘“3 h‘t bo ggi “‘9 1S Yo (anjg r o o‘)‘Ho n due_
+o bus driver S\nor-ko\j és.

Emergency Information

Emergency Contact: Tammy Ruch 616-402-0952

Emergency Forms Complete? No

Parent Notification is Complete and Attached to this Form? No

M“ 9/9/ 2z

Principal L/S(gn wtvre, Oacte,




YOUR DAY-BY-DAY ADVENTURE

Arrive in Washington, D.C.

Arlington National Cemetery America’s most famous military cemetery:
Changing of the Guard, Tomb of the Unknown Soldier, Kennedy
Gravesites

US Marine Corp War Memaorial A tribute to all U.S. Marines based on
the famous WWII photo by Joe Rosenthal

Dinner

9/11 Pantagon Memaorial Honors the 184 victims of the 9/11 attack at the
Pentagon

Hote! check-in

Breakfast
Alexandria One of America's oldest and mosl historic cities

Mount Vernon George Washington's home, plantation, and Education
Center, which showcases life during colonial times, 18™%-century
treasures, and our first president as a farmer and businessman

Lunch

Smithsonian Institution The world's largest museum complex: National
Air and Space Museum, National Museum of Natural History,
Smithsonian American Art Museum / National Portrait Gallery, National
Museum of American History, National Museum of Aftican American
History and Culture (by appaointment)

Dinner

Jefferson Memorial Dedicated 1o our third president and author of the
Declaration of Independence

FDR Memorial In remembrance of former President Franklin Delano
Roosevelt

MLK Memorial Honors the famous civil rights activist, Martin Luther King,
Jr.

Breakfast

Ford’s Theatre and Petersen House {by appointment) Where President
Lincoln was shot and |ater died on that fateful day

DEPART DATE: 04/27/2023
RETURN DATE: 04/30/2023

TRIP PRICE:
$1359 Grand Rapid airport
$1380 Detroit airport

White House (picture stop) Home of the U.S. president

Natlonal Archives (by appointment) Home of the original Censtitution, Bill
of Rights, and Declaration of independence

Lunch

Capitol Hiti Grounds Tour (by appointment) Capitol Visitor Center:
Supreme Court, Library of Congress

Dinner

Lineoln Memorial In remembrance of former President Abraham Lincoln
and the great nation he fought to preserve during the Civil War

Korean War Veterans Memorial Tribute to the men and women who
defended South Korea in the Korean War

Vietnam Veterans Memorial Dedicated to the more than 58,000 men and
women killed or missing in Vietnam

Breakfast and hotel chack-out

Washington Monument (picture stop) The world's taliest stone
menument, which henors our nation's first president

World War Il Memorial Honors the 16 million who served — and 400,000
who died — in the U.S. Armed Forces during WWIl, and all who supported
the war effort from home

Holocaust Museum (by appeointment) The museum provides the
documentation, study, and interpretation of Holocaust history

Lunch

Tour of the National Cathedrai (by appointment)
Embassy Row Houses more than 170 foreign embassies
National Zoo Home to several giant pandas and more!
Dinner

Depart Washington, B.C., for home

*all appeintments subject to availability

The above represents a sample itinerary. Changes or substilulions may be made dapending on your

travel dalas, amival and departura limes, nalional holidays. and events bayond WerldStrides” control st
the discretion of WoridStrides as it deems nacessary or dasirable

AN ALL- ROUND TRIP EI] ADMISSIONS & FEES FOR HOTEL EXPERTLY TRAINED
TRANSPORTATION SCHEDULED ACTIVITIES ACCOMMODATIONS COURSE LEADERS
INCLUSIVE DAY 24-HOUR TRANSPORTATION 7O /
THREE MEALS -
EXPERIENCE (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED) EMERGENCY SUPPORT ) FROM ALL ACTIVITIES ACADEMIC CREDIT



These are some of the options WorldStrides offers to help travelers:

o FLAG Scholarship- This is first come first serve, but we still have funds available,
and any parent interested in applying should call us soon. This is a partial scholarship
but can really help to put a dent in the cost and anyone with an adjusted gross income
of less than $85,000 is encouraged to apply.

o Extended Payment Plan- Everyone is eligible for this offer and it allows parents to
continue making payments even after the trip. If you speak to parents who are
interested in either program, please ask them to call customer service at
1-800-468-5899 and our representatives would be happy to help them.

o Gift of Education- This is a great way for kids to raise money especially around the
holidays. Parents can find out more by visiting https:/fundraising,wordstrides.com/ ,
where they will have the option to create an E-card, Facebook link or letter asking
friends and family to help by giving the gift of education.

¢ [f parents have any questions or need specific details on their accounts, please have
them contact Customer Service at 1-800-468-5899. I'm here for you if you have any
guestions.



Learning beyond classroom walls
Washington DC Trip Outcomes

Washington, D.C,, is a city steeped in culture and history, yet alive with
innovation and change. Experience the many sides of this great city
during an exciting trip that blends education, adventure, and fun!

History

See lessons learned in the classroom come to life!

* Relive our nation’s past tragedies and triumphs at the Vietnam, Korean, and WWII
memorials.

» Visit the Tomb of the Unknowns at Arlington National Cemetery and remember the
sacrifices of our fallen soldiers.

+ Leave the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum with a newfound respect for one
of history’s most tragic events.

Government
Experience our nation’s government in action!

* Tour the grounds of Capitol Hill, where lawmakers and representatives of Congress
meet.

+ Visit the home of some of our nation’s most treasured documents at the National
Archives.

» Visit the Supreme Court to see where our Constitution is interpreted and rulings are
made.

Leadership

Walk in the footsteps of our nation’s greatest leaders!
* Stand in the spot where Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., delivered his “I Have a Dream”
speech, and visit the new memorial dedicated to him.

+ Pay tribute to the greatest leaders of our country at the Lincoln, Jefferson, and FDR
memorials,

Adventure

Don’t just visit D.C. — experience it!

* Flash a big smile as you and your friends pose for pictures in front of the White House.
« Check out pandas, elephants, and lions at the 163-acre National Zoo, home to more
than 3,500 animals.

« See dinosaurs, the Hope Diamond, the original Wright 1903 Flyer, and the Apollo 11
command module at the Smithsonian museums.



Student Rules and Regulations
Personal Behavior Contract

The WorldStrides tour you have elected to attend offers many unique opportunities and experiences. Beyond the educational benefits, the tour offers
opportunities to form new friendships and to meet the challenges of independence.

We at WorldStrides promote a tour atmosphere where chaperones and students support one another with genuine respect. As a student participant,
it is your responsibility to help make the four a positive and enjoyable experience for yoursef, fellow students, and chaperones. Al participants are
expected to demonsirate high standards of conduct and fo accept personal responsibifity and consequences for their actions. You are expected fo
exhibit honesty, courteousness and consideration toward others. This includes those in your group, as well as anyone else with whom you may
come in contact, such as Motorcoach Drivers, guides and restaurant and hotel staff.

Our goal at WorldStrides is to make this trip an educational, safe, and enjoyable experience for everyone. We require your cooperation and
commitment o the following behavior standards to help us meet this goal.

We expect the student/participant to obey the following rules of behavior:

« The student is to follow the directions and the rules and regulations established by the chaperones both prior to and during
the four,

* The student shall not be involved in any way with smoking, alcohol, illegal drugs, vandalism, theft, or any other type of
behavior that is judged by the chaperones to be detrimental to the health, well-being, safety, or reputation of him/herself or
anyone else in the group including the chaperones or WorldStrides.

+% The student shall comply with all rules and regulations of the various governmental and vendor agencies (such as airlines,
hotels, motorcoach companies, elc.).

* The student shall remain with the group at all times unless, and only if and when, the chaperones specifically allow you free
time.

<+ The student shall follow the directions of the Program Leader, chaperones, and WorldStrides staff.

*» The use of hote! facilities carries with it the responsibility of leaving them in the same conditions in which they were found.
The student is responsible for any damage.

<+ Quiet hours at the hotel will be observed from 10:00 p.m. until 6:00 a.m. At 10:30 p.m. students must be in their own rooms.
Sludents must remain quietly in their rooms until awakened by chaperones.

*» The student may never leave the hotel unless accompanied by a chaperone,
++ The student must sleep in his/her assigned hotel room each night.
< Good common sense, respect and consideration for others and their property should be practiced daily.

If the student should violate any of these rules, he/she may be sent home at the sole discretion of the chaperones. In such cases, the
parent/guardian will be contacted and the student sent home at the parent's expense.

Student Contract

I'have read, and [ understand the behavior rules and regulations of WorldStrides. | agree to comply with all of these rules and regulations.
Student signature Date

Parent Contract

I have read, and | understand and support the rules and regulations of the WorldStrides tour. | represent that my child or ward has read the rules and

regulations and has agreed to comply with all of them. It is understood that the signature on this behavior contract of one parent or quardian implies
the consent of the other.

Parent signature Date




	Cover-Reg
	Agenda - September 19, 2022
	Muskegon Area ISD_Fruitport Community Schools_2021-22_MiMTSS_Recognition_Letter (1)
	School Goals Requirements in Section 98b
	2022-2023 Sec. 98b Goal Progress Report Template (2)
	COVID Isolation and Quarantine Protocols - Students and Staff (as of 8_30_22) (2) (1)
	Parent Illness Guide - August 2022 (4) (1)
	Public Act 144 of 2022 Section 98c Learning Loss (1)
	Board Update - September 1, 2022; MSTEP Scores
	August 22 - Board Bill List
	BOARD REPORT (2)

	August 22 Board Report
	Sheet1

	Sept CP Board
	2017

	Sept 2021 CP Board
	2021

	August 22 Internal Report
	Summary

	August 22 Credit Card and Utilities Detail
	Sheet2

	August 22 Transfers
	August Transfers_09_14_2022-12_

	Personnel Report - September 19, 2022
	Adrienne Hubbard Recommendation letter.docx
	A Hubbard resume
	Recommendation for Hire - Tracey Jensen
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ResumeTraceyJensen
	Letter of Interest Student Life Advocate
	Student Life Advocate _ Advisor
	Recommendation for Hire - Vandenberg
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	ResumeAmandaVandenBerg (1)
	Amanda P. VandenBerg
	4951 Dorchester Drive
	Norton Shores, MI 49441
	Cell: (231) 343-5759
	Email: vandenberg_amanda@yahoo.com
	Objective
	Experienced teacher of 9 years with strong organizational and communication skills with a high degree of enthusiasm seeking to further my career in elementary education that enables me to continue to create, design, and implement differentiated instru...
	Education & Honors
	Baker College (231)777-5200
	1903 Marquette Avenue Spring 2007 to June 2013
	Muskegon, MI 49442 GPA- 3.56 on 4.0 scale
	Bachelor of Science Elementary Education RX, ZA
	Social Studies Major Early Childhood Education
	Dean’s List (2008- 2011)
	President’s List (2011-2013)
	Western Michigan Univeristy (269)387-1000
	1903 Western Michigan Avenue Summer 2017 to December 2019
	Kalamazoo, MI 49008 GPA-3.85
	Masters of Literacy Studies BR
	Reading Specialist Endorsement- pending test
	Certification
	Passed MTTC tests: Basic, Elementary, Early Childhood Education, and Social Studies
	Passed PRAXIS tests: Basic Skills: Reading, Writing, and Math
	Provisional Certification as of June 2013
	Professional Certification as of January 2018
	Reading Specialist MTTC test: Scheduled for Summer of 2022
	Education Work Experiences
	August of 2019 to Present   Muskegon Public Schools
	Muskegon, MI
	1st Grade Teacher
	● Taught 6 and 7 year olds
	● Engaged in and attended several trainings including: using technology in the classroom, curriculum trainings (including SFA and EDM), Kagan, Differentiated Instruction, Highly Effective Small Group Instruction, Discipline Procedures
	August of 2018 to May 2019   Grand Rapids Public Schools
	Grand Rapids, MI
	GSRP Teacher
	● Taught 4 and 5 year olds
	● Attended several trainings including: CPI, Teaching Early Numbers, PBIS, SEEDS
	● Worked on social skills, developmental skills, large-motor skills, and small-motor skills.
	August of 2014 to August 2018   White Lake Community Ed. Whitehall, MI
	GSRP Teacher
	● Taught 4 and 5 year olds
	● Attended several trainings including: CPI, Teaching Early Numbers, PBIS, SEEDS
	● Worked on social skills, developmental skills, large-motor skills, and small-motor skills.
	September of 2013 to June 2014  Mona Shores Community Education Muskegon, MI
	Preschool Teacher
	● Taught 3 year old preschool.
	● Introduced shapes, colors, Zoophonics, and numbers.
	● Attended Zoophonics training.
	Education Experiences
	240+ hours in Urban and Suburban Areas including:
	Student Teaching at Ravenna Elementary
	Grade: 1st and 3rd
	● 100+ hours of observation before student teaching
	o Created unit and instructed four lessons from unit.
	● 25 weeks of Student Teaching
	● 10+ weeks of Full Responsibility- Planned, created, and instructed all curriculum
	● Attended Staff meetings monthly and parent teacher conferences, Diddles and MAPS Course on Testing, technology training for iPad use in the classroom
	● Collaborated and developed procedures and student consequences cooperatively with teacher
	● Walden Green Montessori School
	o Observed student learning, behaviors, and procedures
	● Bluffton Elementary: Kindergarten
	o Conducted Circle time, sing songs, abc’s
	o Read books
	● Shettler Elementary: 4th Grade
	o Observed classroom management techniques
	o Assisted students during independent work times
	● Jeffers Elementary: 1st Grade and Resource Room
	o Coordinated sight word extra support
	o Assisted with Math extra support
	o Supported Reading lessons
	o Tested Reading fluency
	● Kent City Migrant Head Start (Telamon): Preschool
	o Tutored ABCs using Zoophonics
	o Reviewed shapes in Spanish and English
	o Aided with recess duty
	● McLaughlin: Kindergarten-1 Special Ed.
	o Tutored students individually on writhing letters, shapes, and colors in English and Spanish
	● Orchard View Alternative Ed.: 10th, 11th, and 12th Science and Social Studies
	o Guided students through Science worksheets and Social Studies worksheets
	o Elaborated Science and Social Studies concepts
	● Whitehall Elementary: 3rd Grade
	o Collaborated students in cooperative learning groups
	o Tutored individually with students that need extra help in math
	Full work history available upon request.
	References
	Mr. Luis Gomez   Ms. Sandy Ebright
	Assistant Principle and Special    1st Grade Teacher
	Education Director   Marquette Elementary
	Marquette Elementary   480 Bennett Street
	480 Bennett Street   Muskegon, MI 49442
	Muskegon, MI 49442   (989)763-0350
	(616)239-5932   sandye137@gmail.com
	Av0049@gmail.com
	Ms. Kelly Dye   Mrs. Deanna Belasco
	School Social Worker LMSW   Classroom Associate
	Reeths-Puffer Elementary   Preschool
	874 E. Giles Road   2885 Hyde Park Rd.
	North Muskegon, MI 49445   Muskegon, MI 49445
	(231)855-0210   (231)740-2776
	dyek@reeths-puffer.org
	Mrs. Stacie Bowden
	Middle School Special Education Teacher
	Caledonia Public Schools
	9757 Duncan Lake Avenue SE
	Caledonia, MI 49316
	(231)903-7164
	schulstac@gmail.com

	ResumeJanelleVervoort
	Resignation Email - Christina Dillon - 082322
	Letter of Resignation - Patricia Stasiak
	Minutes of Special Board Meeting_ August 24, 2022
	5206-F-9 Board Resolution- Physical Assault against Student - 081522 - 630 pm
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5200 Student Conduct and Discipline
	5206-F-9 Board Resolution: Physical Assault against Student



	BAR - Thrun Law Policy Update
	None

	Thrun Law Policy Update Summary - August 2022
	Thrun_Board_Policy_July_2022_Marked_Changes_-_SD_0
	Thrun Board Policy July 2022 Marked Changes - SD
	01-Board Policy-Table of Contents-SD (MARKED)
	02-Policy Checklist-SD (MARKED)
	2401 Board Member Elections-SD (MARKED)
	2405 Board Officers-SD (MARKED)
	2406 Board Officers' Duties-SD (MARKED)
	2501 Meetings-SD (MARKED)
	2501A Electronic Board of Education Meetings (MARKED)
	2501A-F-1 Electronic Board Meeting Checklist (MARKED)
	Series 2000: Bylaws
	2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
	2501A-F-1 Electronic Board Meeting Checklist



	2501A-F-2 Advance Notice of Remote Participation (MARKED)
	Series 2000: Bylaws
	2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
	2501A-F-2 Advance Notice of Remote Participation and Remote Attendance for Individual Board Member - Script



	2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meeting Notice (MARKED)
	Series 2000: Bylaws
	2500 Board Meetings and Open Meetings Act Compliance
	2501A-F-3 Electronic Board Meeting Notice



	3105 Visitors and Volunteers (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3100 General Operations
	3105 Visitors and Volunteers



	3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3100 General Operations
	3106-F Booster Clubs, PTOs, and Other Support Groups



	3109 Curricular Animals (MARKED)
	3118 Title IX Sexual Harassment (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operation, Finance, and Property
	3100 General Operations
	3118 Title IX Sexual Harassment



	3301 Purchasing and Procurement-SD (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3301 Purchasing and Procurement



	3301A Purchasing and Procurement with Federal Funds (NEW)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3301A Purchasing and Procurement with Federal Funds



	3302 Acquisition of Real Property (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3302 Acquisition of Real Property



	3303 Gifts and Donations (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3303 Gifts and Donations



	3303-F Gifts and Donations Form (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3303-F Gifts and Donations Form



	3304 Use of District Property (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3304 Use of District Property



	3305 Sale or Lease of District Property (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3305 Sale or Lease of District Property



	3306 Construction Bidding (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3306 Construction Bidding



	3307 Construction Administration (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3307 Construction Administration



	3308 Distribution of Printed Material and Advertising in School (MARKED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3300 Facilities, Real, and Personal Property
	3308 Distribution of Printed Material and Advertising in School



	3409 Face Mask Requirements (REMOVED)
	Series 3000: Operations, Finance, and Property
	3400 School Safety and Security
	3409 Intentionally Left Blank Face Mask Requirement
	[Optional] [Note: If the Board elects not to adopt this Policy, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering of subsequent polici...
	Pursuant to the [insert official name of Health Department] Order dated [____] (“Order”), the District must ensure that face masks are consistently and properly worn over the nose and mouth as outlined below. This Policy may be implemented and enforce...
	Face Mask Use
	All students in grades [____] through [____] must wear a face mask when indoors at a District building or structure, regardless of the student’s vaccination status.
	All persons providing service to any student in grades [____] through [____] and all persons providing service to students identified as medically fragile, regardless of age, must wear a face mask when indoors at a District building or structure, rega...
	Posting and Distribution
	The Superintendent or designee is directed to post the Order and maintain the posting of the Order at the entrance to all District buildings. The Superintendent or designee is directed to distribute the Order to all District employees and contractors ...
	Exemptions from Face Mask Requirement
	A face mask is not required under this Policy in the following circumstances:
	[Insert exemptions from the local health department Order.]



	4101 Non-Discrimination (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4101 Non-Discrimination



	4102 Anti-Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4102 Anti-Harassment, Including Sexual Harassment



	4103 Whistleblowers Protection (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4103 Whistleblowers’ Protection



	4105 Workplace Accommodations for Employees and Applicants with Disabilities (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4105 Workplace Accommodations for Employees and Applicants with Disabilities



	4108 Union Activity and Representation (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4108 Union Activity and Representation



	4109 Break Time for Nursing Mothers (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4109 Break Time for Nursing Mothers



	4111 Professional Development (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4100 Employee Rights and Responsibilities
	4111 Professional Development



	4201 Employee Ethics and Standards-SD (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4201 Employee Ethics and Standards



	4201-AG Employee Ethics and Standards Time and Effort Reporting (NEW)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4201-AG Employee Ethics and Standards – Time and Effort Reporting



	4202 Childrens Protective Services (CPS) Reporting and Student Safety and Welfare (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4202 Children’s Protective Services (CPS) Reporting and Student Safety and Welfare



	4205 Hiring and Background Checks (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4205 Hiring and Background Checks



	4210 Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace; Tobacco Product Restrictions (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4210 Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace; Tobacco Product Restrictions



	4213 Anti-Nepotism (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4213 Anti-Nepotism



	4217 Social Media (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4217 Social Media



	4218 Employee Dress and Appearance (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4218 Employee Dress and Appearance



	4220 Use or Disposal of District Property (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4220 Use or Disposal of District Property



	4222 Unauthorized Work Stoppage and Strikes (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4222 Unauthorized Work Stoppage and Strikes



	4226 Temporary COVID-19 Vaccination, Testing, and Face Covering (REMOVED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4200 Employee Conduct and Ethics
	4226 Intentionally Left Blank Temporary COVID-19 Vaccination, Testing, and Face Covering
	[Required for Districts with at least 100 employees / Optional for Districts with less than 100 employees] [Note: If the Board elects not to adopt this Policy, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after ...
	On November 5, 2021, the U.S. Department of Labor’s Occupational Safety and Health Administration published Emergency Temporary Standards on employee vaccination, testing, and face coverings (“ETS”).
	Policy Duration
	This Policy will become effective immediately when the Michigan Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“MIOSHA”) issues rules that require compliance with the ETS. This Policy will remain in effect for the duration of those rules. If this Poli...
	Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Policy, the Superintendent may suspend or revise this Policy (in whole or in part) if, following consultation with the District’s legal counsel, the Superintendent determines that legal authority requir...
	Definitions
	The definitions in this Section apply only to this Policy.
	“Employee” means a person employed by the Board, except a person:
	Who does not report to work where other people, such as co-workers, are present,
	While working from home, or
	Who works exclusively outdoors.
	“Employee” does not include self-employed independent contractors or employees of third parties who provide services to the District.
	“Acceptable Proof of Vaccination Status” means any of the following:
	The employee’s record of COVID-19 immunization from a health care provider or pharmacy.
	A copy of the employee’s:
	COVID-19 vaccination record card,
	Medical records documenting COVID-19 vaccination,
	COVID-19 immunization records from a public health, state, or tribal immunization information system, or
	Other official documentation that contains the type of COVID-19 vaccine, administration date(s), and the name of the health care professional(s) or clinic(s) that administered the vaccine(s).
	If an employee is unable to provide any document listed in (a)-(b), a signed and dated statement by the employee:
	Attesting that the employee is fully or partially vaccinated,
	Attesting that the employee lost or is otherwise unable to provide any document listed in (a)-(b),
	Including the following language: “I declare (or certify, verify, or state) that this statement about my vaccination status is true and accurate. I understand that knowingly providing false information regarding my vaccination status on this form may ...
	Identifying, to the best of the employee’s recollection, the type of vaccine received by the employee, administration date(s), and the name of the health care professional(s) or clinic(s) that administered the vaccine(s).
	“COVID-19” means the disease caused by SARS-CoV-2 (severe acute respiratory coronavirus 2).
	“COVID-19 test” means a test that is:
	Cleared, approved, or authorized, including in an emergency use authorization, by the FDA to detect current infection with the SARS-CoV-2 virus (e.g., a viral test),
	Administered in accordance with the authorized instructions, and
	Not both self-administered and self-read unless observed by the Superintendent or designee or an authorized telehealth proctor.
	“Face covering” means a covering that meets all of the following requirements:
	Completely covers the employee’s nose and mouth.
	Is made with at least 2 layers of breathable fabric that is tightly woven. If gaiters are worn, they must have 2 layers of fabric or be folded to make 2 layers.
	Is secured to the head with ties, ear loops, or elastic bands that go behind the head.
	Fits snugly over the nose, mouth, and chin with no large gaps on the outside of the face.
	Is a solid piece of material without slits, exhalation valves, visible holes, punctures, or other openings.
	A “face covering” also includes a covering with a clear plastic panel that, despite the non-fabric material, otherwise meets the above requirements and which may be used to facilitate communication with people who are deaf or hard-of-hearing or others...
	“Facemask” means an FDA-approved surgical, medical procedure, dental, or isolation mask.
	“Overall implementation date” means December 6, 2021, unless the Superintendent or designee establishes a different date in writing to the extent required or permitted by law.
	“Testing implementation date” means January 4, 2022, unless the Superintendent or designee establishes a different date in writing to the extent required or permitted by law.
	Vaccination
	An employee is considered “fully vaccinated” 2 weeks after receiving:
	an approved COVID-19 vaccine that requires only 1 dose (e.g., Johnson & Johnson), or
	the second dose of an approved COVID-19 vaccine that requires 2 doses with at least the minimum recommended interval between doses (e.g., Pfizer or Moderna).
	An employee is considered “partially vaccinated” immediately after receiving the first dose of an approved COVID-19 vaccine that requires 2 doses.
	An employee is considered “unvaccinated” if the employee has not received any dose of an approved COVID-19 vaccine.
	“Workplace” means a physical location where District work or operations are performed. “Workplace” does not include an employee’s residence.
	COVID-19 Employee Mandate
	[Option 1: Each employee shall be fully vaccinated, except that each person who becomes a District employee after the overall implementation date shall be fully vaccinated as soon as practicable.
	The Superintendent or designee may grant an exemption from this vaccination requirement if the employee provides documentation from a licensed healthcare provider establishing – to the satisfaction of the Superintendent or designee – that the employee...
	For whom a vaccine is medically contraindicated, or
	For whom medical necessity requires a delay in vaccination.
	[Option 2: Each employee shall (1) be fully vaccinated, or (2) comply with the COVID-19 test and face covering requirements in Sections I and J below.]
	Accommodation Requests
	The Superintendent or designee will consider, in consultation with the District’s legal counsel, an accommodation request under applicable federal or state law based on an employee’s disability or sincerely held religious belief, practice, or observan...
	Vaccination Status Documentation
	Each employee shall provide to the Superintendent or designee:
	If fully or partially vaccinated, acceptable proof of vaccination status.
	If unvaccinated, a written, signed, and dated statement that contains the following language: “I am not vaccinated against COVID-19. I declare (or certify, verify, or state) that this statement about my vaccination status is true and accurate. I under...
	For each person who becomes a District employee after the overall implementation date, that person shall provide acceptable proof of vaccination status or the above statement, as applicable, before beginning District employment.
	The District will maintain a roster of each employee’s vaccination status.
	Vaccination Leave
	An employee may request leave from work for each COVID-19 vaccine dose to travel to a COVID-19 vaccination site, receive a vaccination, and return to work. That request must be submitted to the Superintendent or designee in writing, and leave is subje...
	For each COVID-19 vaccine dose, up to the first 4 hours of leave will be paid by the District at the employee’s regular rate of pay (i.e., 8 hours of leave maximum). The remaining leave time will be unpaid, unless the employee requests, and is eligibl...
	Vaccination Side Effects Leave
	An employee may request to use up to 2 workdays of accrued paid sick leave immediately following each COVID-19 vaccine dose to recover from vaccination side effects that prevent the employee from working. If the employee has no accrued paid sick leave...
	A request under this Section shall be submitted to the Superintendent or designee in writing, and leave is subject to the prior approval of the Superintendent or designee.
	Reporting Positive COVID-19 Test or Diagnosis
	An employee shall promptly notify the Superintendent or designee if the employee has received a positive COVID-19 test or has been diagnosed with COVID-19 by a licensed healthcare provider. The employee shall be immediately removed from the workplace....
	An employee removed from the workplace under this Section will be eligible to return to the workplace when the employee:
	Receives a negative result on a COVID-19 nucleic acid amplification test (NAAT) following a positive result on a COVID-19 antigen test if the employee chooses to seek a NAAT test for confirmatory testing,
	Meets the return to work criteria in CDC’s “Isolation Guidance” (https://www.osha.gov/sites/default/files/CDC's_Isolation_Guidance.pdf), or
	Receives a recommendation to return to work from a licensed healthcare provider.
	An employee removed from the workplace pursuant to this Section will be placed on unpaid leave, unless the employee requests – and is eligible to use – accrued paid leave (e.g., paid vacation time).
	COVID-19 Testing for Employees Who Are Not Fully Vaccinated
	Beginning on the testing implementation date, an employee who is not fully vaccinated shall comply with the testing requirements in this Section.
	If the employee reports to the workplace at least once every 7 days, the employee shall:
	Take a COVID-19 test at least once every 7 days, and
	Provide documentation of the most recent COVID-19 test result to the Superintendent or designee no later than the 7th day following the date on which the employee last provided a COVID-19 test result.
	If the employee does not report to the workplace at least once every 7 days, the employee shall:
	Take a COVID-19 test within 7 days before returning to the workplace, and
	Provide documentation of that test result to the Superintendent or designee upon return to the workplace.
	If an employee fails to provide documentation as required by this Section, the employee shall not return to the workplace without the prior written approval of the Superintendent or designee, which approval will be granted when the employee establishe...
	An employee excluded from the workplace under this Section will be eligible to return to the workplace when the employee provides a negative COVID-19 test result to the Superintendent or designee.
	An employee excluded from the workplace pursuant to this Section will be placed on unpaid leave, unless the employee requests – and is eligible to use – accrued paid leave (e.g., paid vacation time).
	An employee who has received a positive COVID-19 test or has been diagnosed with COVID-19 by a licensed healthcare provider is not required to undergo COVID-19 testing for 90 days following the date of the employee’s positive test or diagnosis.
	Face Coverings for Employees Who Are Not Fully Vaccinated
	An employee who is not fully vaccinated shall wear a face covering when indoors at the workplace or when occupying a vehicle with another person for work purposes. This requirement does not apply in any of the following circumstances:
	The employee is:
	Alone in a room with floor to ceiling walls and a closed door,
	Eating or drinking for a limited time,
	Asked to remove a face covering for identification purposes in compliance with safety and security requirements, or
	Wearing a respirator or facemask.
	The Superintendent or designee determines that the use of a face covering is infeasible or creates a hazard after consultation with the District’s legal counsel (e.g., when a face covering presents a risk of serious injury or death to the employee or ...
	Document Confidentiality
	The District will maintain as confidential all employee medical information, including vaccination and COVID-19 test documentation, in accordance with applicable laws and policies.
	Notice
	The District will provide to employees, in writing, the notice required by 29 CFR 1910.501(j) by the overall implementation date. The District will provide that written notice to each person who becomes a District employee after that date as soon as p...
	Discipline
	An employee who fails to comply with this Policy is subject to discipline, up to and including discharge.
	Legal authority: MCL 380.11a; 29 CFR 1910.501, et seq.



	4227 False Medicaid Claims (NEW)
	4301 Definition (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4300 Non-Exempt Staff
	4301 Definition



	4303 Compensatory Time (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4300 Non-Exempt Staff
	4303 Compensatory Time



	4304 Employee Timekeeping Responsibilities (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4300 Non-Exempt Staff
	4304 Employee Timekeeping Responsibilitiesand Payroll Information



	4306 Assignment and Transfer (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4300 Non-Exempt Staff
	4306 Assignment and Transfer



	4308 Reduction and Recall of Non-Exempt Staff (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4300 Non-Exempt Staff
	4308 Reduction and Recall of Non-Exempt Staff



	4309 Discipline and Termination (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4300 Non-Exempt Staff
	4309 Discipline and Termination



	4401 Definition (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4400 Professional Staff
	4401 Definition



	4403 Performance Evaluation (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4400 Professional Staff
	4403 Performance Evaluation



	4405 Reduction in Force and Recall (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4400 Professional Staff
	4405 Reduction in Force and Recall



	4406 Professional Improvement Sabbaticals-SD (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4400 Professional Staff
	4406 Professional Improvement Sabbaticals



	4407 Discipline (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4400 Professional Staff
	4407 Discipline



	4503 Performance Evaluation (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4500 Administrators/Supervisors
	4503 Performance Evaluation



	4504 Performance Based Compensation (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4500 Administrators/Supervisors
	4504 Performance Based Compensation



	4506 Discipline (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4500 Administrators/Supervisors
	4506 Discipline



	4601 General (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4600 The Superintendent
	4601 General



	4602 Hiring (MARKED)
	Series 4000: District Employment
	4600 The Superintendent
	4602 Hiring



	5101 Student Expression (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5100 Student Rights
	5101 Student Expression



	5104 Age of Majority (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5100 Student Rights
	5104 Age of Majority



	5206 Student Discipline (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5200 Student Conduct and Discipline
	5206 Student Discipline



	5305 Schools-of-Choice-SD (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5300 Student Enrollment, Attendance, and Records
	5305 Schools-of-Choice



	5506 Field Trips (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5500 School Sponsored and Extracurricular Activities
	5506 Field Trips



	5710 Student Suicide Prevention (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5700 Student Health and Safety
	5710 Student Suicide Prevention



	5711 Toilet Training (MARKED)
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5700 Student Health and Safety
	5711 Toilet Training [Optional][Note: If the Board elects not to adopt this Policy, delete the body of the policy and replace the title with “Intentionally Left Blank” after the policy number and in the Table of Contents to ensure accurate numbering o...





	Drainage Easement and Quit Claim Deed (executed 7-18-22) (1)
	Fruitport School Land Division (1)
	Business and Finance Committee 9.12.22.docx (1)
	Meeting Minutes_ Personnel Committee - September 12, 2022
	BAR - Bond Stipends
	$5,000

	BAR - LOA Trans 9.13.22
	$0 for Fruitport Community Schools.

	LOA - Transportation 8.19.22
	Meeting Minutes_ Student Affairs Committee - September 12, 2022
	BAR - Board Resolution Petition for Student Reinstatement
	None

	5206-F-17 Board Resolution- Reinstatement of an Expelled Student
	Series 5000: Students, Curriculum, and Academic Matters
	5200 Student Conduct and Discipline
	5206-F-17 Board Resolution: Reinstatement of an Expelled Student



	BAR - 8th grade history trip - Washington DC
	The cost of the trip, including airfare and hotel accommodations is $1,359. The cost of the trip is to be covered by students with multiple scholarship and fundraising opportunities planned. Students signing up within 48 hours of the parent meeting will receive $100 off the price of the trip.

	Overnight Trip Request - 8th grade to Washington, DC



